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PERFORMANCE
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INDUSTRY LEADER

tis our endeavor 1o attain industry leadership position in the

global soda ash business. Going forward, company’s strategy is

to be prasent in all the four major soda ash zones of the world
which constitutes of China, USA and Eastern Europe along with India

in order to serve its customers better,

GHCL being the innovation Leader in soda ash manufacturing has
uniguely positionad itself 1o replicate the Indian success to other

soda ash zones of the world,

Tha strong management team has a focused model to implement

turnaround & growth strategies to put GHCL on the fast track growth.
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crosa. PLAYER

HCL has strengthened its position in the
developed markets of the west and has made
strong inroads into the newer customers/clients

base while consolidating the relationship with the
axisling ones in the home textile industry.

The successful integration of the Indian and foreign
operations has put the company into the newer orhit of
globally respected players in the area of our businesses.
The strength of our operations and encouraging levels of
customer demand across the markets that we serve has
given us a confidence to be more aggressive to increase
the market share

rosebys| [PEEEEES BEST
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glnd upsem

The company made
excellent progress in the
exsecution of its

planned strategies

Significant breakthroughs
in both soda
ash & home textiles

Global recognition and
acceptance to the
business model




CONSTANT LEADERSH]P

n order to position & maintain its leadership, GHCL would be at
the forefront of a global Home textiles and soda ash industry by

capitalising on the growth opportunities available thersin.

The key driver would be the rightful integration of people and assets
to continnously improve productivity and efficiency. The company
would continue to invest in new facilities and building people skills

to service new geographic and product markets.

GHCL would continue to invest in people and new business areas
within the existing sectors that the company operates in through

acquisition and organic business development.
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CHANGING MARKETS
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he company has made excellent progress in the

execution of its planned strategies for growth,

operational excellence, financial performance and
transformation. The scceptance of the strategy by the
stakeholders across the geographic locations has given a
new vigor in our approach towards them.

In the times to coma GHCL would transcendent newar
frontiers across geographies to create wealth for the

stakeholders.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

e are entering the growth phase wherein

our strategy Is translating into real

financial benefit for all the stakeholders”
The year gone by has been seen us put up a solid
progress across our business and geographical
segments, together with signs of stronger growth
coming through in future years. It has been one of the
landmark year's in GHCL's growth trajectory, with
significant achievements, endorsing GHCL's
reputation as a leading diversified company.

The year has been significant for GHCL-not only
because of three more global acquisitions in USA and
UK inthe textiles space, which has got us to be the only
globally vertically integrated home textiles player. But
it has been significant because it marked the
successful implementation of a period of strategic
change and more importantly, the recognition &
acceptance of our business strategy.

Your company made excellent progress in the
execution of Its planned strategies for growth,
operational excellence, financial performance and
transformation. | am pleased that the stakeholders
across the geographic locations and segments have
recognised this and have shown confidence in GHCL
and its vision for the future.

Financials and acquisitions

During the perlod, we have strengthened our position
in the developed markets of the west by making strong
inroads into the newer customers/clients base and
consolidating the relationship with the existing ones.

Soda Ash

Your company completed the expansion of additional
2.5 lacs MTPA capacity at its plant in Sutrapada in
Gujarat which has taken the rotal capacity of the Indian
soda ash operations to 8.5 Lacs MTPA.

Globally the company’s total soda ash capacity has
increased to 11.5 lacs MTPA, including 3,00,000
MTPA capacity at its Romanian operations (S.C. GHCL
Upsom S5.A.) which your company had acquired last
year.

The company would be further expanding its Indian
capacity by another 2.5 Lacs MTPA as a part of its plan
to take the total capacity to 11,00,000 MTPA which
would provide the company with the leadership
position in the domestic soda ash market.

Home Textiles

In the textiles area in the year gone, your company
made three substantial overseas acquisitions which
include, Best Manufacturing Group, HW Baker of USA

and Rosebys Retail of UK, The company is now the only
integrated home textiles player in the world where its
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global retail home textiles business has established an
annual revenue platform of over US $615 Million per
annum.

The revenue mix for the company has started showing
a healthy growth tilt in favor of home textiles which
accounted for close to 34% of the total revenue from
29% that it used to contribute earlier.

The acquisition of Best Manufacturing Group has made
GHCL as the only company in the world which will cater
to the all the Segments including a- Retail Chain in the
US; Hotel and Restaurant industry; Hospital Industry.
We are in the process of expanding the operations for
all these 3 sectors into other parts of the world also so
that we can service these industries globally.

Post this acquisition, Dan River has strengthened its
market share by penetrating into the institutional
segment of hospitals & hospitality (hotels and
restaurants). The inclusion of which has led Dan River
to achieve an overall substantial market share in Retail,
institutional and hospitality.

With the growth of institutional and hospitality sectors
in the US, we are looking to expand our market share
substantially with a wider product porifolio. The
recently signed US $100 million contract for North
America with Starwood Hotels is proof of our growing
acceptability among the larger clients in the hospitality
segment and we are also in talks with them for further
expanding this relationship fto service Starwood
through a larger Global Contract. We are aggressively
looking to further expand our service horizon and
relationship with such similar clients globally. We
would also be leveraging our global infrastructure in
building our capability to service such large orders and
contractual relationships.

This we believe is the ideal combination of low cost
strong manufacturing base with a large established
marketing platform to put GHCL on the fast track
growth.

GHCL has over the recent past has its position in the
developed markets of the west by making strong
inroads into the newer customers/clients base and
consolidating the relations hip with the existing ones,

We have successfully integrated our Indian and foreign
operations both in the soda ash and textiles
businesses. Given the strength of our operations and
encouraging levels of customer demand, we remain
positive on the performance in the coming times and
expect to post improved margins going forward.

The economic environment

The economic environment has remained favorable
during the period under review, with strong demand
and improving manufacturing activity supporting the

brighter growth outlook. Consumer and retail
confidence has surged, while business confidence has
risen to a record peak. We anticipate seeing the
benefits of the changes in the longer term and our
operations are already positioning themselves at the
forefront to maximize opportunities.

Outlook

We are looking at positioning GHCL among the top
players within its focused verticals. We would create
and build infrastructure and Invest In people's
initiatives to rank among the best places to work.

We are expecting a much stronger year ahead both in
terms of revenue and margin growth in the coming
years on the back of successful execution and
implementation our business strategy & plan. We are
taking substantial initiatives for creating and
leveraging the organic growth opportunities across
business in multiple geographic locations, We are on a
continuous look out for the inorganic growth
opportunities that would catapult us Into newer
growth orbits going forward.

Continuous evolving of a strong risk management
framework and policies would lead GHCL successfully
confront any challenges and threats that come its way.

As it moves ahead, the Company will continue to
deploy benchmarked practices followed worldwide to
strengthen internal controls.

| would like to add that your company has gone from
strength-to-strength over the past few years and
faces a promising future ahead.

In the end | would like to thank one and
all including our Investors both in
India and abroad & other
stakeholders, for spurring us

to perform better and

reposing their faith in the

company.

SANJAY DALMIA

Chairman
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NOTICE

MOTICE is hereby given that the 24th Annual General
Meeting of the members of GHCL Limited will be
held at The Institution of Engineers (India),
Cujarat State Centre, Bhaikaka Bhavan, Law
College Road, Ahmedabad - 380 006 (Opp. Gajjar
Hall) on Monday, July 30, 2007 at 10:15 AM to
transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2007, Profit and
Loss Account for the peried ended on that date
together with the Reports of the Directors' and
Auditors’ thereon.

2. To declare final dividend for the period ended
March 31, 2007.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. 5 H Ruparell,
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a director in place of Dr. B C Jain, who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

5. To appoint a director in place of Mr. H H Farugl,
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

6. Toappoint a director in place of Mr. Te] Malhotra,
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

7. To appoint M/s Jayantilal Thakkar & Co.,
Chartered Accountants and M/s Rahul Cautam
Divan & Associates, Chartered Accountants as
Joint Auditors of the Company, to hold office from
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting to
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting
and to authorize Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

8. Re-appointment of Mr, R S lalan as Managing
Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or

without modification{s), the following resclution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of
Section 198, 269, 309, 311, read with Schedule
¥l and ather applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956, or any amendment thereof
and pursuant to Article 166 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. R 5 Jalan be and Is
hereby re-appolnted as a Managing Director of the
Company, for a period of 5 years with effect from
June 7, 2007, liable to retire by rotation, on such
terms and conditions including remuneration as
stated in the Explanatory Statement annexed to
the Notice convening this meeting with liberty to
the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms
and conditions of the said re-appointment in such
manner as Board may think fit;

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things as it may deem necessary,
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proper and expedient to give effect to this

resolution.”

Q. va f emu tion Package for
W Time Di ors (including Ma i
Directors)

To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions
of Sections 198, 269, 309, 310 read with Schedule
Xl and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, or such other approvals as
may be reguired the Uniform Remuneration
Package as given in the Explanatory Statement
annexed to the notice be and is hereby approved;

“RESOLVED further that in supercession to all
earlier approvals given by members in this regard,
the Whole time Directors (including Managing
Director(s)) of the Company, shall be entitled to
the remuneration in accordance with the terms
and conditions of Uniform Remuneration Package
as approved in the aforesaid resolution with effect
from April 1, 2007;

RESOLVED FURTHER that Board of Directors be and
is hereby authorized to decide and fix
remuneration, perquisites and other benefits for
the individual directors and to do all necessary
acts, deeds and things, including any alteration,
amendment or variation In terms and conditions
of Uniform Remuneration Package, within the
overall approval given by the shareholders in the
aforesaid resolutions and in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
or direction of the statutory authorities given in
this regards.

RESOLVED FURTHER that Mr. Bhuwneshwar
Mishra, Company Secretary of the Company or any
other officials, which may be authorized by the
Board in this regard, be and is hereby severally,
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters,
things, execute and certify all such documents,
deeds and writings as may be required for the
aforesaid purposes.

Registerad Office : By Order of the Board

GHCL HOUSE For GHCL LIMITED
Opp. Punjabi Hall Navranapura, Sdy/-
Ahmedabad - 380009 Bhuwneshwar Mishra
Dated: June 16, 2007 Company Secretary

NOTES

(1) A member entitled 1o attend and vote at the
meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself. A proxyneed notbea
Member. Proxies in order to be effective must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company
not less than 48 hours before the commencement
of the Meeting.

(2) The Register of Members and Share Transfer
Books of the Company will remain closed from
Monday July 23, 2007 to Monday July 30, 2007

(both days Inclusive).

(3) The dividend as recommended by the Board of
Directors will be paid to those members whose
names appear on the Company's Register of
Members onJuly 23, 2007, In respect of the shares
in electronic form, the dividend will be payable on
the basis of beneficial ownership furnished by
Mational Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depositories Services (India) Limited
{CDSL) forthis purpose.

(4) The relevant details of directors seeking
reappointment under ltems No. 3 to 6, as required
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements
entered into with the S5tock Exchanges is given
herein below,

{a) Mr.SH Ruparell (DOB - December 5, 1931)isa
Director of the Company. He is an expert in
Corporate Laws and Solicitor authorized to
administer Oath in UK. He is not a member or
Chairman of any Board or committee, other
than GHCL Limited. He does not hold any
shares in the Company.

(b) Dr. B C Jain (DOB - October &, 1938) is a
Director of the Company. He is LL. B, ACCS, Ph.
D. and Fellow member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and his area of
specialization Is Finance, Banking and
Accounting. He is a Chalrman of Audit
Committee, Member of the Remuneration and
Project Committee of the Company. He Is nota
member or Chairman of any Board or
committee, other than GHCL Limited. He does
not hold any shares in the Company.

{c) Mr. H H Farugi (DOB - June 20, 1941) is a
Director of the Company. He is M. Com., LL. B.
He is a Member of Audit Committee,
Remuneration and Project Committee of the
Company. He is not 2 member or Chairman of
any Board or committee, other than GHCL
Limited. He does not hold any shares in the
Company.

(d} Mr. Tej Malhotra (DOB - June 9, 1950} is a 5r.
Executive Director (Operations) of the
Company. He has 34 years of experience in
Engineering, Manufacturing and General
Management. Mr. Malhotra is neither a
member of more than 10 Committees nor a
Chairman of more than 5 Committees. He is on
the Board of 5 C GHCL Upsom, Romania S.A.
Mr. Malhotra does not hold any shares in the
Company.

(5) Members are requested to notify immediately any
change of address to their Depositories
Participants (DPs) in respect of their electronic
share accounts and to the Share Transfer Registrar
of the Company in respect of their physical share
folios, ifany.

(6) Members holding shares in electronic form may
please note that their bank details as furnished by
the respective Depositories to the Company will
be printed on their dividend warrants as per the
applicable regulations of the Depositories and the

Company will not entertaln any direct reguest
from such members for deletion or / change in
such bank details. Further instruction, if any,
already given by them in respect of shares held in
physical form will not be automatically applicable
to the dividend paid on shares in electronic form.
Members may, therefore, give instructions
regarding bank accounts in which they wish to
receive dividend, directly to their Depositories
Participants.

(7) Members are requested to send their queries, if
any, at least seven days in advance of the meeting
50 that the information can be made available at
the meeting.

(8) All documents referred to in the Notice and
Explanatory Statement is available for inspection
at the Registered Office of the Company during
the business hours on all working days of the
Company up to the date of the Annual General
Meeting.

(9) Members attending the Meeting are requested to
complete the enclosed slip and deliver the same at
the entrance of the meeting hall.

(10)Persons attending the Annual General Meeting are
requested to bring their coples of Annual Reports
as the practice of distribution of copies of the
report at the meeting has been discontinued.

(11)Dividend for the financial year March 31, 2001,
which remains unpaid or unclaimed, will be due
for transfer to the Inwestor Education and
Protection Fund of the Central Government (IEPF)
in the month of October 2008 pursuant to
provisions of Section 205A of the Companies Act,
1956. Members who have not en-cashed their
dividend warrant (s) for the financial year ended
March 31, 2001 or any subseguent financial year
(s), are requested to lodge their claims with Intime
Spectrum Registry Ltd (ISRL). However, in respect
of unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended
March 31, 2001 only those claims, which are
received by ISRL on or before August 31, 2008, will
be entertained. Members are advised that once the
unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF no
claims shall lie in respect thereof,

(12)Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) Facility, With
respect to payment of dividend, the Company
provides the facility of ECS to all shareholders,
holding shares in electronic and physical forms.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO
SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Itemno. 8

The Board of Directors has re-appointed Mr. R 5 Jalan
as Managing Director of the Company for a period of
five years with effect from June 7, 2007. The
disclosure In accordance with the provisions of Clause
49 of Listing agreement in regard to the
reappointment of Managing Director s given below:

Mr. R S Jalan, born on October 10, 1957, is a graduate
in Commerce and Fellow member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and having a very wide
experience in Corporate Finance and Textiles. Mr. B §
Jalan has more than 30 years of Industrial experience.
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Mr. R S Jalan Is a Director on the Board of Dan River Inc.
USA, GHCL Rosebys Ltd UK, Rosebys Operations Ltd.
UK, Rosebys Holdings Ltd. UK, Rosebys (2004) Ltd. UK,
Rosebys Unlimited UK, Best Textiles International Ltd.
UsSA, Best Real Properties Inc, USA, Sumedha
Investments Pvt. Ltd. and Sachin Holdings Pvt. Ltd. He
is a member of Shareholders Grievance Committee of
the Company and he does not hold any shares In the
Company. Mr. R S Jalan fulfills the eligibility criteria set
out under Part | of Schedule XIll to the Companies Act,
1956, The remuneration payable to Mr. R 5 Jalan is in
line with the Uniform remuneration package payable
to Whole time Directors and Managing Director. This
approved remuneration package is also in accordance
with the provisions of Schedule Xl of the Companies
Act, 1956,

1. BasicSalary: Rs. 3,40,000/- per month, which may
be increased by such amount as the Board may
determine from time to time within the overall
approval given in Uniform Remuneration Package
as approved by the members.

2. Perguisites: Mr. R S Jalan shall also be entitled to
the perguisites covering Housing, Medical
Reimbursement, Leave, Leave Travel Concession,
Club Fee, Personal Accident Insurance,
conveyance, Telephone as approved under the
Uniform Remuneration Package.

Except Mr. R § Jalan none other directors are
interested in the resolutions. Your Board
recommends the above resolution for your
approval.

Item No, 9

During the period of last 15 months the company has
successfully completed wvarious acquisitions in
Romania, UK and USA besides the successful
completions of expansion program in existing Soda
Ash plant at Sutrapada and a green field project at Vapi
for Home Textiles. At present your Company is in the
phase of restructuring of its domestic and global
businasses.

The Uniform Remuneration Package was initially
approved by shareholders in their meeting held on
September 26, 1996 and thereafter wvarious
amendments were carried out in the various meetings
of the shareholders from time to time. Further,
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Schedule
¥, related with the remuneration of managerial
persons are also amended in the period of 11 years.

In order to consolidate all the earlier approvals of
sharehoiders and rationalize the package of Whole
time Directors in pace with the amended provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 and in commensurate with
the size of the businesses of the Company, it Is felt
necessary to move a proposal for updated Uniform
Remuneration Package.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 198 read with 309 of
the Companies Act, 1956, the remuneration payable
to Whole time Director(s) including the Managing
Director(s) shall not exceed five percent of the net
profits for one such director or ten percent for all of
them together. However, above limit can be increased
by taking the approval of Central Government.
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Your Board of Directors has considered the Uniform
Remuneration Package in their meeting held on June
16, 2007 and recommended the same for your
approval in accordance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956.

The Remuneration payable to Whole time Director(s)
including Managing Director(s), as approved by the
Board are as follows:

1. BasicSalary;

Basic Salary payable to each of the Whole time
Director(s) (including Managing Director(s)) shall
not exceed Rs. 6,00,000/- per month. The annual
increments in basic salary will be decided by the
Board of Directors on recommendation of
Compensation / Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

2. Perguisites: Perquisites to each of the Whole time
Director (s) (including Managing Director(s)) shall
be equivalent to their respective annual basic
salaries. The individual break up shall be decided
by the Board on recommendation of
Compensation/ Remuneration Committee of the
Company from time to time.

The breakup of perquisites is as follows:

2.1 Housing:

The expenditure incurred by the Company on
providing unfurnished accommodation for
the Director shall be as per rule of the
company subject to ceiling of 60% of the basic
salary. In case no accommodation is provided,
the Director shall be entitled to House Rent
Allowance subject to ceiling of 60% of the
basicsalary.

The expenditure incurred by the Company on
Cas, Electricity, Water shall be valued as per
Income Tax Act, 1962 amended from time to
time.

2.2 Medical Reimbursement:

Expenses incurred by the Director and his
family shall be in accordance with the policy of
the Company.

2.3 Leave:

Full pay leave for one month for every eleven
maonths of services.

2.4 Leave Travel Concession:
For the director and his family, once in a year,
incurred in accordance with the rules
specified by the Company,

2.5 Club Fee:
Fee of Clubs subject to maximum of two
clubs. Admission fee and membership fee are
excluded.

2.6 Personal Accident Assurance:
Premium on each director not to exceed Rs.
4000 perannum.

2.7 Conveyance:

Free use of Company's car with driver for
official use.

2.8 Telephone:

Free use of telephone facility at residence and
mobile phone for official use.

In addition to the above perquisites, the
director shall also be eligible to the following,
which shall not be included in the
computation of the perquisites value,

(a) Provident Fund:

As per Rules of the Company.
(b} Superannuation:

As per Rules of the Company.
{c) Gratuity:

Cratuity payable at a rate not exceeding
half a month’s salary for each completed
year of service,

(d) Encashment of Leave:

Encashment of leave at the end of the
tenure.

3. Commission/ Special Allowance: Annual
Commission, salary and other perguisites (i.e.
overall remuneration) payable to Whole time
Directors and Managing Director(s) shall not
exceed 10% of the net profits of the Company for
the year in respect of which the remuneration is
paid. The individual breakup of commission will
be decided by the Board/ Compensation
Committee from time to time and shall not exceed
the overall ceiling stipulated U/s 198 and 309 of
the Companies Act, 1956 or any amendment
thereto. Or

In the event of no profit or inadeguate profit,
special allowance payable to Whole time Directors
(including Managing Director(s)) not exceeding
twice the annual salary as approved by the Board.
The special allowances for individual directors
chall be decided by the Board/ Compensation
Committee subject to compliance of Section 309
read with schedule Xl and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

4. Minimum Remunerations:

Where in any financial year during the currency of
tenure of a Whole time Director(s) including
Managing Director(s), the Company has no profits
or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay
remuneration to a Whole time Director(s)
including Managing Director(s) by way of salary
and perquisites as specified in Uniform
Remuneration Package or in accordance with
provisions of Schedule Xl and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,
including any amendment thereto from time to
time, which everis less.

5. All other terms or privileges or facilities shall be in
accordance with the standard rules of the
company applicable to the senior officers of the
Company.

6. Employees Stock Option: The Whole time
Director(s) including Managing Director{s) shall be
entitled for Employees Stock Option as per the
scheme applicable to the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Clause 49
(Corporate Governance) of Listing Agreement, the
total remuneration including the commission paid
to Whole time Directors are given in the Corporate
Covernance Report. The Uniform Remuneration
Package, if approved by the shareholders shall be
effective from April 1, 2007,

Mr. P Sampath, Mr. R 5 Jalan and Mr. Te] Malhotra,
being Whole time Directors of the Company are
interested in the proposed resolution as it
concerns their remuneration for the services
rendered and no other directors are interested in
the above resolution. Your Board of Directors
recommends the above resolution for your
approval.

The explanation together with accompanying
notice is and should be treated as abstract U/s 302
of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of changes
in the remuneration of Whole time Director(s)
including Managing Director(s).

Registered Office : By Order of the Board

CHCL HOUSE For GHCL LIMITED
Opp. Punjabi Hall Mavrangpura, 5d/-
Ahmedabad - 380009 Bhuwneshwar Mishra
Dated: June 16, 2007 Company Secretary
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure In presenting to you the 24th Annual Report of the Company together with Audited
Accounts of the Company for the period ended (fifteen months) March 31, 2007,

OPERATIOMAL RESULTS

The summary of the financial performance® of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2007 (fifteen months)
compared to the previous period ended December 31, 2005 (nine months) are given below:

(Rs. in Million)

Period Ended Period Ended

March 31, Dec3l,

2007 2005

Particulars (15 months) (9 months)
Net Sales/ Income 10,832.70 4822.86

Gross profit before interest
and depreciation 2,870,659 1395.71

Interast 187.58 78.00

Profit before depreciation and
preliminary expenses-

{cash profit) 2,6B83.11 1317.71
Depreciation/ Preliminary

expenses written off 587.14 296.83
Profit before Tax 2,159.73 1020.88
Provision for Taxation-Current 249,14 300.59
Provision for Taxation-Deferred 413.27 (9.76)
Fringe Benefit Tax 14.54 8.74
Profit after Tax 1,482.78 721.31
Balance brought forward

from lastyear 1,349.06 912.92

Arrears of Depreciation/
Deferred revenue expenditure
for earlier years/ provision

for earlier years not required 4.15 (12.01)
Excess/ (short) provision for

tax for earlier years {14.15) 3.89
Debenture Redemption

Reserve written back 91.67 55.34
Investment Allowance Reserve

written back 108.60

Amount available for

appropriation 3.022.11 1681.45
Appropriations

Ceneral Reserve 148.50 72.18
Proposed Dividend 26B.89 228.21

Tax on Dividend 45.70 32.00
Balance carried to

Balance sheet 2559.02 1349.06

*The financial year of the company has been
changed from December ending to March ending
and hence current financial year is for a period of
fifteen months. The financials reported in this
reports are of fifteen months compared with the
previous year figure of nine months and hence not
comparable.
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Soda Ash

Your company has successfully completed its
expansion of Indian soda ash manufacturing capacity
by 2.50 lacs MTPA to B.50 lacs MTPA during the period.
This expansion will enable additional gquantum
availability during the subsequent periods both for the
domestic and export markets. The overall demand
growth in India and global market is quite strong.

Globally, your company's soda ash production
capacity has increased to 11.5 lacs MTPA with 8.50
lacs MTPA in India and 3.00 lacs MTPA at its Romania
operations, SC GHCL Upsom SA, (acquired in
December 2005). The capital investment programme
in the Romania plant is progressing as planned which
will enable availability of improved quality Dense Soda
Ash to tap the reguirement of quality glass producers
like Saint Gobain, Owens, Guardian, Striom, P&G etc,

Home Textiles

In the Home Textiles arena, your company has
completed the expansion of spindles capacity in India
to 1,15,000 spindles from 90,000 spindles earlier.
The process of adding another 25,000 spindles is in
progress,. The operations at Vapi Home Textiles plant
is stabilizing with the improved capacity utilization.

Your company, during the period has strengthened its
position in the global Home Textiles market through
the following acquisitions made by its subsidiaries.

In January 2006, acquired in USA, Dan River Inc,
a leading manufacturer and marketer of home
textile products to retailers and institutional
customers. Your company acquired 100% equity
of Dan River Inc.

In July 2006, acquired in UK, Rosebys, UK's
largest home textile retail chain having more
than 300 retail stores across UK. You company
acquired 100% equity of Rosebys.

In December 2006, the USA assets of HW Baker
Linen were acquired by Dan River Inc. Baker is a
leading supplier of textiles products covering
sheets, terry linen, blankets, pillows etc. to
leading hotels and motels,

In February 2007, acquired in USA Best
International Inc., a leading manufacturer and
distributor of home textiles products and
certain related items for the hospitality and
healthcare sector in USA,

The acquisition of BEST Manufacturing Group has
made GHCL, the only Home Textile Company in the
world which will cater to all segments covering a Retail
Chain in the US, Hotel and Restaurant industry and
Hospital Industry. We are in the process of expanding
the operations for all these three segments Into other
parts of the world also so that we can service these
segments globally.

With the above acquisitions, your company is the only
globally integrated home textiles player having a
complete value chaln from spinning to retall and has
established an annual revenue platform of over US
$615 Million across the globe which will enable
generation of cost advantage in manufacturing /
sourcing, logistics and warehousing. The company
has made considerable progress during the perlod in
closing the unviable manufacturing operations of Dan
River in USA and has integrated its supply
requirements through offshore outsourcing
arrangements in India, Pakistan and China. During the
period, major focus was on in integrating various
acquisitions which are in the process of achieving
stability. The benefits of these acquisitions will accrue
in the following periods.

DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend
of Rs. 2.70 per Equity Share for the period ended
{fifteen months) March 31, 2007.

FINANCE

The Company had issued an aggregate of US $80.5
milllon Forelgn Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) at
a coupon rate of 1%. As per the price mechanism the
bond can be converted at a price of Rs. 197.271 per
share. Such conversion option is exercisable between
September 2006 to March 2011, Your company wants
to inform you that no notice of conversion of bond Is
received by the Company. The Company had also
issued 45 lacs warrants convertible into equity shares
on preferential basis to the promater of the Company
in accordance with SEBI (DIP) Cuidelines.

During the perlod your Company had allotted 45 lacs
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each against the conversion
of 45 lacs preferential convertible warrants in
accordance with SEBlI (DIP) Guidelines. Due to
conversion of these preferential warrants, the paid up
share capital of the Company has been increased from
Rs. 950.88 million to Rs. 995.88 million,

During the period your Company has transferred a
sum of Rs. 0.45 million towards unclaimed
dividend /unclaimed deposits alongwith interest
thereon.

FIXED DEPOSITS

Your Company discontinued Inviting, accepting and
renewing of fixed deposits effective from September
24, 2002. However, unclaimed deposits of Rs. 0.035
million has been transferred to |EPF during the period,
which is included in Rs 0.45 Million transferred, as
stated above.

CHAMNGES IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
During the period the Authorized Share Capital of the

Company was increased from Rs. 1250 million to Rs.
1750 million.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has Stock Option Scheme approved by
shareholders and has not been implemented so far.
SUBSIDIARIES

During the period your Company through its overseas
subsidiary had acquired wvarious companies. The
details of subsidiaries are contained in the statement
made pursuant to Section 212 of the Companies Act,
1956, attached with this report.

Pursuant to the exemption Order received from
Central Government vide letter no. 47,/99,/2007-CL-lll
dated March 22, 2007, the consolidated financial
statement has been prepared and presented in this
Annual Report as directed. Shareholders who wish to
have a copy of the full report and accounts of the
subsidiaries will be provided the same on receipt of a
written request from them at the Registered Office of
the Company. These documents will also be available
for inspection by any shareholder at the Registered
Office of the Company on any working day during
business hours.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the
Consolidated Financial Statements pursuant to Clause
32 read with Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement
entered into with the Stock Exchanges and prepared in
accordance with Accounting Standard 21
(Consolidated Financial Statements) of Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, for fifteen months
period ended March 31, 2007.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the
Stock Exchanges, Management Discussion Analysis
Report is annexed herewith and forming part of this
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with
the Stock Exchanges, a compliance report on
Corporate Governance has been annexed as part of the
Annual Report alongwith Auditor's certificate for the
compliance.

LISTING/DELISTING OF THE EQUITY SHARES/FCCBs
The equity shares of your Company are listed at
Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Limited, (ASE), Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and The National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The annual listing
fees for the year 2006-07 have been paid to all these
Stock Exchanges. The application for voluntarily
delisting of Company's ordinary shares is pending
with The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE). The
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) issued by
the Company are listed on the Singapore Stock

Exchange.
GHCL LIMITED @



DIRECTORS

Dr. B CJain, Mr. H H Farugi, Mr. $H Ruparell and Mr. Tej
Malhotra, Directors retire by rotation and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. The
Board recommends their appointments at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting. Mr. R 5 Jalan was re appointed
as Managing Director for a period of five years with
effect from June 7, 2007 subject to the approval of the
shareholders.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGCY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
ouUTGO

Infarmation pursuant to Section 217 (1)e) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies
(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 are given in Annexure-l forming
part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Particulars of employees as required under Section
217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 are
set out in Annexure to this Report and forms part of
the Report. However, as per the provisions of Section
2191 b} (iv) of the Companies Act, 1956, the Report
and the accounts are being sent to the shareholders of
the Company excluding the aforesaid information.
Any shareholder interested in obtaining such
particulars may write to the Company Secretary at the
Registeraed Office of the Company.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Jayantilal Thakkar & Co., and M/s Rahul Gautam
Divan & Associates the Joint Auditors of the Company,
will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and
are eligible for re-appointment. The Company has
received certificates from the auditors to the effect
that their re-appointment, if made, would be in
accordance with Section 224 (1B) of the Companies
Act, 1956. The Board recommends their re-
appointment.

COST AUDITORS

The Board has appointed M/s R ) Coel & Company, Mew
Delhi and M/s L S Sathiamurthi & Co. Chennai as Cost
Auditors for the Soda Ash division and Yarn division of
the Company respectively under Section 233B of the
Companies Act, 1956 forthe financial year 2007-08,
AUDITORS OBSERVATIONS

The notes to accounts forming part of balance sheet as
at March 31, 2007 and Profit and Loss Accounts for the
period ended on that date, referred to in the auditors
report are self explanatory and therefore do not call for
any further comment U/s 217(3) of the Companies
Act, 1956.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act,
1956, the Directors, based on the representations
received from the Operating Management, confirm
that:
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a.  inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the
fifteen months period ended March 31, 2007 the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there has been no material
departure;

b.  appropriate accounting policies have been
selected by them and applied the same
consistently and judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent have been made so
as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2007 and
of the profits of the Company for the fifteen
maonths perlod ended March 31, 2007

[ the proper and sufficient care has been taken by
them for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities; and

d. the annual accounts for the fifteen months
period ended March 31, 2007 have been
prepared by them on a going concern basis,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors express their gratitude to Financial
Institutions, Banks, and various other agencies for the
co-operation extended to the Company. The Directors
also take this opportunity to thank the shareholders,
customers, suppliers, lenders and distributors for the
confidence reposed by them in the Company. The
employees of the Company contributed significantly in
achieving the results. The Directors take this
opportunity of thanking them and hope that they will
maintain their commitment to excellence in the years
to come.

By Order of the Board of
GHCL Limited

5d/-
Date: June 16, 2007 SANJAY DALMIA
Place: New Delhi Chairman

ANNEXURE| TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

A, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a) Energy Conservation Measures Taken

1 In the concept of installation of expanded capacity, several design changes done to improve the kiln performance so
specific heat consumption reduces,

2  Toimprove steam power balance on increased load, 22 bar steam operated boiler feed water pump introduced in the
system

3 Varlous steps Initlated under energy conservation measures resulted Into appreciable savings in its steam and power
exXpenses,
b) Additional Investment & proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of consumption of energy
1 System improvement to maximize usage of lignite from captive sources.
2 Boller efficiency Improvement by converting two stoker fired bollers to AFBC.
3 Furtherimprovement in Bicarb filtration system for reduction in Bicarb molsture,
4  Gas Turbine at the new textile plant for reduction in consumption of Furnace Gil,

POWER & FUEL CONSUMED
Period ended Period ended
March 31, 2007 December 31, 2005
{15 months) 19 months)
ﬁj h:rﬂmaﬂ!rﬂuﬁmm 65421 14512
Total amount (Rs. lacs) 1,967.00 659.08
Rate per Unit (Rs.) 3m 4.54
Iii'l Own Genera}_loﬂ
(a) ThroughDG — :
Units {lacs kwh) 165.78 B6.76
Units per tr of Diesel O 31.82 2.86
— Cost per Unit(Rs.) 4.73 6.68
{b) ThroughTG
Units (lacs kwh) 1,433.65 -B30.34
Cost per Unit {Rs.) 1.29 1.22
2 Coal ) .
Quantity (MT) 165,361.00 9332947
Total Cost (Rs, lacs) 5,347.40 2,990,465
Average Rate (Rs/MT) 3,233.38 3,204.20
; TG -
Quantity (MT) i 271,530.00 154,816.58
Total Cost (Rs. lacs) 1,908.51 1,323.56
Average Rate (Rs/MT) 70287 B54.92

4 Consumption per Unit of Production
SODA ASH (MT) 667,487 218.56 212,59
SALT (MT) 104,405 32.84 37.40
YARN (MT) 9,921 6.09 3.09
CLOTH (Fabric "000 Meters) B,495 1.84 =
Coal - Soda Ash (MT/MT) 667,487 0.25 0.24
Lignite - Soda Ash (MT/MT) 667,487 041 0.39

C. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
1 Research & Development
Efforts continue to bring In operational efficiencies and product upgradation through R & D activities.
2 Technology-Absorption, Adoption and Innovation
The technology for soda ash provided by M/s Akzo Zout Chemis of the Netherlands has been fully absorbed.

3  Imported Technology
a}l Technology Import
Soda Ash manufacturing technoloegy by Dry Process
b) Yearof Import
January 1984
¢l Has technology been fully absorbed 7
Yes, the technology has been fully absarbed.
d) Iftechnology has not been fully absorbed.
Mot applicable.

D FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
Particulars with regard to foreign exchange earnings and outgo appear in the relevant Schedules of the Balance Sheet.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 2007

@ GHCL LIMITED

Disclaimer:

Readers are cautioned that this Management
Discussion and Analysis containg forward-looking
statements that involve risks and uncertainties. When
used in this discussion, the words "anticipate”, "believe”,
“estimate”, “intend”, *will", and “expected” and other
similar expressions as they relate to the Company or its
business are intended to identify such forward looking
statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events, or otherwise. Actual results,
performances or achievements and risks and
opportunities could differ materially from those
expressed or implied in such forward-looking
statements. The important factors that would make a
difference to the Company's operations include
economic conditions affecting demand supply and price
conditions in the domestic and overseas markets, raw
material prices, changes In the Governmental
regulations, labour negotiations, tax laws and other
statutes, economic development within India and the
countries within which the Company conducts business
and incidental factors. The Company undertakes no
obligation to publicly amend, modify or revise any
forward-looking statements on the basis, of any
subsequent developments, information or events. The
following discussion and analysis should be read in
conjunction with the Company's financial statements
included herein and the notes thereto.

Management discussion and analysis

The management of GHCL Limited presents the
analysis of division-wise performance of the Company
for the period ended March 31, 2007 and its oulloak for
the future. This outlook is based on assessment of the
currant business environment, It may vary due to future
economic and other developments, both in India and
abroad.

REVIEW OF ECONOMY

The Indian economy continued its high growth
performance during the year 2006-2007, with GDP
growing at 9% to reach US $643 46 billion.

The world economy expanded by 5%, India along with
China played a predominant role. Industrial recovery is
driven mainly by manufacturing sector firmed up and
broadened. The services sector which has grown @
11.2%, share of 55.1% in the GDP as the main driver for
growth. Agriculture sector grows at 2.7 per cent while its
share in GOP dips to 18.5 percent,

Food items, wheat, pulses, sugar driving inflation in the
last 2 quarters of the year 2006-07. While interest rates
continued to show a rise and rupee continued to
strengthen against the USD during the year with an
appreciation bias.
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Capital lows remained strong; FDI was up 98.4 per cant
in April-September 2008-07. The Core sector recorded
growth 8.3 per cent vs. 5.5 per cent in April-Decamber
2006-07.

The year was witness to large scale volatility in the
commaodity markets. The rising input costs led by higher
interest rates were a cause for concem for most
manufacturing businesses. Despite these
developments, industry in India and particulary the
manufacturing sector grew more than 9% from 8.5% in
the previous year.

India's industrial production, which makes up a quarter
of the economy, is being spurred by rising incomes and
savings. Overseas companies are investing more in
India to take advantage of growing demand.

The top five growth industries in the manufacturing
sector are cement, steel, pharma, gems and jewellery
and engineering, according to a study by a re-knowned
research agency.

Mote:- Figures quoted above have been referenced
from Government sources.

COMPANY PERFORMANCE
PERFORMAMNCE HIGHLIGHTS

The Company performed well during the fifteen months
period ended March 31, 2007.

Standalone

+ Revenue of the India business for the fifteen
months period ended March 31, 2007 has risen by
35% to Rs. 10832.70 million as against Rs. 8038.10
million (annualised) for the period ended December
31,2006

+  Profit from Operations for fifteen months period
ended March 31, 2007 of the India business has
risen by 19% to Rs.2870.69 million as compared to
Rs, 2326.18 million (annualised) for the period
ended December 31, 2005

= PAT (Profit after Tax) for fiteen months period
ended March 31, 2007 of the India business up
23% to Rs. 1482.78 milllon against 1202.18 million
{annualised) for the pericd ended December 31,
2005

L LIMITED @



PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

SEQUENTIAL PERFORMANCE

(For Last 5 Quarters)

Revenue (In Mn Rupees) Profit from Operations (In Mn Rupees)
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SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Consolidated Segment Reporting

Soda Ash 4 Home Textiles B Others

Soda Ash Segment Performance Home Textile Segmeant Performance ITES Performance
Domestic Vs Overseas Domestic Vs Overseas Domestic Vs Overseas

24% . 20% 12%

76%  80%

<<?v B cHcL umiTED

SUMMARY

GHCL is a multi product progressive organization with a
strong focus in soda ash & home textiles arena and
strategic presence in ITES business. The soda ash and
Home Textiles respectively account for 65% and 34% to
the total revenue mix (stand alone basis) of the
company. In the soda ash industry, GHCL is one of the
leading player well-poised to tap opportunities in the
dense soda ash business which contributes about 22
per cent of the total revenues within Soda Ash, which
contributes 5% of lotal Indian Stand alone revenue
{Dense soda ash Constitutes 32% while 8% is light).

With the Completion of the first phase of expansion in
the business in March 2007, the company has raised its
domestic capacity by about 40 per cent from 6.0 lakhs to
8.5 lakhs tones, whereas over all capacily including the
Fomanian capacity {acquired in December 2005) has
gone up to 11.5 lakhs tonnes. GHCL plans to further
increase its domestic capacity by about 2.5 lakh tonnes
to 11 lakh tonnes in the second phase.

GHCL makes dense soda ash, a key raw material used
in the manufacturing of float glass, detergents, textiles,
paper dyes and chemicals. The company also
manufactures light soda ash, which is used in the
detergents and chemical industries. Captive lignite
mining provides GHCL an edge over other domestic
soda ash manufacturers. The company also has a
presence in Europe through its step down subsidiary In
Romania. The Company believes that it is one of the
lowest cost producers of soda ash in the country due to
its captive supply of steam, power and its major raw
materials including salt, limestone and coke.

Buoyed by the boom in the realty sector, a major
consumer of float glass, the soda ash industry, the
company is likely to maintain a healthy growth going
forward.

In the home textiles arena, GHCL is the only fully
integrated player in the world with presence across mill-
to-consumer operation that includes manufacturing in
India, Dan River, Best manufacturing Group and Baker
Linen in the United States and the Rosabys retail chain
in England.

In its textiles business, GHCL operates 115,000 yam
spindles at its two plants in South India, producing high
quality yarn for the domestic and export markets. Home
Taxtilas would be a key driver of growth and margin for
the company in the coming years. GHCL has recently
completed Rs. 2300 million investment program at its
Vapi facility which involved building of a vertically-
integrated facility to produce finished products,
including bed linen and curtains. Post ramp up, the
facility will produce 36 million metres of wide width
fabric.

GHCL is operating in the IT-enabled services with a
strategic intent of increasing the efficiencies of its
overseas companies through outsourcing of the routine
functions. The BPO division includes an Indianand aUS

subsidiary provides mainly wvoice-based business
process outsourcing (BPO) services, including market
research (data collection, focus groups, business
intelligence), customer acquisition (database services,
channel marketing, sales) and customer support (help
desk, order entry). Other than serving as an in-house
division, it also has some big names in from the Fortune
100 companies.

The Company has performed well during the 15 months
period ended March 31, 2007. All the major businesses
reported growth in their revenues. The performance of
the various business segments and the overall
performance of the Company during this period ended
March 2007 are detailed in the report.

cLumiTeD B @



INORGANIC CHEMICALS (SODA ASH)
GLOBAL SODA ASH INDUSTRY

@ GHCL LIMITED

Demand-Supply Scenario

The global demand in the last few years averaged about 8
kg per person versus 7 kg per person in 2000. Itis likely that
the World demand would grow upto around 9 kg per person
by 2010, Developed markets like US and Westermn Europe
have per capita demand of 22 and 18 kg per person,
respectively.

The low per capita demand levels are in the developing
regions like China, India and Africa point to the enormous
long-term demand in these regions. Japan is also a major
user of soda ash due to developed automobile industry in
the country,

MARKETING TEAM - SODA ASH

Supply

Matural scda ash manufactured from trona, is largely
available in USA (23 Bn MT), Botswana (400 Mn MT),
Mexico (200 Mn MT), Turkey {200 Mn MT), Uganda (20 Mn
MT), Kenya (7 Mn MT) and other countries (260 Mn MT)
aggregating about 24 Bn MT. The world's largest deposit of
trona is in the Green River Basin of Wyoming in USA. About
1.8 tonne of trona yields 1 tonne of sodium carbonate. All
the soda ash producers in Wyoming are either fully or
partially owned by overseas companies. These
international ownerships have contributed to the sustained
growth of US exports. With abundant reserves, US soda
ash players dominate the international trade. Except for the
countries with trona deposils, soda ash is produced
synthetically only.

World capacity has grown at a CAGR of 3.5% for the last 10

years, China and Russia's capacities has grown more than
that of the world aggregate. In fact, China contributed 68%
to the total increase in soda ash capacities over the 10 year
period from 1995-2005. Russia contributed about 6% toit.

US is exporting to the major markets. In developed
countries viz. USA and UK, the impact of replacement of
glass containers by plastic containers, increased use of
cullst in glass production and stagnant industrial growth,
restricted the capacity additions, Japan is increasingly
sourcing its Soda Ash requirements from USA,

FMC Is the largest player of natural soda ash and Solvay is
the largest player in the synthetic soda ash segment.
i -
|

Solvay's plants are spread over more than 10 countries.
International Trade

Cost of transportation plays very important
role in international trade. Lower cost of
production of Soda ash in the USA
(due to natural soda ash, cost

being almost half of Indian

players) and China (due to

lower energy costs, total

cost being lower by 5-10%) allows
companies in these countries to
absorb higher transportation costs,

US soda ash producers, therefore,
compete in almost every market

in the world through their

export outfil, ANSAC. US

CL LIMITED @




producers command almost 50% share of world's total
soda ash exports.

Determinants of variation in international trade.

Demand supply scenario in the domestic market, strength
of local currency vis-a-vis dollar and change in prices are
the major determinants of the magnitude and variation of
international trade of soda ash.

Basis of Competition

Soda ash being a commeodity product, the competition is
malnly price based. However, for the purpose of float glass
production, quality of soda ash is very important. Dus to

N : —
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this, customers might be inclined to pay some premium for
quality. Most glass producers enter into long term supply
contracts with soda ash manufacturers and in some
instance they have also taken equity stakes in such

companles.

Price Determinants

I,  ANSAC

Almost 50% of total exports of soda ash are by ANSAC.

Hence, it has significant control over the price of soda ashin
the intemational trade.

Il. China Factor

China commands 31% share of global capacity and is one
of the fastest growing economies In the world. Hence,
growth of Chinese economy and capacity additions also
affect the global soda ash prices. In fact, the increase in
prices during 2004 and 2005 was mainly due to Chinese

@ GHCL LIMITED
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dermand. Itz position in Asian market has a direct influence
on demand for US exports also. Shortage of both coke and
salt in 2004 led to major price rise in China as well as a
reduction in exports to Asia in the second half of that year,
thereby enhancing demand for US material. The shortage
of metallurgical coke in China and other countries, driven
by the requirements of the steel industry, has also affected
coke availability and prices.

lll. Buyer'sCartel

Main customers (like container and float glass, detergents
and some chemical application) grow in size, merge and
increasingly organize themselves to purchase on a global
basis, using their bargaining power very effectively.

e
=
=
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V. Demand Pull (especially, glass & detergent industry}

Glass production used almost 16-17 Mn MT of soda ashin
2005 and demand is increasing by 4% (float glass) and 2%
(comtainer glass) over the last five years. It may be noted
that dermand from the container glass industry is shrinking
due to replacement of glass botties by PET bottles to a very
large extent in soft drinks. PET bottles are substituting
glass bottle uses in other industries too. Cullets represant a
cheap raw material for the manufacture of glass.

V. CostPush (transportation & inputs costs)

Water is widely accepted mode of transport for international
trade of soda ash. Hence, shipping chargas play important
role in determination of landed cost of soda ash. Crude oil
price is one of the major determinants of shipping charges.
Thus, movement of crude oil prices is major determinant of
landed cost of soda ash in international market.

Production of soda ash Is an energy intensive process, with
power & fuel costs constituting almost 25-30% of the total
cost of production. Hence, changes in prices of major
enargy source viz. coal; natural gas etc. affects the soda
ash prices. For example, rising energy and fuel costs,
particularly that of coke, pushed up costs in Europe,
whereas in the US, costs were hit by higher gas prices.

VI. Trade Barriers & Forsign Exchange Rates

In Asia, the demand for soda ash had reduced sharply after
the South East Asian Crisis and consequent depreciation of
currencies of these countries. Hence, there had been
downward pressure on the prices during that period,

Downturn in World Soda Ash Industry (1996-2003)

The soda ash industry faced a number of challenges, the
most prominent being the international crisis that started in
1847, With the US and Western European markefs having
matured, long term growth was expected mainly in Asian
and Latin American markets. The crisis significanthy
affected soda ash demand in 1998 in Asia, Latin America
and the former Soviet Union. The difficulty was
compounded by two post-communist era specific
problems. In China, the transition from central command
economy to market economy was not complete. State
owned soda ash producers competed with each other, but
other ingredients of capitalism such as depraciation, cost of
capital and financial responsibility did not affect them. All of
these producers increased production, deeply eroded the
prices in China and aggressively pushed their exports,
triggering overcapacity in USA,

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK

CARE expects the world demand for soda ash to grow by at
least 2.5-3% over the medium term. Hence, on41.9 Mn MT
global demand at present, the demand would increase by
almaost 1-1.5 Mn MT every year. Of this additional demand,
around 60% would come from India, China and Middle East
countries, where the GDP growth rate is higher.

CARE believes that new capacities would come mainly in
the regions of high growth viz. India, China or South East
Asia because of easy availability of key raw materials.
While Indonesia has abundant coke reserves, availability of
saltis an issue.

As per the view expressed by key players, it is expected
that China might add almost 5-10 lakh MT capacity every
year to meet ts domestic demand. In China, the demand is
expected to grow @ 8-10 % upto 2010 due to focus on
infrastructure for various events lo be organized in the
country. However, any steep fall in Chinese demand may
result info over capacity in the region and the prices might
come under pressure. However, such a situation appears
less likely at least in the near future,

AMSAC is also expected to continue its focus on export
markets since no further increase in glass production is
likely in the near future in US. Crude oil prices, which
determine the transport costs, would continue to be an area
of concern for ANSAC, However, the decline in crude oil
prices over the last few weeks might just ease up the
scenario for ANSAC. Besides, implementation of zero-for-
zero agreement with major countries inciuding China, India
and other countries might also help itto increase exports.

CARE's outlook for world soda ash prices is stable. There

had been a global upswing in soda ash prices since the
second half of 2004 caused by surge in demand and by
rising costs of energy and transport. However, crude oil
price Is still a matter of concem. Increase in crude oil prices
would further increase the cost of transportation.

The world's largest Soda Ash Producers
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The demand for soda ash is driven primarily by the
requiremants of the glass industry. The needs of the fabric
washing (detergents} and other cleaning sectors also play
an important role inasmuch as they use soda ash both
directly and In a derivative form. Eslimated Global
consumption of soda ash by end use in 2004 was:

Global Consumption Pattern
7%_4%

Sllicate M Othear

Detergents

Indian Scenario

In India Soda Ash is of two varieties — Light (used In
detergent industry) & Dense (used in Glass industry), Light
constitutes 70% and Dense constitutes 30 % of current
Indian domestic market. In last couple of years the capacity
utilization has reached an all time high of around 90% of the
domestic production capacity. Approximately 15% of
India's soda ash production is exported to South East Asia,
Middle East & SAARC Countries (Bangladesh). Indian
soda ash market grew at CAGR of 5% over last 5 years,
which has benefited GHCL as well.

Indian Capacity (Including GHCL) is around 28 million
MPTA. All the major industry players ara located in the state
of Gujarat due to the closeness and ready availability of the
main mother earth materials namely imestone and salt.

The Growth in demand of Soda Ash in Domestic and India
Export target markets (SAARC, Middle East and South
East) is reported to be from current 2.4 million

tones to 3.5 million tones, while reported

growth in Capacity in China alone is 5.6
million tones in the next 5 years upio
2010, this accounts to a CAGR.
growth of 7%. Known capacity
increase in next 3 years
stands at 4 to 5 million tons
indicating favourable
position for the Soda Ash
manufacturers in the Region.

The outlock for the sector remains
strong with the Industries
consuming Soda Ash growing
al a fast pace. Currently




Glass industry growing at 8%, Flat (Float) glass market is
growing 10% -12%, Piciure ubes market growing by about
10% and Bulbs & tubes growing at 7%. The detergent
industry is also growing at 5%

Indian Consumption Pattern
10% 9%

W Glass  Chemicals © Detergents ' Silicate = COther

Itis Advantage India as:

* India has the advantage of having huge reserve of
limestone and large production of salt due to availability
oflong coast line.

+ India also has the advantage of having energy efficient
technological plants.

*  India is well positioned to cater to the soda ash needs of
high growth nation viz. Middle East & South East Aslan
and SAARC countries.

+ Domestic demand is also likely to grow at a good pace.

GHCL SodaAsh business:

GHCL Limitad is a leading Indian producer of soda ash, a

key ingredient used in the manufacture of glass,

detergents, tesxtiles, paper dyes and chemicals. The
company is well-poised to tap opportunities in the dense
soda ash business which contributes about 22 per cent of
the total revenues whereas the total soda ash business
caontributes about 66% of total Indian Stand alone revenue

{Dense soda ash Constitutes 329% while 88% is light).

GHCL has completed the first phase of expansion in the

soda ash in March 2007, the company has raised its

domestic capacity by about 40 per cent to 8.5 lakhs tones
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with its over all capacity including the Romanian
capacity{acquired in December 2005) has gone up to 11.56
lakhs tonnes. GHCL plans to further increase ils domestic
capacity by about 2.5 |akh tonnas to 11 lakh tonnes in the
second phase in next couple of years.

GHCL's business has grown owing to the strong demand
for soda ash globally, upward swing in prices and its 100%
caplive control on raw materal and utilities. The strong
growth is driven by a strong demand from China, India and
South East Asia, This demand is driven by strong growth in
float glass (perfectly flat, clear glass) usage, due to the
increase in automotive and construction demand. GHCL
balieves its competitive strengths enable it to deliver high-

quality products in a cost-efficient and environmentally
friendly manner,

The company is one of the lowest cost producers of
synthatic soda ash in the world due to 100% captive
source of all the raw materials — Salt, Limestone, Met
Coke and fuel. The key factor for success for being one
of the lowest cost producers of soda ash has bean due
to the innovation brought In by the company which has
replaced the imported Met Coke with in-house
Developed Briquette Coke. The company also has the
advantage of the captive mining of fuel (Lignite) and
being the enly company in India to have this facility.
GHCL follows the best process parameters in the
Indian industry by following the Kaizen System and
has formalized systems of cost reduction. The Current
Cash Cost of GHCL is about US $125/Tone while the
company s striving to reach US $100/Tone and
becoming one of the lowest cost producers in the
world.

GHCL shares a highly successful client relationships
and is the preferred supplier to all major soda ash
consumers; its clients include Gujarat Guardian, Asahi
Glass, LAT, Phillips & Hindustan Lever. The company
has been continuously rated as the best in industry by
CSl (Customer Satisfaction Index).

Dpportunity and Concerns

The biggest opportunity lies in capitalising on the pravailing
demand from the real estate & construction and automobile
sector. In order to leverage it, the company has added
capacity for higher share in the world's fastest growing
market of Asia, which is growing @ 7% approximately by
increasing its global capacity to 1.1 million MT. The major
producing centres in Asia are located in China and India
only.

GHCL's presence in the European market through its
acquisition of Romanian company would help it leverage its
domestic advantage to control costs. The soda ash prices
are expected to remain firm for the next 4-6 quarters.

The soda ash industry was established more than half a
century back and is well placed to meet the full domestic
requirement of the country over the next 3 years; industry
belng labour intensive also provides large employment
potential particularly in the drought prone areas of Gujarat.
The product quality is comparable to the best European
producers with cost being comparable to Chinese units.

The industry offers huge opportunity for growth as the
Demand Growth in the next 5 years expected to be strong
and there are opportunities for capacity expansion
because of product acceptability in the export markets.

The industry suffers from the weaknesses of concentration
of 95% capacity in Gujarat and the cost of fransport to
markets in South and East India, which constitutes 31% of
consumption, is high as compared to the ocean freights to
South and East India where product is imported from
Kenya and Europe.

GHCL has been able to maintain a domastic market share
through a combination of market development, pro-active
Direct Customer Relationship management (C3I)
Satisfaction Initiatives and the speedy response to the
naads of the market placa.

Establishing A Global Foot Print

GHCL 's growth and expansion plans are well in place and
are supparied by the economic upturns in the Indian and
Asian regions with a steady upward rise. The growing
demand for Soda Ash in the growing economic blocks of
the world such as the Eastern European Countries,
coupled with streamlining and consolidated its domestic
market share and volumes, this would be an opportune
time to leverage its market potential and the resources to
exploit the growth potential thrown open by the dynamic
business environment, Europe is the biggest soda ash
producing region after Asia.

Within the Indian space there are already established
playars with high barriers to entry for new entrants. This has
already led lo some amount of mergers of capacities taken
place.

The acquisition of the soda ash business in Romania has
provided GHCL with the much-desired exposure of the
world markets beginning with Europe to replicate its Indian
success. GHCL is in the process of increasing the
production capacity of its Romanian unit to 300,000 Tones
and has substantially reduced its cost of production
through ade bottlenecking over the last one year.

GHCL's strateqy is to create a sirong Footheold in Europe
through its Romanian unit started bearing fruit, it is ready to
penetrate the other growing East Eurcpean Economies
such as Hungary, Croatia, Moldova, Yugoslavia, Slovak
Republic and Czech republic to name a faw, it intends to

use its delivery model to increase its dense capacity to
service these markets and also cater to the Non European
markets and establish strong client relationships.

Going forward, company’s strategy is to be presentin all the
four major soda ash zones of the world which constitutes of
China, USA and Eastermn Europe along with India in order to
sarnve ils customers better.

Delivery Modal & Approach

In India, GHCL is well placed to leverage the opportunity in
the soda ash business due to the Entry Barrier for any kind
of Greenfield Investments. As typical Modular Capacity for
Greenfield Project needs to be 400,000 TPA which would
come at a high cost of. US $225 million. Also the time
Frame for Project completion is minimum 4 years for a
plant, moreover the major constraint comes in creation of
Raw Material resources. The Possible Capacity additions
by ather Indian Manufacturers are likely o be in the region
0.3-0.4 MMT. With the Strong customer relationship in both
domestic & Export market GHCL would be the major
beneficiary.

Ower the past year our core operations & management
team have come up with a focused model & approach
towards implementing turnaround & growth strategies that
would be implemented to develop our growth potential.
Further to this, this replicable model could also be used
globally.

GHCL being the innovation Leader in Manufacturing, the
company is in a unique position to leverage its deep routed
manufacturing knowledge & innovation in product and
quality to deliver Low Cost Production bases by leveraging
the conditions inherent in the growing economies of the
world,

In Romania as these plants are ideally located to tap East
and Central European Markets and have a high level of
reserves of natural resources required at a comparatively
low cost to produce Soda Ash. Moreover the

dense soda ash that these plants produces is

in sync with the GHCL's focus on the
DEMNSE which is where the one can get
better contribution along with the
higher growth poltential. p
The strong foothold in
Romania has opened the
doors for GHCL to cater to
East European markets with demand
potential in excess of 7,00,000 TPA
thereby providing the company with
a large local market. GHCL is
poised for tapping gaps In the
eastern |/ southem coastal
markets of India.
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HOME TEXTILES
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In the Textiles arena, India and China are emerging as
winners after the dismantling of quotas which freed the
entire global textile trade. This has led to aggressive
realignment of production and cutsourcing facilities. Large
global manufacturers in USA and Europe are becoming
sick or closing down due to higher cost. This scenario has
benefited countries like India & China having large scale of
operations, raw material base and cost competitiveness.

Market Size

Global Home Textile Industry is estimated at US $70 bn of
the global textile and clothing industry of US $480 bn and

EU market dominates 70% of the world's home textile
imports. Growth in home textiles is to be the highest
amongst all textile segments with intemational trade set to
grow to US $23 bn by 2010 at a CAGR of 22% from the
present levels
World's Largest Exporters, Textiles (2002)
Us § Bn
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World's Largest Importers, Textiles (2002)
(US & Bn)

World Trade in Textiles is currently - US $342 billion and is
expected to US 770 billion in 2010. Global Home

Textiles size stands at US 370 billion. Global

Home Textiles Trade iz cumently US $8.6

billion and iz expected to go up to US

£23 billion in 2010

Key Trends Post Quota

= Global Retailers
increase oulsourcing to cul costs

Manufacturing shifting from
developed to developing
markets

Consolidation,
rationalization of




outsourcing countries and vendors to trigger growth
for Asians

= China, India, Pakistan, key Asian Vendors dominate
{76% share of USA market) and gain at expense of
developed markets

Breakup of International trade in Made ups by Value

5%

26% == Progoosd Procul Pooiiolia
B Towals BedLinen  Tabls Linen Bilmnkats
W Cyriains 7 Canvas Producls
Break up of International trads

value-added segments with high realizations compared
with paers. Its greater presence in the decorative bed sat
segment has also been a step forward in India's strategy to
enrich its product mix.

Tarry towels is the fastest-growing segment, despite some
pricing pressure, with exports to the US upto 40%, followed
by bed linen and decoralive bed-set exports growing at
20% YTD Aug'06, respectively. With a significant part of
new capacities now operational, growth rates are likely to
pick up, particularly in bed linen and the decorative bed-sat
sagments. We see higher operating leverage improving
earmings growth visibility ahead.

Favourable Government policies, Low finance cost under
TUF comparable to any country in the world, 10% capital

operation that includes manufacturing units in India, Dan
River, Best Manufacturing Group and Baker Linen in the
United States and the Rosebys retail chain in England.

Home Textiles — A Global Vision

GHCL's Home Textile Vision is to develop a fully integrated
Home Textile Production facllity of Global Scale and to
create a marketing and distribution infrastructure of size
and scale comparable in the world.

The domestic operation of the company Includes
1,15,000 yam spindles at its two plants in South India,
producing high quality yam for the domestic and export
markets. Home Textiles being a key driver of growth and

DAN RIVER: GHCL acquired Dan River Inc., the third
largest US Home Textiles Company at a cost of US $17.50
million. Dan River with its cutsourcing arm in the Major taxtile
balts of Asia such as China and Pakistan is the leading player
in the US textile markets with an annual turnover of US $250
milllion in Home Textiles. It has a widest sales & distribution
network within US catering to the largest retallers and
preferred supplier to largs retailers like JC Penny and Linen &
Things, Wal-Mart, Bed, Bath & Beyond.

GHCL successfully turmed around the operations of Dan
River Inc. in less than 2 quarters after taking over the
managemeant and operations of Dan River. The

in Mede ups by Fibre typa subsidy makes finance cost extremely low, Zero duty

14% CENVAT chain and texiile & apparel parks are the major GHCL - THE JOURNEY SO FAR
positives which are going to drive the sector growth,
Inherent strengths & cost competitiveness of Indian textiles Acgiren Asseds of Beat

Mmnibscturing grodg & At ke ol

Within USA

+  Home Textiles Industry still evolving and consolidation
across value chain taking place

+  West Point Stevens Promoters further contributing US
£200 Million for Growth and sustenance

Springs lost Revenues Q20 due to its own transformation
inthe region of US $100 million

India’s textile industry Is highly cost competitive and its
strength lies in being Cotton rich country with abundance of
raw matanal couplad with abundance of low-cost skilled
labour. India has also developed Product design and
development capabilities and has presence in all segments
ranging from fibre to garment. India now also has the
experience of working with global brands.

Indian Textile Exports is currently US $14 billion moving to
US $50 bilion in 2010, Indian Home Textile trade is
currently US $2 billion moving to US $8 billion in 2010. India
being the largest supplier of terry towels (25% market
share) and the third largest supplier of bed linen (17%
share) to the US. Indian home textile exports are in a
growth zone. Although India has lost some market share to
Pakistan and China due to aggressive shipments at low
pricas, it continued to grow at a healthy pace in higher

WAk PLAMT
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industry s catalysing major retailers & brands of the world
such as Wal-Mart, Target, Gap, Marks & Spencer & Tesco
to set up shopsfincreasing their Indian presence augurs
well for the sector.

Outlook for the Sector

India's textile axports are likely to surge from US 14 bn to
US $50 bn by 2010-CAGR 20% (as per HDFC securities
research report). India's share in world textile trade is also
set to increase from 3.80% to 6.50% by 2010. After IT,
Taxtile Industry to be the second largest “outsourcing” hub.

Home Textile - Emerging Opportunity
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Huge Home Textile market is waiting to be exploited by
India. As per KSA Technopac eslimates, India's home
textile exports will reach US $8 bn by 2010 vs, US $2 bn
now - |.e. 4 times increase.

GHCL-Home Taxtiles

In the home textiles arena, GHCL is the only fully integrated
player In the world with presence across mill-to-consumer
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margin for the company, GHCL made Rs. 230 crores
investment at its Vapi facility which involved bullding of a
vertically-integrated facility to produce finished products,
including bed linen and curtains. Post ramp up, the facility
would start producing 36 million metres of wide width fabric
to be converted into ¥ million sheet sets perannum.

In order to achisve this global vision, GHCL in the last 15
maonths period acquired Dan River Inc., which is one of
the leading home textile player in the United States,
Rosebys retail chain in England, Best Manufacturing
Group and HW Baker Linen in the United States.

F50 Mn. Esparmion of | _..—-"’ #:-:Jt‘s?rlud of D Fibver
|

| of W Baker for
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turnaround has resulted inte an annual savings of
close to US $35 Million. During the period the company
has also refinanced the working capital loan along with
replacing the old bond holders with the new lenders on
betterterms.

The turnaround has been made possible in such a time
frame on the back of strong marketing and outsourcing
initiatives backed up by various other HR and
manufacturing initiatives by GHCL on Dan River, partof its
three stage turnaround action plan.



ROSEBYS: Dan River acquisition has been
followed up by acquisition of UK's largest
Home Textiles Retail Chain Company-
Rosebys for US $40 Million which completed
the global value chain for GHCL from
spinning to Retail.

THREE STORE FORMAT

ROSEBYS

Rosebys has a strong presence in bedding, curtains and
kids garments with over 300 retail outlets across UK and an
annual tumover of close to US $250 million.

Post Rosebys acquisition GHCL become world's only
integrated home: textiles company with presence across
spinning, weaving, product design & development,
sourcing and distribution to retall stores at a global level.

HW Bakear: GHCL strengthened its presence in the US
markets with acquisition H W Baker Lenin Co. who had a
turnover of US $70 million at a cost US $6.75 million. The
acquisition strengthened Dan River's existing position in
hospitality industry as H.W. Baker Linen Co. is a leading
supplier of textile products, amenities and guest room
supplies to hotels and motels across USA.

Best Manufacturing Group: The latest of the acquisition
was done by GHCL's international subsidiary GHCL Inc. of
Best Manufacturing Group of USA for US $35 million. Bast
is the leading manufacturer and distributors of Home
textiles and ceriain related tems for the hospitality &
healthcare sector In USA.

Headguartered in MNew Jersey, BEST has satellite
operations strategically located across Canada, Mexico
and Asia with two manufacturing plants, one each in
Combodia and Mexico along with 8 warehouses across
USA. Besthas a top-line of about US 5160 million.

The Model

GHCL is working on the vertical integration model with a
presence from mill to front end retail. The established brand
platforms of Dan River, Rosebys, across the EU & USA
markets are backed up by company's low cost strong
manufacturing base of India and strong outsourcing
presence across India, China and Pakistan

Opportunity & Concemns

While there is a huge growth potential in the Home Textile
trade from the US and EU markets, there could be various
unforeseen factors that may affect the growth of the
company. A change or slow down in the growth and
dernand for Home Textile products could have an impact on
the revenues of the company. A decrease in the
international prices of the company’s products could affect
the marketability of the products and also in tum affect
production. If during such a phase the company is not able
to turnaround the portfolio or replace the trend in the
markets, it could have a significant impact on the company.
Az Dan River's delivery model is based on Intemational
supply and trade, an adverse effect in the exchange rates of
relevant currencies such as the Rupee and/or Yuan versus
major international currencies, including the US dollar,
could also impact revenues and profitability. Competition
from major Indian and other international players within the
Home Textlle space could also hamper growth. Change in
government policies, or anti trade lobbyists within India or
even in the US could affect the company’s ability to source
the goods in time and hence could lead to a disruption in
supply.

Outlook

Itis GHCL's endsavour is to build world class competancies
in:

MANUFACTURING

*  Building world class competencies in — Quality, Cost
Control, Delivery & margin Enhancement through
benchmarking & Ancellirization approach

DESIGN

Empower our already Strong Global Design Team to
develop creative ideas from across the Globe

— US - Global Design Head already looking after Kids
(2-12 yrs), Tweens (12-20 yrs)

= UK=Design Director of Reputed experience already
on board to develop popular designs based on new
trends

= India=Development of complete design capabilities
out of Vapi

* Already entered the Home Textiles Design Shows to
benchmark against other industry players.
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Started Segment target positioning (STP) teams to
drive Segmental Growth in product developrment

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

* High end process established in “Sample” Development
= from Creativity to Sample Development with total look
and feel of the product line

* Higher TAT (Turm Around Times) established and is
driving strong order bookings—A USP of Dan River
GLOBAL SOURCING
— Strong focus In development of China, Indla &

Pakistan as lead Global Sourcing hubs with own
quality control and country managers

— Parallel Development of Turkey, Mexico (quick
turnarounds), Belgium, Brazil & Bangladesh

— Setting up Additional Sourcing operations in UK

- Above developments leading to Sourcing Cheapest
(creating a benchmark) and becoming a Price
Leader in US and gaining same status in UK is next

priarity
SUPPLY CHAIN
»  Demand manageament
— Monitor Store Sales for KMART (over 3000 Stores)
{Developing more category captains)

- Inventory management (Building strong processes
to achieve inventory of nothing more than 2.5 month
ofsalas)

— Logistics (Appointing a Global logistics Head &
reducing late delivery)

GLOBAL SALES

»  Focusing on Six strong segments
= MassAccounts
— Popular House hold Accounts

— Hospitality
- Kids
Gold Accounts (regional, high margin accounts)

= Luxury
= Margin maximization is key goal for all Sales teams
RETAIL

+ Strong Focus on Product Range, Private Brands &
Window Coverage

*  Introduce new Stores in the UK over the next year
*  Improve the shopping Environment through a better

Retail Atmosphere (The Rosebys "Renaissance” &
Luxury Outiats)

+ Improve Merchandising to in-store availability

« Enhance Branding through marketing and
Consumer PR to drive more footfalls




I'T ENABLED SERVICES

THE INDIAN MARKET OUTLOOK

India’s |T-ITeS industry ranks amaong the fastest growing
sectors within the country's economy. Driven primarily by
exports, the industry has experienced rapid annual growth
in Indian IT Industry, projected to cross US $100 billion
in 2011 after it recorded a growth of 31% In 2006. The
Indian IT/1TeS industry clocked closed to Two Lacs Crore of
revenue in 2006, up by animpressive 31% over 2005. With
equal drives from exports revenue and domestic IT
spending, the Indian IT industry has been able to keep up
with the momentum it gained since 2003,

The industry is projected to grow at 18% CAGR for the next
five years time frame to cross an estimated INR 458,228
Crore of revenue in 2011, which means it will become a US
5100 billion plus industry.

On the domestic front, IT/ITeS spend has been estimated at
INR 68,411 Crore in 2006, a gain of 26% over 2005. The
growth in domestic [T/ ITes spend has been primarily driven
by investments by enterprises in |T infrastructure, line of
business applications, security products and services, IT
outsourcing and managed services and by consumers in
mobile and digital products (digicams, notebooks, smart
handheld devices etc.).

Domestic IT/ ITeS revenues are projected to touch INR
1,868,370 Crore in 2011, ata CAGR of 12.7% {IT growing at
16.4% and ITeS at 40.4%). This also means that domestic
[T ITeS revenues will grow faster than IT/ ITeS export
revenues for the next five-year period.
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Increasingly companies are outsourcing business process
functions to call centres in India. Thase functions include
market research, helpdesk and order entry services.
These sarvices are wall suited to outsourcing because of
India's natural cost and English language advantages.
Many firms in this space are employed by large US and
Europe basad IT firms looking to offshore soma of their
lower end services. As this trend become more prevalent
well placad Indian firms will have the opportunity to capture
market share and will have the relationships in place to
move into higher value added services.

Colwell & Salmon Communications Inc.

GHCL's IT-enabled services division, which includes an
Indian and & US subsidiary provides mainly voice-based
business process outsourcing (BPO) services, including
market rasearch (data collection, focus groups, business
intelligence), customer acguisition (database services,
channel marketing, sales) and customer support (help
desk, order entry). GHCL's client list includes Fortune 100
companies.

The Company's Strength is the BZB segment that
constitutes 60% of the total revenues and the Fortune 100
clients that the company services. The company has a
Domain Expertise in the area of Direct Marketing and
Cuslomer Services. The company provides both offshore &
onshore solutions, hance a global & diversified geo dalivery
model overthe word inour markets.

Growth Objectives

Company's growth objectives is to strengthen existing
‘popular” offerings for new customers that view company's
services as critical to their Business Objectives and to build
strategic partnerships in new verticals and service offerings
that resuft in long-term contracts and business
opportunities.

New Vearticals

The Company is looking to develop and create growth
opportunities in new vertical markets and horizontal service
offerings. Currently within the B2B, B2C & MR space we
provided services to the Technology, IT, Telscom,
Publishing and are looking to grow in the following new
verticals-Healthcare, Financial services, Insurance and
Market Research (end to end delivery capabilities)

Opportunity & Concerns

The ITES sector globally has seen a strong trade growth
within concentrated Geographies such as North American
subcontinent UK & EU and the Asian subcontinent
Corporates across the leading economies are facing huge
pressure to minimise costs and maximise profits as
customers and consumers are demanding goods and
services at far more competitive prices than ever before,
We see a huge potential to drive revenues within certain
sectors in customer service related work such as
Healthcare and Financials services BPO. As labour
arbitrage becomes increasingly important factor to deal
with in pushing cost down, countries such as India and
China have a huge potential to grab such opportunities and
streamline functionalities to cater to this growing demand.
In sectors such as Healthcare, Financial services and BPO
where up to 70% of costs are associated with labour
charges; such practices are bound to have significant
appeal towards offshore outsourcing. Even within our
growing Direct Marketing and Call Center sagment of our
current business, Front Office and Back Office cutsourcing
are witnessing a consistent rise in offshore outsourcing.

While outlook for this sector holds true promisa, there are
various factors that may directly or indirectly affect our
business and performance. As our ITES delivery model is
based an onshore and offshore delivery model through
seamless integration an adverse effect in the exchange
rates of relevant currencies such as the Rupee versus
major international currencies, including the US dollar,
could also impact revenues and profitability. Competition
from major Indian and other international players within the
ITES space could also hamper growth. As Outsourcing and
especially ITES constitules a fair amount of job
opportuniies for many people in countries in which our
customers are situated and also faces, from time to time,
strong resistance from various political and corporate
bodies, any change in government policies, or anti trade
lobbyists within India or even in the US could affect the
company's ability to win contracts and service clients or
expand its offerings in time and hence could lead to a
disruption in service chains and revenues, that could
impact our profitability,

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

Comparison - Fifteen months Jan 2006- March 2007 vs.
Jan 2005-March 2006 (Standalone}

The Company generated total revenue (net of duties) of
Rs.10832.70 million in the fifteen months period ended
March 31, 2007, a 35% increase from Rs.8038.10 million
{net of duties) in corresponding previous period
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The total increase in sales was primarily due to higher sales
volumes and higher soda ash prices in both the domastic
and export markets and also the move to higher value
added products in the textile segment.
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In the Business Mix Textiles division revenue during the
fifteen months period ending March 31, 2007
contributed 34% to the total revenue as

compared to 29% in the corresponding
fifteen months period ended March
31, 2006.

Whereas Soda Ash revenue
during the finteen months

perod ending March 31,

2007 accounted for 65% of the total
business revenue as compared to
70% in the corresponding period
ending March 31, 2006.
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Highlights

* GHCL acquired US Textiles Major-Dan River for US $17.5
million, a leading manufacturer and marketer of textile products
for the homa fashions and apparel fabrice markets with an
annual turnover of LS $250 million

« Tumed Arcund Dan River Operations, led by the Marketing,
Outsourcing and HR initiatives

» GHCL Acquired Rossbys, UK's largest Home Tesdiles Retail
Chain Company for LIS $40 million

= Dan River Inc. a step down subsidiary of GHCL Limited,
acquired H W Baker Lenin Co. having a turnover of US §70
milllion for S $56.75 million

* GHCL acquired Best Manufacturing Group of USA for a
cansideration of US $35 milion through its international
subsidiary GHCL Inc.

= GHCL consolidates Dan River operations, improved order
book, led by strong marketing, outsourcing and HR initiatives
and has developed over 50 wvendor relationships for the
outsourcing from India, China, Pakistan, Mexico, Combodia
and Turkey. Dan River incraases its disnt base lo over 200

* Company commissions additional 25000 spindles for spinning,
total capacity now at 1,15,000 spindles. Expansion to add
further 25,000 spindles progressing as per schedule

= GHCL completed the expansion of additional 2.5 lacs MTPA
capacity at its plant in Sutrapada In Gujarat. The total capacity
of the Indian soda ash operations has gone up 1o B.5 Lacs
MTPA. Increases its market share to 45% in northern markets
and 35% in the wastern markets of India

+ Globally the company’s total soda ash capacity has increased
io 11.5 lacs MTPA, including 3,00,000 MTPA capacity at lis
Romanian operations S.C. GHCL Upsom S_A.

= GHCL Romania Is galning preferred vendor status in Romania
and has added 10 Marques clients in the dense soda ash
(glass area) namely Saint Gobain, Owens, Guardian, Sirom
and P&G signalling strong growth in automobiles, construction
and FMCG

= GHCL Limited registered an all-round improvement in its
operations

GHCL has over the recant past has its position in the developed

markets of the west by making strong inroads into the new

customers [ clients base and consaolidating the relationship with
the existing ones.

The successful integrafion of Indian and foreign operations both

In the soda ash and texdiles businessaes has been a huge plus to

us. Givan the strength of company’s operations and encouraging

levels of custormer demand, the company remains positive on the
performance in the coming times and expact to post improved
mangins going forward.

Human Resource Development
As on March 31, 2007, the Company had 2432 employees

wha have different academic background and diverse work

expenence to their credit. In the last few yaars, the focus
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has bean on pecple developmant and enhancing the
human capital of the company.

GHCL has been constantly endeavoring to execute policies
and programs for enhancing people’s competency,
capability and empowerment. The organization has
executed a new and objective Performance Management
System, which encourages good performance and adds to
the company's profitability. The system has been In
operation for more than three years and has been widely
received well and acclaimed. Further, to prepare the
arganization to meet the future challenges from domestic
and international players we have introduced/introducing
some of the management tools like Competency Profiling,
Job Ewvaluation, Leadership Development and Career
Planning.

As a people driven organisation, GHCL always strives to
make affective utilisation of the compatencies of its human
resource o surge forward to the future, which Is highly
complex and challenging. The organisation culture and
commitment of the company to its people reflect in the
molivation levels and achievements of ils employees.
Customer orientation is a key elemant in company's
functions and the organisation has set highest standards in
sarvicing its customers — both internal and external. The
company has slarted a few initiatives for further sharpening
the leadership skills of its execulives and embarked on a
change management programmea fo go in line with the
business plans. The objective is to make available a human
resource pod, which is willing and capable to take on the
tasks and challenges lie ahead. Subordinate development
and career planning form and important part of the senior
executives' key result areas in the organisation.

GHCL has constantly been rationalising/restructuring its
manpower and up-grading its quality. It is the endeavour of
the organisation to develop an effective team where
productivity is high and accordingly, the company
continuously organises employee development
programmes covering the entire knowledge-value-skill
spectrum, During the year 2006-07, the employees
benefited from wvarious training programmes, which
covered various issues in management, technology, safetly,
health and environment.

Internal communications is a critical communications tool,
As this helps to communicate Company's Vision, Mission,
Growth plans & Developments across all functions areas,
in order to drive a consistency in messaging through

Formal Channel and drive uniformity and bonding of people
across geographies. As a growing organization, business

units are gearing up for growth in order to have each and
very GHCL employee on even keel, we have designed
intermal communications module and have started
circulating the Bimonthly e-newsletier. We continue to
maintain the highest standards in safety and health at the
work place.

Social Responsibility and Community Development
Programmes

As a responsible corporate citizen, GHCL has undertaken

various community developmeant programmes to provide
knowledge, better life, health, sanitation, education &
society welfare to the community in and around its
manufacturing location at Sutrapada in Gujarat.

&r GLOMW
B GHCL Ladies Organisalion
for Welfare

GHCL is playing an important role in strengthening the
fabric of society with a finely tuned sense of moral
responsibility towards the community of people where it
operates and the country at large.

The various CSR initiatives have been undertaken eithar
directly or through GHCL Ladies Welfare Organisation
(Glow) which involved a proactive approach towards socio-
economic development at the manufacturing locations
involving the district administration & the local
representatives. The focus areas of these programmes
have besn on:

* Education: wherein the company fries to promote
literacy and higher education by grant of scholarship &
assistance to deserving young pupils of weaker
sactions of society. The GHCL has been instrumental in
construction & renovation of school bulldings and other
basic infrastructure required for successful running of

the program,

* Healthcare & Family Welfare; wherein the company
continuously organizes medical camps and has opened
Dispensaries, The focus of the program has been on
the health care for children, disabled and the under
privileged segment of the society

+ Community Development initiatives of the
company focuses on providing civic amenities:
clean drinking water facilities to panchalyas along with
a raising awarenass about the environment protection.
The company has been continually supporting the
initiatives on upgrading the skills of the local people and
developing the socially and economically weaker
sections of the society,
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GHCL has been greatly instrumental in the development
of infrastructure facilities-improvement of roads, strest

lighting, drainage systems, etc. in the region
Apart from this, grants-in-aid help in building schools and
hospitals s belng also provided. Villages are adopted and

several health and community welfare programs are
arganized in the area around our activities.

Sources

The data has been taken from various government
sources and others like Roskil Report, Care
Research Repord, Ciligroup Indlan Textfle Sector
Report, HDFC Securities, KSA, IDC Report, eic.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & FINANCIAL REPORT FOR
THE HFTEEN MONTHS PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2007
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FORTHE FIFTEEN MONTHS PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2007
(as required under clause 49 of the Listing Agreemeant entered into with the Stock Exchanges)

1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance

Your Company believes that sustainable and long-term growth of every stakeholder depends upon the judicious and effective use
of available resources and consistent endeavour to achieve excellence in business along with active participation in the growth of
society, building of environmental balances and significant contribution in economic growth

The Governance for your Company means being true to own belief and constantly strengthening and increasing stakeholders'
values and return on investment by adopting principle of transparency, accountability and adherence of committed value creation
principles, We are firm in the belief that Corporate Govemance means commitment for achievement of value based growth and
meeating the commitment within the predefined time frame without compromising with ethical standards, set paradigms,
transparency In transactions and fixing of accountability.

2. Board of Directors

The Company understands that good and quality governance is a powerful competitive differentiator and critical to economic and
social progress. The “Board™, being the trustes of the Company, responsible for the establishment of cultural, ethical and
accountable growth of the Company, is constituted with a high level of integrated, knowledgeable and committed professionals.
The Board of the Company is independent in making its decision and also capable and committed to address conflict of interest
and Imprass upon the functionaries of the Company to focus on transparancy, accountabllity, probity, integrity, equity and
responsibility. The Compasition of the Board as on March 31, 2007 is given harain below:

COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS ON MARCH 31, 2007
Category Name of Directors No. of Diractors % of total number of
Diractors

Promoter Mr. Sanjay Dalmia 3 23.08%
- Non Executive Director | Mr. Anurag Dalmia

Mr. Meelabh Dalima
Promaoter Momines Mr. Maresh Chandra 2 15.38%
- Mon Executive Director | Mr. S H Ruparell

(Mr Mahesh Kheria — Alternate Director)
MNon Executive - Dr. B C Jain 3 23.08%
Independent Director Mr. H H Farugi

Mr. Jagdish Capoor
Representing Lending Mr. G A Tadas — Nominee IDBI 2 15.38%
Institutions Mr. B W Khanna — Mominea EXIM Bank
Executive Directors Mr. P Sampath — Managing Director 3 23.08%

Mr. R 5 Jalan — Managing Director

Mr. Tej Malhotra — Sr. Executive Director

(Operations)

TOTAL NO. OF DIRECTORS 13 100%

The Board of GHCL Limited consists of 13 Directors, 10 of whom are Mon Executive Directors. The Company has a Non Exacutive
Dirsctor as Chairman and henca the requirement thal at least ons third of the Board shall comprise of Non Executive Indepandant
Directors is complied with as the Company has § Non Executive Independent Directors. All of the Non Executive Directors have
extansive business experience and are considerad by the Board to be independant in character and judgment of the management of
the Company and free from any business or other relationship, which could materially interfere with the exercise of thelr independent
judgment.

The Board of Directors meets regularly to review strategic, operational and financial matters and has a formal schedule of matters
resarved for its decision. It approves the interim and preliminary financial statements, the annual finandcial plan, significant contracts
and capital investment along with strategic decisions like Restructuring of Business, Debt and Human Resources ele, Wherever
appropriate, the Board delagates its authority to Committess of Directors like Banking & Operations Commitiee, Investmeant /Project
Committee, Share Transfer & Investors Grievance Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committes. Information is
provided to the Board in advance of every meeting and the Chairman ensures that all Directors are properly briefed on the matiers
being discussed. The Board reviews compliance reports of applicable laws in the Board meetings and also defiberates the compliance
of code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management.

Dates of the Board Meeting are fixed in advance and agenda is circulated fo the Directors at least seven days bafore the meeting.
During the fifteen months pedod ended March 31, 2007, six Board Meatings were held on January 19, 2006, Aprll 21, 2006, June 18,
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2006, July 17, 2006, October 30, 2006 and January 29, 2007, The gap between any two Meetings has been less than four months,
ensuring compliance with the requirement of Clause 48 of the Listing Agreement and the Companies Act 1856, The attendance of
Directors atthe Board Meeting held during the fifteen months period ended March 31, 2007 is given herein below:

DATE OF BOARD MEETING
SL.NO| NAME JANUARY18,| APRIL21, | WJUNE1S, JULY 17, OCT 30, | JANUARY 29, AGM
2008 2006 2006 2006 2008 2007 ATTENDANCE
1 Mr Sanjay Dalmia o Yes Yes Yeg Yes Yes Yes
2 Mr Anurag Dalmia Yas Yas Yas Yas Yes Y Yas
3 hr Neelabh Dalmia Yes Yes s Yes Yeg Yesg Yes
4 Dr. B C Jain Yes Yea Yes ea Yes Yes Yes
5 Mr Jagdish Capoor Yes Yes Yos Yes Yes Yes [
6 Mr H H Farugi Yesa e Yes Yes Yes Yesg Yes
7 Mr G A Tadas - Yes Yos ey Yos Yos i P
Mominee IDEI
g Mr AW Khanna — Yas Yeu Yes Yes Yes e s
Momines EXIM Bank
8 Mr Naresh Chandra Moy Yes Yes Mo Yes ez Mo
10 Mr Mahesh Kheria Yau Yo Yz Yas Yag Yas Yas
{Alt. to Mr 8 H Fuparali)
11 Mr P Sampath Yos Yes Yas Yos Yas Yes Yes
12 Mr B 5 Jalan Yes Yes Yas Yas Yos Yas s
13 Mr Tej Malhotra fas Y Yes Yos Mo Yes Yes

Mote : 1. Mr. S Ruparell, Dr. B C Jain, Mr, H H Faruqi and Mr. Tej Malhotra are Bable to refire by rotation and are eligible for the re-appointment.
Information as required undar Clavse 49(V1) of the Listing Agreemant Is annexed to the notice of the AGM.

Mone of the Directors on the Board is @ Member of more than
10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Commitiees (as
specified in Clause 43 (C) (i)) across all the Companies in
which he is a Director. The necessary disclosure regarding
Directorship and Committea positions have bean made by the
Directors who are on the Board of the Company as on March
31, 2007 and the same [s reproduced hereln below:

EL | NAME o, of ha, of No. of
HO, Directorship In | Committes | Commities
other Publlc | positlons | positions held
Companies hald =8 as Membar in

Chalrman In | other Public
other Publlc | Companes
Companis

1 Mr, Snnjay Dalmin 1 -

2 Mr. Anurag Dalmia 1 - =

a Mr. Mesiabh Daimia L - -

L] Dr. B C Jain - - -

5 Mr. Jagdish Capoor & 2 2

g Mr. H H Fanugl - - -

7 Mr. G A Tadas - - -

] Mr. R W Khanna 2 - 1

] Mr, & H Ruparall M A HA

Mr, Mahash Khaeda - - -
(AR, b Mr. 5 H Rupanall)

10| Mr, Neresh Chandra 1 1 -

11| Mr, P Sampath 1 - -

12 | Mr, RS Jatan - - -

13 | Mr. Taj Malhotra - - -

Mote: For the purpose of considering the limit of the number of
directorship and chairman’member of committees, Private
Limited Companies and Forelgn Companias are excluded.
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During the fifteen months pericd ended March 31, 2007, the
Company has not antarad info any transaction with its Non
Executive Directors, which establishes any pecuniary
relationship with them. Thus the requirement of Clause 49,
pertaining to independence of Non Executive Directors has
baan duly complied with.

The Audit Commitlee of the Board of GHCL Limited has
reviewed the financial statements of its subsidiaries.

The requirement of appointment of an Independent Director of
GHCL Limited on the Board of Colwell and Salmon
Communications (India) Limited Is nol mandatory as the
tumover / net worth criteria a5 mentioned in the Listing
Agresment is not applicable.

3. Committess of the Board
(i} AuditCommittes

The Board of Directors had constituted the Audit Committee
with four Independent Directors having expertise in financial
and accounting areas. The Audit Committee Is responsible for
the enhancement and restoration of shareholder's confidence
by promoting accountability and also to act as a catalyst for
effective financial and auditing practices by playing the rola of
Board's oversight function.

Audit Commitiee of the Board has been constituted as per
Section 292 A of the Companies Act, 1956 and the guidelines
sat outin the Listing Agreemant with the Stock Exchanges.

Terms of Reference:

The scope of activities of the Audit Committee includes the
following:

a, Owersight of the company’s financial reporting process and

the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is comect, sufficient and credible.

b. Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-

appointment and, ifrequired, the replacement or removal of
the Statutory Auditors and the fixation of audit fee and also
approval for payment for any other services.

c. Reviewing with management the annual financial
statements before submission fo the Board, focusing
primarily on;

* Matters reguired to be included in the Direclor's
Responsibility statement to be included in the Board's
Report in tarms of Section 217(2A4) of the Companies
Act, 1856

« Any changes in accounting policies and practices.

* Major accounting entries based on exercise of
judgement by management.

= Qualifications in draft audit repaort.

+ Significant adjustments arising out of audit.
+ The going concem assumption.

* Compliance with accounting standards.

« Compliance with stock exchange and legal
requirements concermning financial statemeants.

* Any related party transactions |.e. transactions of the
company of materal nalure, with promoters or the
management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may
have potential conflict with the interests of company at
large.

d. Reviewing with the management, performance of the
gtatutory and intemnal auditors” and adeguacy of internal
control systems.

a. Reviewing the adequacy of intemal audit function,
including the structure of the intermnal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
raporting structure coverage and frequency of internal
audit,

f. Discussion with intemal auditors any significant findings
and follow up there on.

g. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the
internal audilors into matters where thers is suspacted
fraud or iregularity or a failure of internal control systems of
a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

h. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commencas about the nature and scope of audit as well as
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concem.

i. Reviewing the company's financial and risk management
policies,

|. To loock Into the reasons for substantial defaults In the

payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared
dividends) and creditors.

Executive summany of the Audit Committee Meetings are
placed before the immediate next Board Mesting held after the
Audit Committea for deliberation and the full minutes of the
same are placed before the following Board Meeting for record.
The Chaiman of the Audit Committee apprises the Board on
tha recommendations made by the Committea, Further, at the
beginning of the financial year, the Committes discuss the plan
for the intermal audit and statutory audit. Dates of the Audit
Committee Mestings are fixed in advance and agenda is
circulated to the Directors at least seven days before the
meeating.

During the fifteen months period ended March 31, 2007, the
Audit Committea of the Board met eight times and as per
requiremeant of the Listing Agreement, the gap between any
two meetings of the Committes is less than four month, The
adequate guorums were present at every Audit Committes

Meeting. The Composition of Audit Committee and attendance
of members al the meeatings are given herain below;

Hame of the Committes members

Dy, B & Jaln - M, Jugdish Mr. H H Fanagl [ Mr. G A Tadas
Crabman ol the | Capoor
Commitizs
Calegory Il poeient Insclapendmn Independenl | Nomines Disscior -
Diractor Diroctor - Diroctor - IDBI Lit [Expariss
[Expeeviisa in [Experisn (Expartisn in I Firnanon &
Finanoa, Banking | Finanoe, Banking | Finanoe & Acoountrg)
& Accounting) B Acoounting) Accountingl
Date of e Mooing
Jan. 18, OF L] i i Yise
April 20, 06 o Ha L] L]
May 22. 08 s s Yog Mo
July 17,08 Yes Yos Yo Yo
Sapl 14, D6 h] Mo un ‘e
Dot 30, 06 ] Yok ik Wik
Jan, 29,07 Yisa i s Mo
Fasch 30, 07 s Wi Wi s
Whalhar ] Na Vs Ma
altandad
Lasi AGM
(sl W)

Maote:  Managing Directors, Chief Accounts Officer, Statutory
Auditors, Cost Auditors, were invitees to the Audit
Committes Meatings whenever required. Secretary of
the Company is the Secretary of the Commities,

The Company has complisd with the requirements of Clause
44 |l (A) as regards composition of the Audit Committee. Dr. B
C Jain, Chairman of the Audit Committea is a gualifiad
Chartered Accountant and an expert in Finance, Banking and
Accounting. He was present in the 23rd Annual General
Meeting held on June 19, 2008 to answer the gueries of
sharsholders.

As required under Clause 48{11l} (E) of the Listing Agreement,
theAudit Committee had reviewed the following information:

= Management Discussion and analysis of financial
candition and results of aparations.

= Statement of significant refaled party transactions
submitted by managemant.

« Managemean! leter(s)letters of Internal control,
weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors.

* Intermal Auditor's Reports relating to intermal control
weaknesses.

» Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the
Imtamal auditors.

(ii) Remuneration Committee:

The Company is transparent in compensation policy of
Directors. Tha Remuneration Committes of the Company was
constituted as early as 1895, The Remuneration Commities
sets the overall policy on remuneration and the other terms of
employment of Executive Directors of the Company as well as
the sitting fee and commission to tha Mon Executive Directors
within the overall celling fixed by members of the Company and
recommend the same for the approval of the Board. The
Committee recommends remuneration package of Executive
Directors to the Board by reference to individual performance,
experence and market conditions with & view to providing a
package which is appropriate for the responsibilitias involved.

The executive summary of the Remuneration Committee
Meealing is placed before the immediate next Board Meeating
held after the Remuneration Committee for deliberation and
the full minutes of the same are placed before the following
Board Meeting for record. Dates of the Remuneration
Committee Meeting are fixed in advance and agenda is
circulated to the Directors in advance.

During the fiftean months pariod ended March 31, 2007, the
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Remuneration Committes met three times. The Remuneration
Committaa of the Board comprises of Mon-Executive Directors
and the details of meeting attended by the Directors are as
follows:

COMFPOSITION AND ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS AT THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS HELD DURING THE

FIFTEEN MONTHS PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

Mame of the Committee Members
Mr. Sanjay Dadmia - | De. BC Jain Mr. HH Fanugl
Chaimmanof e
Carrenites
Category of Disector | Non Executive Mon Executive - Hon Exacutive -
Direcior Indapendant Direcior | Independent
(Industriafisl) |{Exparizain Firance | Dimctor
Banking & (Experisain
Accourting) Financa &
Aeeniiting)
Dt o the Meesng
IMarch 31, 2006 L= s ‘g
Apil 21, 2006 s oy s
June 18, 2006 s s s
Whesther atiended s s ) -
LLast AGM [ Yos/ No)

Remuneration Policy:

Payment of remuneration to the Managing / Whola Time
Diraclor(s) is govemed by the Uniform Remuneration Package
approved by the Board and the Shareholders. Thair
Remuneration structure comprises salary / commission linked
to profits, perquisites and allowances, contribution to provident
fund and Superannuation.

The Non - Executive Directors do not draw any remuneration
from the Company other than the sifting fee and such
commission as may be determinad by the Board from timea to
time within the overall approval given by the shareholders.

Details of remuneration, commission and sitting fee
paidipayable to the Directors of the Company for the fifteen
months period ended March 31, 2007 are given balow:

Non-Wholetime Directors ({in Rupees)
Name Sitting Fees Commission
Mr. Sanjay Dalmia 1,50,000 22,00,000
Mr. Anurag Dalmia 1,05,000 22,00,000
Mr. Nealabh Dalmia 1,05,000 22,00,000
Dr. B C Jain 2,895,000 22,00,000
Mr. Jagdish Capoor 2,10,000 22,00,000
Mr. H H Farugi 2,985,000 22,00,000
Mr. G A Tadas — Nominee IDEI* 1,890,000 22,00,000
Mr. R W Khanna— Nominee 1,058,000 22,00,000
EXIM Bank"

Mr. Maresh Chandra 80,000 22,00,000
Mr. Mahesh Kheria 1,058,000 22,00,000
(Alternate to Mr S H Ruparsll)

TOTAL 16,40,000 2,20,00,000

Maote: Commission payable to all or any one of the Mon Whole
Time Director shall in aggregate not exceed 1% per annum of
the nat profit of the Company calculated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956,

*Commission and Sitting fee paid to institutions which they
represent.
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Whole Time Directors {in Rupees)

Name Salary and other Commission
perquisites®

Mr P Sampath, 53,17 ,487 2,30,00,000
Managing Director

Mr R S Jalan, 53,17 ,487 2,30,00,000
Managing Director

Mr Tej Malhotra, 31,05,501 1,30,00,000
Sr. Exacutive Director

Total 1,37,40,475 5,90,00,000

(a) The agreement with the Whole Tima Directors is fora
peariod of five years, Either party to the agreement is
entitted to terminate the agreement by giving six
calendar month prior notice in writing to the other
party.

(b) Presently the Company has a scheme of Stock
Options for its employees including Whole Time
Directors of the Company.

(c) Includes Company's contribution fo Provident Fund
and Superannuation Fund.

(iii} Share Transfer and Grievance Handling Committes:

The Board had consfituted the Share Transfer & Investors
Grievance Committee. The committee expedite the process of
redrassal of complaints like non-transfer of sharas, non-racaipt
of Balance Sheael, non-receipt of declared dividends, elc. The
Committes meet at least once in a week to expedite all matters
relating to Shareholders / Investors Grievances received and
pending during the previous week. During the fifteen months
period ended March 31, 2007, skty two Meetings of the
Committes wera hald.

The composition of Committes as on March 31, 2007 is as
under:

§.No MName Status

1 Mr. Anurag Dalmia Chalrman
2 Mr. Meelabh Dalmia Member
3 Mr. P Sampath Member
4 Mr. R S Jalan Mamber
5 Mr. Mahash Kheria Member

The Company addresses all complaints and grievances
expeditiously and replies are sentissues resolved usually
within fifteen days, unless there is a dispute or other lagal
constraints, The Company received 38 shareholders
complaints from Stock Exchanges and SEBI thatl inter—alia
include non-receipt of dividend, share transfer (including
demat etc, ) and non receipt of annual report. The Complaints
were duly attended to and the Company has fumished
necessary documents / information to the shareholders.

Status of total complaints received during the fifteen
months period ended March 31, 2007:

8. Typeol Total Mool Total o of M. ot

Mo Complaints Cormplainis Complains Complairs
meshedduing  mecheddurng pendngas
paticd froen percd Irorm onMarch3,
January1,2006  January1,2008 2007
o Merch 31, 2007 toManch 31, 2007

1 Norreceiptof dividend 4% 4%

2 Shareanslerincluding z 2
Drred recquest

3 Monmcepioifnrusifiepot & 2
Totel 719 718

The Share Transfer and Investors Grievance Committea
raviews summary of the complaints received and appropriate
action is taken promptly. Mo requests for share transfer or
payment of dividend are pending except those that are
disputed or sub—judice.

Mr. Bhuwneshwar Mishra, Company Secretary of the
Company was present at all Meeting of the Committes as the
Secratary of the Commitiee.

Mr. Bhuwneshwar Mishra, Company Secretary is the
Compliance Officer of the Company alongwith Mr. Pramod
Mehendala, Intime Spectrum Registry Limited (Share Transfar
Registrar ofthe Company)

(iv) Bankingand Operations Committee

The Board, had constituted the Banking and Operations
Committee o expadita the day to day funclioning and axercise
of delegated powers of the Board. This Committee meets as
per the requirement of business, to expedites all matters relating
to operations and granting authority for varous functional
requirements such as issue of Power of Attomey, arranging /
negotiating of term loans, warking capital loan, short term lean,
dealings with Central / State Governments Including their
agents and various statutory / judicial / regulatory / local /
commercial f excise / customs / port / sales tax [ income lax /
electricity board etc. and other authorities on behalf of the
Company in line with the delegated authority of Board of
Directors from time to time.

The composition of the Commitiee as on March 31, 2007 is
as under:

5l. No Name Status

1 Mr. P Sampath — Managing Director Member

2 Mr. R S Jalan — Managing Director Member

a Mr. Taj Malhotra - Sr. Executive Director Member
(Operations)

4. General Body Meeting:

a) The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company
were held within the Statutory Time period and the details
of tha same are reproduced harain balow:

Financial Year Date Time Venue

2005 Juna 19, 2008 10.30 AM  The Institution of

(2 months) Enginears {India),
Gujarat State Centre,
Bhaikaka Bhavan,
Law College Foad,
Ahmedabad-380 006

2004-2005 Sepl. 2, 2006 10.30AM  The Institution of
Enginears (India),
Gujarat State Centra,
Bhalkaka Bhawvan,
Law Coflege Road,
Ahmedabad-380 006

2003-2004 Sepl. 24, 2004 10.30AM  The Institution of
Engineers (India),
Gujarat State Cantre,
Bhaikaka Bhawvan,

Law College Road,
Ahmedabad-380 006

Tha last three Extraordinary Genaral Meatings were hold as undar:

Financial Year  Date Timea Venue

2008-2007 August 4, 20068 10.30 AM  The Institution of
Enginears (India),
Gujarat State Centre,
Bhaikaka Bhavan,
Law College Foad,
Ahmedabad-380 006

2000-2001 Dec. B, 2000 11.00AM  Gajar Hall, Marirman,
Bhawan, Law Codlege,
Fioad, Ahmadabad

1589-2000 Dec.3,1998 11.00 AM  Gajar Hall, Nariman,
Bhawan, Law Codlega,
Fioad, Ahmadabad

(b) Special Resolutions:
ni General |

The following special resolulions were passed in previous
Three Annual Genaral Maetings.

Year 2005 (2 months)
«  Paymentof Commission to Non Executive Directors
+  Approval of Employees Stock Options Scheme (ESOS)

+ Increase in the Foreign Institutional Investors (Flis)
investment limit

Year 2004-05
«  Alteration of Articles of Association
+  |zsueof securilies in foreign markets  international offer

+ Issue of wamants convertible into equity shares on
preferential basis

«  Payment of Sitting Fees and Commission to MNon
Executive Directors

Year 2003-04
+  Appointment of Statutory Auditors

Extraordinary Ganeral Meeting

The following special resolutions were passed In the
Extracrdinary General Meeting held on August 4, 2006:

+ Issue of wammanis convertible into equity shares on
preferential basis to the Promoter’s company

{c) Mo Special Resolution was passed in the last year through
postal ballot and hence the provisions relating to postal
ballot were not applicable.

(d) All Special Resolutions moved at the above AGMs and
EGM were unanimously passed by a show of hands by the
shareholders present at the meeting and no resolutions
were put to vote by postal ballot.

5. Disclosures:

Disclosure on materially significant related party
transactions

Mo transactions of a material nature have been entered into by
the Company with its promoters, Directors, or the management
aor relalives etc. that may have potential confiict of interest of
the Company. Transactions with related parties are disclosed
in the notas to the accounts in this Annual Report,

Disclosure of accounting freatment in preparation of
financial statements

GHCL Limited has followed the guidelines of Accounting
Standards laid down by the Institute of Charered Accountants
of India {ICAIl} inthe preparation of its financial statements.

Detalls of non compliance by the Company, penalties,
strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock
Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on the matter
related to capital markets, during the last three years.

GHCL Limited has complied with all the requirement of
regulatory authorities. Mo penalties/strictures were imposed
on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory
autharity, on the matler related to capital markets, during the
lastthree years.

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and
adopticn of the non mandatory requirements of Clause 49
ofthe Listing Agreemeant

Code for prevention of insider trading practices

In complianca with the SEBI regulation on prevention of Insider
Trading, the Company has placed a comprehensive code of
conduct for its management and its staff. The Code lays down
guidelines, which advises them on procedures fo be followed
and disclosures to be made, while dealing with shares of the
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Company and cautioning them of the consequences of Pursuant to the requirement of Clause 51 of Listing Agreemant, 8. General shareholder’s Information:

violations. Company has also posted its quartery and half yearly resulls
CodecfCo : through Electronic Data Information Fling and Retrieval 5l No. | Particulars Detalls
- nduct: {E[HF.:‘!.R}DH“'HWE““EM:MLM q Annual General Meeting Manday, July 30, 2007 10:15 AN | The Ingtilitution of Enginsars (Inda), Gugarat Stals
GHCL Limited has well defined policy framework which lays Risk Management: Canire, Bhaikaks Bhavan, Lew College Foad,
down procedures to be adhered to by all Board Members and Ahmedshad - 380 008
Senlor Management for ethical professional conduct. The The Company shall lay down procedures to inform Board
Code outlines fundamental ethical considerations as well as members about the risk assessment and minimization 2 Financial Calendar
specified considerations that need to be maintained for procedures. These procedures shall be periodically
professional conduct. The Annual Report contalns the reviewed to ensure that executive management controls Financial Aaeporting for - Cuarter - 1 {anding .June 30, 2007) 3rd / 4th week of July 2007
declaration to this affect that the Code of Conduct has baan rizk through means of a properly defined framawork. Financiz| Reporting for - Quarter - Il (ending Septamber 30, 2007} 3rd [ 4th week of Ociober 2007
complied by the Board Members and Senior Management. Financial Reporting for - Cluarter - 1|l (ending December 31, 2007) 3rd / 4th week of January 2008
The Company has complied with the above requirement. !
'gl; ;ﬁﬂ of C:;‘nc':iljl-ﬂahﬁ n:lw posted on the websile of the pany il ke Financial Reporting for - Guarter - IV {ending March 31, 2008) rd / ath week of April 2008
Www.ghclindia.com
3 Date of Book Closure Manday, July 23, 2007 to Monday, July 30, 2007 (both days inclusive)
4 Dividand Paymant Final Dividend @ 27% (l.e. Rs. 2.70 per share) will be paid on or after Friday, August 3, 2007,
it approved by the members in tha ensuing Annual General Maating
6. Means of communlications:
] Listing on Stock Exchanges Name & Address of Stock Stock Code SN WITH NSDL &
Exchanges CDEL
51. | Particulars Quarter - | Quartar - I | Quarter - Il | Quarter - IV | Financial Year Tha Siock Exchange, Mumbai, BOOATH INE 539 AD1019
Ho. (15 Months) Phiroze Jeejeabhoy, Dalal Street,
endead Murnbai - 400 004
March 31, 2007
Mational Siock Exchange of India GHCL INE 538 A01019
1 | English Mewspapers | Business Standard |April 22, 2006 | July 18, 2008 - January 30, |- Limited , *Exchange Plaza®,
in which quarterly 2007 Bandra -Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
results were published Mumbal - 400 051
The Economic Times |Aprll 24, 2006 | July 18, 2008 Nevember 1,| January 31, | May 3, 2007 The Stock Exchangs, Ahmedabad, 20650 INE 532 AD1019
2006 2007 KamDhanu Complex, Opp. Sahajan
The i At 22 . - January 30, |- and College, Ahmadabad - 380 015
Business Line 2007 & Listing Exchange of Forsign Currency Singapors Stock Exchangs 3 XS0229495762
The Indlan Express |- - - . May 1, 2007 Camartihie Porias
T Listing fees: Listing fee for all the aforesaid Stock Exchanges have been paid for the financial year
2 | Vernacular Newspapers| Jal Hind Aprll 22, 2006 | July 18, 2006 Movember 1,| January 30, | May 2, 2007 pariod ended March 31, 2007
in which quarterty (Gujarati) 2006 2007
results wers publizhad 8 Details of Ragistrar and Share Transfar Intime Spectrum Registry Limited, C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, LBS Marg, Bhandup
Agant {West), Mumbal - 400 078.
3 | Websile Address of the Company on which www.ghel co.in
financial resuits ara postad Phone: 022 25863838, Fax: 022 25846869 (Emall : isd@ intimespectrum.com)
4 wa::::hﬁ#ﬂ'ﬁﬂlaﬂ]ﬂr ﬁ'-euflnm Emhmtﬂ Guarier = | Quarter - Il Quarter = Il | Quartar = IV F;i:ﬂ::llt:lfmr a Dutstanding GOR=/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments:
o bzt ot 7 Lm “Hn::'nh 31 1. The Company had issued an aggregate of US$ 80.5 milllon Foreign Currency Converiible Bonds {(FCCBs) at a coupon rate of 1%. The
2007 2 subscribers have an opilon to convert bonds into shares at & price based on price mechanism determined in the offering documents,
Presently bond can be convarted al a price of As. 197271 per share. Such conversion oplion is exercizable betwesn September 2006
Name of Stock Wabsite Date of Filing of Results fo March 2011, Howswver, no notice of convarsion 15 received to the Company.
Exchange (s) Address (es) 2. The Company had lssued £5,00,000 warranis convertible into equity shares on preferential basis to the promoters of the Company, The
warrant holders are antitled to substitute one equity shares of Re. 10/- each al a price of RAs. 14794 each, in accordance with SEE|
Natlonal Stock www.nseindlacom  |April 21, 2008 | July 17, 2008 October 30, | January 29, | April 30, 2007 {DIF} guidefines, al ary time within elghtesen months from the date of allotment of warrants i.e. October 23, 2008 against which 10% of
Exw“?;;é}'"drﬂ 2006 2007 the issue price has been recelved by the Company.
The Bombay Stock | www.bseindia.com  |April 21, 2006 | July 17, 2006 October 30, | January 29, |April 30, 2007 10 | Addressfor Comespondance
Exch Lid. {BSE 2006 200
ik i { } . Share Transfer Systemn: Company processes the share transfar and other related shareholders services through Registrar & Share Transfer
Agenl (ATA) on a weekly basis, The share transfer in physical lorm are registerad within 15 days from the date of receipl, providesd the
documents are complata in all respects, The Company provides facility for simultaneous transfer and Dematerialization of equity shares as per
the procedures providad by NSDLICDSL. For any assistance regarding dematerialization of shares, share fransfars, transmissions, change of
. address, non receipt of dvided or annual report or ottuar relating 1o shares please wiite to Intime Specturm Reglstry Limited,
During the fifteen months period ended March 31, 2007, the Company has made the following press release and the same has been c-13, mm-.-s.-ﬂ Mills Compound, LES uug.wamm:nm ;Em-.- - 400 O78. Phone: 022 25963838, Fax: 022 25946969
communicated to the Stock Exchanges. 2
{Emaill : lsrl@intimespectrum.com)
p : FAIRICHL PR oy e UG Ol L6 o SR 1 For Gi I G d GHCL Limited, “GHCL Ho Opp. Punjabi Hall, Near Ma Ahmedsbad - 380 009
P 1 BnNara Qrmaspondance; m e use” Opp. | all, lhear Vrangpura, i - &
August21,2006 - Engagement of consultant for business restructuring Phone : 079 -26427618/26442677, 079-30918805, Fax: 079-26423623 (Email : secretarial @ ghcl.co.in)
February 12, 2007 : Acquisition of Best Manufacturing Group
Dematerlallzation of Shares and Liguidity: #9.80% of the outstanding shares are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2007, The trading
7. Managemant Discussion and Analysis Report form part of this Annual Report in the Company's shares is permitied only in dematerialized form with effect from October 28, 2000 a5 per nofification issued by SEBI.
The compiete reports on Management Discussion and Analysis report are placed in the separate section of the Annual Report.
12 As required under Clause 48 {IV) (G) of Listing Agreement, particulars of Directors seeking appointment! re appolntment are ghven in Notice
to the ensuing Annual General Meating.
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MONTHWISE STOCK MARKET DATA (BSE & NSE) RELATING TO EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY FOR THE PERIOD

OF FIFTEEN MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

Months of the BSE, MUMBAI NSE, MUMBAI
financial year 2007 Share Price Traded Quantity Share Price Traded Quantity
High Low High Low

January 08 135.40 119.00 TETITE 135.50 12015 23322135
February 06 137.90 121.00 3862207 137.65 126.15 BT75B827
March 06 174.00 129.00 8898997 169.05 127.50 20472704
April 06 183.00 156.00 2735077 192.70 152.00 BEE1941
May 06 180.20 135,00 1385403 191,70 145,00 4884188
June 06 169.00 80.00 7147371 168.00 80.95 22494761
July 06 14560 120.55 3699800 145.00 123.20 13152646
August 06 183.70 128.50 11708345 184.00 130.20 23858937
September 06 180.00 159.50 7575680 186.90 161.00 12489207
October 06 180.00 169.55 4369913 180.00 165.60 6063238
Maovember 06 1685.00 173.00 5720013 194.30 172.50 101582374
December 08 180.50 165.60 12395632 180.00 155.65 15500888
January 07 174.00 161.55 7627136 174.75 161.00 12318634
Fabruary 07 1684.00 161.00 4381075 162.80 155.65 11626635
March 07 170.80 145.25 9469887 171.20 145.55 17954433

Parormance In comparison to broad based indices such as NSE

[ETat— ] febarem ot ] Famrws P o ol

Shareholders Referencer
Unclaimed Dividend

Pursuant to Section 206 A of the Companies Act, 1956
unclaimed dividend for the financial years 1988-99 and 1993-
2000 have been/will be transferred to the Investors Education
and Protection Fund established by the Central Governmeant
{IEPF) pursuant to Section 205 C of the Companies Act, 1958
and no claim shall lie with the Company in respect of the
unclaimed dividend transferred to IEPF for the financial year
1998-99 and 1989-2000.

The dividend for the following years remaining unclaimed for
saven years will be fransferred by the Company to IEPF
according to the schedule given below. Shareholders who
have not so far encashed their dividend warrant (s) or have not
received the same are requested to seek issue of duplicate
warrant (s) by writing to the Intime Spactrum Registry Limited
confirming non—encashment / nan recaipt of dividend wamrant
(). Once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to |IEPF, no
claim shall lie In respact theraof,

@ B GHCL LUMITED

Financial Year Date of AGM Due for Transfer to IEPF

2000-01 21-09-2001 September 2008
2001-02 24-09-2002 September 2009
2002-03 28-09-2003 Septembar 2010
2003-04 24-09-2004 September 2011
2004-05 02-08-2005 September 2012
2005 (9 months) 19-06-2006 June 2013

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 3157
MARCH 2007

No. of Sharas Mo. of % of total Mo. of % of
held of Rs. 10 shareholders share sharas total
each between halding shares
From To

1 2500 38258 V6.76% 4281876 4.30%
2501 5000 7206 14.46% 2916636 2.893%

5001 10000 2587 5.18% 2247586 2 2.26%
10001 20000 8943 1.89% 1521481 1.53%
20001 S0000 243 0.49% 626373  0.63%

30001 40000 122 0.24% 448611 0.45%
40001 50000 124 0.25% 588130 0.B0%
50001 100000 109 0.22% 810816 O0.81%
100001 Above 247 0.50% BE136922 B86.49%

49837 100.00% 99588411 100.00%

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 315T MARCH 2007

Category No of % of
sharas held uhlruhuldlng_

A Promoters Holding

1 Promoters
Indian Promoters 40925190 41.08%
Forgign Promoters 5507900 5.53%
2 Others
Trust 152000 0.15%
Directors & relatives 30050 0 03%
Sub-Total 46615140 46.81%
B Non-Promoters Holding
3 Institutional Investors
Mutual Funds and UTI 1675181 1.68%
Banks, Financial Instfutions 6031561 6.06%
& Insurance Companies
Flls 2100770 211%
Foreign Mutual Fund 283670 0 28%
Sub-Tetal 10091192 10.13%
4 Non-Institutional Investors
Bodies Corporate 24402793 24.50%
Indian public 15045849 15.11%
MRis & Foreign Companles 1771200 1.78%
Others 1672237 158%
Sub-Total 42882079 43.06%
Grand Total 99588411 100.00%
Plant Locatlons:
Soda Ash Plant Village: Sutrapada Mear Veraval,

Dist. Junagadh — 362 275, Gujarat

Salt Works & Refinery (a) Ayyakaramulam,
Kadinalvayal - 614 707.
Distt Magapattinam, Tamilnadu
(b) Memeli Road
Thiruporur-603 110, Taminadu

{a) Samayanallur PO,
Madural-625 402,

(b) Thalkesar Alal PO,
Manaparai-621 312

() 5. No.191, 192, Mahala Falia,
Village Bhilad, Distt. Valsad,
Gujarat-396105, India

C — 39 Sector — 58, NOIDA

{a) Muppandal, lrukkandurai
Village Sankaneri Post
Hadhapuram Taluk,
Tirunelveli District, Tamilnadu

(b) Chinnaputhur village,
Dharapuram Taluk, Erode
District, Tamil Nadu

Textile Division

ITES Division
Energy Divislon

DECLARATION

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for all Board
Members and Senior Management of the Company, which is
posted on the Website of the Company. The Board Members
and Senior Management have affirmed compliance wilh the
Code of Conduct.

For GHCL Limited

F Sampath R 5 Jalan
Managing Director Managing Director

CERTIFICATE UNDER CLAUSE 49 (V)

Tha Board of Directors

GHCL Lid,

Wi the undersigned, certify 1o the Board that;

{a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow
statament for the perod ended March 31, 2007 and that to
the best of our knowledge and balief;

(i} these statements do not contain any materally untrue
statement or omit amy material fact or contain
staternents that might be misleading;

(i) these statements together present a true and fair view
of the company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

(by There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no
transactions entared into by the company during the year
which are fraudulent, ilegal or violative of the company's
code of conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining
internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the intemal control systems of
the company pertaining to financial reporting and have
disciosed 1o the auditors and the Audit Committes,
deficiencies in the design or operation of such intermal
contrals, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicatad to the auditors and the Audit committes-
(i} s=ignificant changes in intemal control over financial

raporting during tha pariod,

(i} significant changes in accounting policies during the
penod and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financlial statements; and

(ili)  Instances of significant fraud of which we have become
aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in
the company’s intemal control system over financial

reparting.
For GHCL Limited
P Sampath R S Jalan
Managing Diractor Managing Director

Date : June 16, 2007

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE
Tothe Members of
GHCLLIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate
govemance by GHCL Limited (‘the Company'), for the period
ended on 31st March, 2007, as sfipulated in Clause 48 of the
Listing Agreement of the Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govemance is the
responsibility of the managament, Our examination was limited to
proceduras and Implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate
Governance, It is nelther an audit nor an expression of epinion on
the financial staterments of the Company.

In our opinion and, to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the condifions of Corporgte Governance as
stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreemendt.

We further state that such compliance is naither an assurance to
the future viabllity of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

Far and en behall of For and on behall of

JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & O, RAHUL GALITAM DIVAN & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Aocountants Charered Accouniants
(C. W THAKKER) (FUAHLIL DIVAN)

Partrar Parmer

Mambarship Na: 6205 Membarship No: 100733
Place : Mew Deihi

Date : Jume 16, 2007
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AUDITORS'REPORT

To the Members of
GHCLLIMITED

1. We have audited the attached Batance Sheet of GHCL Limited as at 31st March 2007 and also the Profit and Loss Account annexed
therato and the Cash Flow Statament for the period endad on that date. These financial statements are the rasponsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statemants based on our audit.

2. We conducted our awdit in accordance with auditing standards generally sccepted in India. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit io obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a tast basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,as welfl as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We balieve that cur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

3. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2003 as amended, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (44) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
4and 5 of the said Order.

4. Furtherto our comments in the Annexure refemed to in Paragraph 3 above, we report that :
& e have obtained all the information and sxplanations, which fo the best of our knowledge and belisf, were necessary for the

purposas of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account, as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of such books;

c. The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d.  Inouropinion, the Balance Sheat, the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statemant dealt with by this report comply with
the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

e,  Inouropinionand to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given te us and read together with note no, 28 (e)
relating to FCCB issue expensas in Schedule 18, the said accournts give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
I.  inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2007,

il inthe case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the profit for the period ended on that date; and
iii. inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the period ended on that date.

f.  ©On the basis of wrilten representations recelved from the Directors as at 31st March 2007 and taken on record by the Board of

Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on 318t March 2007 from being appointed as a director.

Farand on behalf of Forand on behalf of

JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO. RAHUL GAUTAM DIVAN&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

{C. V. THAKKER) (RAHUL DIVAN)

Partner Partner

Membership No.6205 Mermbarship No. 100733

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 16, 2007

ANNEXURE TO THEAUDITORS'REPORT

(Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of the Auditors” Report of even date to the Members of GHCL Limited on the accounts for the period ended
31st March 2007.)

(i {2) Inouropinion, the Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantilative details and situation of
fixed assats.

(b} As explained to us, some of the fived assets have been physically verified by the management according to a programme of
verification which in cur opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assels, No material
discrapancies with respect to book records wera noticed on such verification.

{c) Inour opinion and according to explanations given to us, fixed assets disposed off during the period wera not substantial and as
such the disposal has not affected the going concem siatus of the Company.

(i) {a) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the management at reasonable intervals. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

(b} In our opinion, the proceduras of physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in
ralation to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

{c) Onthe basis of our examination of the records of inventory, we are of the opinion that the Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory. Discrepancies noliced on verfication of inventory as compared to book records wers not material and these have been
propery dealt with in the books of account.

(iii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither granted nor taken any loans,
secured or unsecured, to or from companies, firms or other parties as covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of the
CompaniesAct, 1956. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 4(ili) (b} {c) (d) (f) and {g)} of the order are not applicable.

{iv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are adequate infemal control systems commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchases of Inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of
goods and services. During the course of our audit, we have not cbeerved any confinuing failure to cormect major weaknesses in internal
control syslems.

(¥} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given (o us, there are no contracts and arrangements, particulars of
which need to be entered into the register maintained under Secticn 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.
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(vi) In ouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any depasit from the public
within the meaning of Section 584, 58AA of the Companies Act, 1956, and the rules framed thereunder.

(vil) Inouropindon, the Company has an intemal audit system commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(vili) We have broadly reviewad tha books of accounts maintained by the Company In respact of products whare, pursuant ta the Rulas madea
by the Central Government, the maintenance of cost records have been prescribed under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act,
1456, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determining whether they are accurate or complete,

(<) ({a) According to the records of the Company and the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been regularly
depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed stalutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection
Fund, Employes State Insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other
statutory dues applicable to it Thare are no undisputed statutory dues as referrad to above as at 315t March 2007 cutstanding fora
period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

(b) The disputed statutory dues aggregating to Rs. 54.32 million that have not been deposited on account of matters pending before the

appropriate authority are as under:
Sr. | Nameof the statute Nature of dues Forum where Period to which Amount
Mo, dispube i pending the amount relstes (Res. in Million])
1 Income Tax Act, 1961 Disallowance of Income Tax Appediate Tribunal 200102 050
deduction
] Income Tax Act, 1961 Disallowanoe of deduction, | Income Tax Appediate Tribunal 200203 a0
OHPANSHS
] Incame Tax Act, 1961 Disallowance of penses | Commissionarof Incame Tax {Appeal) 2012 1242
4 Income Tax Act, 1961 Disaliowance of expenses | ncome Tax Appealiate Tribunal 200304 1796
5 Income Tax Ac, 1961 Désallowsnce of expenses | Commisslonar of Income Tax | Appaal] 200405 351
B | Cantral Excise Acl, 1544 CENVAT credit Commissionar [Appeal) Caniral Excisa 200205 0
7 Caniral Exclse Act, 1944 CENVAT credit Commissioner (Appeal) Caniral Exclsa 2004-05 & 2005-06 102
] Urban Land Tax Act Urban Land T Madura Corporafion 10612007 260
8 Sales Tax Export disaflowanca Tha Joint Commissianar {CT) Chanral 184485 1205

(x) The Company naither has any accumulated losses at the end of the financial period nor has incurred any cash losses during the financial
pariod coverad by our audit and in the immediately precading financial period.

(xi} Based onour audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given by the managemeant, we are of the opinion that
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of duas to banks or financial institutions.

(i) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
granted any loans and advances on the basks of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

(xiil) The Company is not a chit fundfnidhi'mutual benefit fund/society to which the provisions of special statue relafing fo chit fund are
applicable,

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given by management, the Company ks not dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments.

(xv) Basedonourexamination of the records, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions on which the Company has given guarantes
forloans taken by others from banks or financial institutions are prima facie not prejudicial to the interast of the Company.

(xwi) Inouropinion, the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

(xvii) Based on our examination of the Balance Sheet and cash flows of the Company as at 31st March 2007, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we repor that funds raised on a shor-term basks have not been used for long-term investmanL.

(xwli)During the perod, the Company has not made preferential allotment of sharez to parties and companies coverad In the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956,

(xix) On the basis of records made available to us and according 1o the information and explanations given by the management, sacurities
have been created in respect of debentures Issued.

(»x) During the period, the Company has not raised money by way of public issue.

(xi) Based on the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we repord that
no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reportad during the period ended 31st March 2007,

Forand on behalf of Forand on behalf of

JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO. RAHUL GAUTAM DIVAN & ASSOCIATES
Charterad Accountants Chartered Accountants

(C. V. THAKKER) {RAHUL DIVAN)

Partner Partner

Membership No 6205 Membarship Mo, 100733

Placa ‘Mew Dalhi

Data : June 16, 2007
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH, 2007

Schedules As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
SOURCES OF FUNDS (Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Million)
Shareholder’s Funds
Share Capital 1 805.88 950.88
Advance against Preferential
Convertible Warrants 1A 66.57 29.30
Reserves and Surplus 2 3,225.80 1,981.10
. 4,288.25 — 2971.28
Loan Funds
Secured Loans 3 7,836.77 2,689.94
Unsecured Loans 4 1.45 2.90
Unsecured - Foralgn Currency
Convertible Bonds 4 A 3,500.95 3,642.63
- MNMa3ear 6,335.47
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 1,198.12 7B7.50
Total 16,825.54 10,094.25
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets
Gross Block 13,196.08 7,598.17
Less : Depreciation 4,362.67 3,789.15
MNet Block 5 8,833.41 3,809.02
Capital Work-in-Progress 517.07 911.186
Advances against capital expenditure 240.38 212.72
- 9.590.86 ~ 4,932.90
Investments 1,338.57 1,084.87
Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Inventories 213117 1,081.52
Sundry Debtors 1,118.75 773.18
Cash and Bank Balances 444.00 1,020.43
Loans and Advances 4,334.34 2,955.88
8,028.26 5 831 02
Less : Current Liabilities and Provisions a
Current Liabilities 1,823.38 1,587.09
Provisions 317.85 335.53
2,141.23 1,922.62
Met Current Assets 5,887.03 3,908.40
Miscellaneous Expenditure
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
Deferred Revenue Expenses 9.08 168.08
Total " 16,825.54 10,004.25
MNotes on Accounts 16
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
Ag per our report attached For and on behall of the Board
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
Jayantilal Thakkar & Go,  Rahul Gautam Divan & Associates Sanjay Dalmia F. Sampath
Chartered Accountants Charlered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
{C. V. Thakker) {Rahul Divan) Dr. B.C. Jain A.S. Jalan
Pariner Pariner Director Managing Director
M. Giridhar Bhuwneshwar Mishra

Place : New Dalhi
Date : June 16, 2007

@ GHCL LIMITED

Sr. General Manager - Accounts  Company Secretary

Flace : Mew Delhi
Crate : June 16, 2007

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FORTHE PERIOD ENDED 31" MARCH, 2007

Schedules

INCOME
Sales - Gross
Less: Excise Duty
Income from Sarvices
Other Income 2]
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENDITURE
Manufacturing Expenses 10
Purchase of Trading Goods
Payments to and Provisions for Employeas 1
Administrative and Miscellaneous Expenses 12
Selling and Distribution Expenses 13
Excise Duty
(Increass) / Decrease in Stock 14

Profit Before Financial Expenses and Depreciation
Financial Expanses 15
Profit Before Depreciation
Dapraciation / Amortisation
Galn / (Loss) on Exceptional Itemn (MNet)
Profit Before Taxation
Pravision For Taxes
= Current Tax

Fringe Benefit Tax
= Deferred Tax (MNet)
Profit For The Year after Tax
Balance brought forward from pravious year
Prior pariod adjustmant
Excess [ (Short) provision for Tax for earlier years
Excess / (Short) provision for Deferred Tax for earlier years
Debenture Redemption Reserve written back
Investment Allowance Researve written back
Amount Avallable For Appropriation
APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to General Reserve

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares

Tax on Dividend

Balance Carried To Balance Sheet

Eamings per Share (Rupees) - Basic {15/9 Months)
Earnings per Share (Rupees) - Diluted (15/9 Months)
Eamnings per Share (Rupees) - Basic (Annualized)

Eamings per Share (Rupees) - Diluted (Annualized)

(See note no. 31 of Schedule 16)

Notes on Accounts 16

For the Period Ended  For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)  31.12.2005 (9 Months)

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
11,568.90 5,205.92

82845  10,640.45 487.29 4,718.63
87.4 54.36
104.84 4087
10 ] 4 B22 86
4,883.25 2,396.85
1,660.05 206.86
563.01 257,86
489.86 239.80
701.35 393,81
(3.98) 10.95
—(331.53) __ (78.98)
— 7,962,001 __ 342715
2,870.69 1,305.71
187.58 78.00
2,683.11 1317.71
587.14 296.83
§3.76 -
2,159,73 1,020.88
249.14 300,59
14.54 8.74
413.27 (9.76)
~ 1,482.78 721.31
1,349.06 912.92
4.15 (12.01)
(16.80) 1.29
265 2.60
91.67 5534

108 60
3,022.11 1,681.45
148.50 7218
268.89 228,21
45.70 32,00
2,550.02 1,349.06
302201 1,681.45
15.41 7.50
13.81 T.ar
12.32 10.00
11.05 9.82

The Schedules referred to above form an Integral part of the Profit and Loss Account

As per our report attached
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of

Jayantilal Thakkar & Co.  RAahul Gautam Divan & Associates

Chartered Accountants Charterad Accountants

(C. V. Thaklar) {Rahul Divan)
Partnar Partner

Place : Mew Daihi
Date : June 16, 2007

For and on behalf of the Board

Sanjay Dalmia F. SBampath

Chairman Managing Director
Dr. B.C. Jain R. 8. Jalan

Director Managing Director

M. Giridhar Bhuwneshwar Mishra

Sr. General Manager - Accounts  Company Secretary

Flaca : Mew Delhi
Date : June 16, 2007
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315" MARCH, 2007

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

For the Period Ended  For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)  31.12.2005 (9 Months)

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit befora tax and Extraordinary items 2,168.73 1,020.88
Adjustment for :
Dapreciation / Amortisation 587.14 206,83
Foreign Exchange Gain (Met) (11.72) {9.60)
(Gain) / Loss on Exceptional ltem (63.76) -
Income from Investments (0.03) -
Income from Dividend (0.50) (0.10)
Investment written off - 0.07
Prior Period Adjustments 4.15 {12.01)
(Profit) / Loss on Sales / Discarding of Fixed Assets (Net) 1.33 0.37
Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances (Mat) 0.10 6.58
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Invesiments (MNet) (9.80) (4.42)
Financial Expenses (Met) 187.58 554.49 78.00 355.72
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2,854.22 1,376.60
Adjustments for :
Trade & other Receivables (1,083.10) (128.01)
Invantories {1,049.65) (137.92)
Trade payables (216.84) (2,349.59) 106.00 (158.83)
Other Adjustments
Deferred Revenue Expenses 28.10 (77.10)
Gratuity liability for past services (40.55) -
Cash Generated from Operations 492.18 1,138.57
Direct taxes paid !WB.TT! (211.08)
Net cash from Operating Activities ; 92759
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixad Assets (4,641.65) {1,220.34)
Subsidies Received 41.66 -
Advance for Capital Expenditure (27.66) (186.91)
Sale of Fixed Assets 15.80 14.92
(Purchase) / Sale of Investmeants 9.80 103.42
Investment / Advances in Subsidiaries (775.79) {3,011.37)
Income from Investments 0.03 -
Interest Recaived 113.61 56.24
Dividend Received 0.50 0.10
Net cash used in Investing Activities “15.263.70)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from issue of Share Capital including Securities Pramium 263.66 -
Procesds from Secured Loans 5,507.10 1,026.81
Advance against Preferential Warrants 66.57 28.30
Repayment of Secured Loans (380.27) (345.06)
Repayment of Unsecured Loans {1.45) {1.79)
Proceeds from Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds - 3,642.63
Gain on Exchange 11.72 8.60
Interest and Finance Charges Paid (616.68) (131.33)
Dividend and Tax therson paid (268.81) (209.56)
Met Cash from Financing Activities 4.601.86 4,020.60
Met Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 576.43 685,25
Cash and Cash Equivalents at baginning of period 1,020.43 32518
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of Period 444.00 1.020.43
Mote :
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 444.04 1.000.75
Effect of exchange rate changes Gain / (Loss) (0.04) 19.68
Cash and Cash Equivalents as restated 444.00 1,020.43
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
Jayantilal Thakkar & Co.  Rahul Gautam Divan & Associates  Sanjay Dalmia F. Sampath
Chartered Accountants Charered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
{C. V., Thakker) {Rahul Divan) Dr. B.C. Jain R. 5. Jalan
Pariner Pariner Dirsctor Managing Director
M. Giridhar Bhuwneshwar Mishra
Sr. General Manager - Accounts  Company Secretary
Place : New Dalhi Place : Mew Dalhl
Date : June 16, 2007 Dwate : June 16, 2007
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SCHEDULE 1 : SHARE CAPITAL

As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
{Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
SHARE CAPITAL T
Authorised
175,000,000 (PY. 100,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,750.00 1,000.00
Mil (P.Y. 25,000,000) Unclassified Shares of Rs.10/- each - 250.00
1,750.00 1,250.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
99,588,411 (PY. 95,088,411) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each fully paid up 995.88 950.88
995.88 950.88
MNotes :

1) a) During the period the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 1,250 million to
Rs. 1,750 million.

b) 25,000,000 unclassified Shares of Rs. 10/- each were classified into 25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-
each.

2) a) 21,250,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up were issued to Financial Institution at par on conversion
of loan of As. 212.50 Million.

b} 1,838,011 Equity Shares of As. 10/- each fully paid up were issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation
for consideration other than cash.

c) During the period 4,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up were issued to the Promoter

Company at a premium of As. 55.10 per share upon exercising the option of conversion of 4,500,000 Preferential
Convertible Warrants into Equity Shares.

SCHEDULE 1A : ADVANCE AGAINST PREFERENTIAL CONVERTIBELE WARRANTS

As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. in Million) (Rs. In Million)
4,500,000 Preferential Convertible Warrants of Rs. 65.10 each - 29.30
4,500,000 Preferential Convertible Warrants of As. 147.94 each 66.57
66.57 29,30

During the period :

1) 4,500,000 Preferantial Convertible Warrants were converted in tranches of 2,000,000 & 2,500,000 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 55.10 per share on 26.12.2006 & 15.03.2007 respectively. Pramium received
on conversion amounting to Rs. 247.95 million has been transferred to Securities Premium Account,

2) The Company has further alloted 4,500,000 fresh Warrants to a Promoter Company on preferential basis
convertible into Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up, in the ratio of 1:1, on or before 22.04.2008 at
Rs. 147.94 per warrant (including premium of Rs. 137.94 per share). Against this the Company has received
Rs. 14.79 per warrant, which will be forfeited if the option of conversion is not exercised before the specified date.
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SCHEDULE 2 : RESERVES AND SURFLUS

As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. In Million) (Rs. in Million)
CAPITAL RESERVE
Cash Subsidy 2.57 2.57
Surplus on re-issue of forfeited shares 1.55 1.55
4.12 412
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 137.50 192.84
Transfer to Profit and Loss Account 91.67 55.34
45.83 137.50
CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheeat 100.00 100.00
INVESTMENT ALLOWANCE RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 108.60 108.60
Transfer to Profit and Loss Account 108.60 -
- 108.60
SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT
Premium Received on Conversion of
Preferential Convertible Warrants 247.95 -
Less : Balance of FCCB Issue Expenses Written off 130.89 -
117.06 -
GEMNERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 291.82 219.64
Less : Increase In Gratuity liability for past perlods 40.55 -
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 148.50 72.18
399.77 201.82
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Balance as per account annexed 2,659.02 1,349.06
Total 3,225.80 1,991.10
SCHEDULE 3 ;: SECURED LOANS
As at As at
341.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. in Million) (RAs. in Million)
DEBENTURES
10% Non Convertible Debentures 91.67 183.33
FROM BANKS f FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Working Capital Loans 2,430.83 490.33
Foreign Currency Loans 148.45 300.44
Rupee Term Loans 5,165.82 1,715.84
Total

Motes:

7,836.77

2,680.94

1) 10% Non-Convertible Debanturas privately placed with Financlal Institutions outstanding are to be fully redeemed al par cn Bth
Movember 2007 and are sscured by registered mortgage in favour of the Trustees on immovable properties of Soda Ash Division
situated at Village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat and hypothecation of specified movable assets of Soda Ash Diviglon.

@ GHCL LIMITED

2}  Foreign Currency Loans from Banks [ Institutions have been secured against:-

a)

b}

c)

Loan aggregating to Rs. 35.23 Million has been secured against first charge by way of equitable morgage on the specified
immaovable properies of Soda Ash Division at (1) Village Sutrapada and Kadwar, Veraval in Gujarat (2) Noida in Uttar Pradesh (3)
Ahmedabad proparties and hypothecation of specifiad movable assets of Soda Ash Division both present and future.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 9.61 Million has bean gecurad by way of axclusive first charge on moveabla fixed assats partaining to the
Company's ITES Division both existing and thereafter acquired.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 103.81 Million has been secured against first charge by way of equitable mortgage on the specified
immovable properties of Soda Ash Division at village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat and hypothecation of spacified movable assets
of Soda Ash Division bath present and future.

3}  RupesaTerm Loans from Banks / Institutions have been securad against :-

a)

b)

)

d)

e)

f)

gl

h}

Loan aggregating ta Rs, T02.20 Million s sacured by first charge on par passu basis by way of equitable mortgage on Factory Land
& Building of Textile Divislon situated at Paraval and Manaparal, Tamil Nadu and hypothecation of specified movable assets both
present and future of the Company’s Textile Division. The said loan is avalled under Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme for
Textile,

Loan aggragating to Rs. 1,811.50 Million is securad by first charge on pan passu basis by way of equitable mortgage on fixed assets
of the Textile Division situated at Vapi, Gujarat and hypothecation of movable assels both present and future of the Company’s
Textile Division at Vapi, Gujarat with other term lender of the said project. The said loan is availed under Technology Upgradation
Fund Scheme for Textils.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 107.10 Million s secured by an exclusive first charge by way of equitable mortgage on immovable
properties pertaining to Wind Mill Division - | situated at Irukkandural Village, Tirunelvedl District in the state of Tamil Nadu and
hypothecation of all present and future movable assets of Wind Mill Division - |. The sald loan is avalled under Technology
Upgradation Fund Scheme for Textile.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 149.10 Milion is secured by an exclusive first charge on all present and future movable assets of Wind Mill
Division - || situated at Chinnaputhur, near Poolavadi in the state of Tamil Nadu. The said loan is availed under Technology
Upgradation Fund Scheme for Tesdile.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 82.50 Million i secured by an axclusive first charge on all present movable assets of Edible Salt Division
gituated at Thiruporur and Vedaranyam and Industrial Salt Division.

Loan aggregating to Ris. 250.00 Million is secured by way of Demand Promissory Note and first pari passu charge on movable fixed
assets of Soda Ash Division situated at Village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat,

Loan aggregating to Rs. 187.50 Million is secured by way of first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets of Soda Ash Division
situated at\Village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 1,875.92 Million is secured by way of first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets of Soda Ash Division
situated atVillage Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat.

4)  Working Capital Loans / Bill discounting from Banks / Financial Institutions are securad by way of hypothecation of stock-in-trade and
book debis of Soda Ash/ Home Textile Division / Edible Salt/ Textile Divisions and second charge on fixed assets of Soda Ash Division /
Home Texdtile Division, both present and fulure.

5) Specified movable assets referred to in the above notes include all movable assets of Soda Ash Division (save and except book debts
and assets acquired on Hire Purchase) both present and future but subject to prior charge created and / or that may be created |n favour
of Company's Bankers on stock-in-trade for securing borrowing for working capital.

SCHEDULE 4 : UNSECURED LOANS

As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
{Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Million)
Interest free Sales Tax loan 1.45 2.90
Total 1.45 2.90
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SCHEDULE 4 A : UNSECURED FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
Foreign Currency Gonvertible Bonds 3,500.95 3,642.63
Total 3,500.95 3,6842.63

The Company has issued 1% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) of a face value of US § 10,000 each, aggregating
to US § 80.50 Million. As per the terms of tha issue, the subscribers have an option to convert bonds into Equity Shares at
a price which has beean fixed as of 21st Seplember 2006 at Rs. 197.271 (US § 1 = Rs. 45.838) such conversion option is
exercisable between 21st September 2008 and 21st March 2011, The FCCBs may be redeemed in whole, but not in part,at
the option of the Company at any time on or after 21st September 2008 and prior to 21st March 2011, at an early redemption
amount on predetermined terms. Unless praviously converded, radesmed or cancellad, the FCCBs will be redesmed in US
Dollars on 21st March 2011 at 132,426 % of their principal amount. As on 31st March 2007 none of the FCCBs have been
converted Into Equity Shares.

. The Company expects that the FCCE Bond holders would opt for the conversion rather than redemption and In that case no
premium would be payable and on that basis same has not been provided and is shown as contingent liability. However the
premium, if paid would be adjusted against the available Securities Premium Account / charged to Profit and Loss Account at
the time of redemplion.

SCHEDULE 6 : INVESTMENTS

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (AT COST)

OTHER THAN TRADE
Quoted

8300 Equity shares of HDFC Bank Limited of Rs. 10V~ sach fully paid up

68,598 Equity shares of IDBI Limited of Rs. 10/ each fully paid up
2585 Equity Shares of Dena Bank of Rs. 10/- each fully pald up
4,500 Equity Shares of Canara Bank of Rs. 10/ each fully paid up

Unguated

Govemment securities - 7 year National Savings Cedificatas
(Pladged with Governmant Authorities)

SHARES INWHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARY COMPANY - (Unguoted)

SCHEDULE 5 : FIXED ASSETS {Rs. in Million)
PARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION | AMORTISATION MET BLOCK
Asm Addittons Az al Asat Additions Azt Asal Azat
.01.2008 {Daletions) 032007 1.01.2008 {Deletions) .03.2007 032007 122005
TANGIBLE ASSETS
Leasahold Land BOLOT - ki 7.78 104 A0 5187 523
Frashold Land 305 720 326.58 320.58 0571
(6.55) .
Buildngs BED.08 411,38 128048 242 ma2 25084 1,021 52 G4T56
Piant and Machingry 5,353.64 476323 10,901.79 333578 423,68 37528 §340.683 201786
(14.08) {6.28)
Fiamiture and Fixiures T4.08 107 BT 39033 g2 A 4842 43178
[0.04) {002
Office Equipmants 548 27 117.16 5314 T8 88 g8 2e
(547) (5.24)
Viehicles MoE 455 4 1333 e 1607 1936 20,75
(481) {2.08)
Wind Turbima Generators 404,30 - 404,30 2082 2888 4750 5880 33348
Lag=ad Mines 198,19 25364 451,83 1910 3224 che 32349 170008
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Gaodwill b B - M 240 13 .o b 13
Softwars L) 1342 7T 182 148 a0 1454 270
Sall Works Resarvolrs 173.00 117.98 290,95 593 340 100.42 190.54 11207
and Pans = i
Total 758817 5 520,56 13,186.08 3,780.15 BET.14 438287 BEIA 1,500.02
(30.75) (13.62)
Prenious Yeer 726,13 34230 758817 249706 |ras 378815 280002
(20.35) (5.06)

1. Buildings include a sum of As. 8.14 Milllon {Previous Year Rs. &.14 Milion) being cost of office premises acquired on ownership basis.

2. Pending transfer of lsase rights [ extension of lease of salt fislds al Vedaranium (Tamilnadu) the advance of Rs. 45.00 Million paid has been
apportionad to varous assets as per the vaiuation report (see note 2 of Schedule 16).

3. Leased mines represent expandiure Incured on developmant of mines.
4. Cash subsidies amounting to RAs. 41.66 Million relating o Home Textile Division at Vapi has been reduced from related fixed assats.

@ H) cHcL umITED

780,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid of
Cohwell & Salmon Communications {India) Lid.

2,000  Equity Shares of US $ 1.00 each fully paid up of
Codwell & Salmon Communications Inc, USA

221,586 (PY. 174,873) Equity Shares of EURD 100 each fully paid up of
indian Britain BY (468,713 shares subscribed during the period)

Cuoted
Others

(Details of Investments purchased and sold during the period - See Note Mo. 27 of Schedule 16)

As at As at
31.03.2007 31122005

{R=. in Milllon) (Rs. in Million}
0.08 0.08
493 493
0.07 0.07
0.16 0.16

524 524

oTa 078
7.50 7.50
131,44 151.44
|I1§5.Bi 83981

1,332.565 1,078.85

1,338.57 1,084,687

As at 31.03.2007 As at 31.12.2005

Book Market Book Markat

Value Value Value Value

5243 14.21 524 13.70
1,333.33 1,078.63
1,338.57 1,084.87

GHCL LIMITED @



SCHEDULE 7 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

SCHEDULE 8 : CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS

CURRENT ASSETS

Invantories (as taken, valued and certified by the Management)
Al cost or net reallsable value which aver is bower
Haw materials
Finished goods
Stock in process
Stores and Spares

Sundry Debtors (Unsecured, considered good unless slated otherwise)
Owstanding over six months
Considarad good
Considerad doubtful
Provision for Doubtful Debts

Othar disbts

Cash & Bank Balances

Cash balance on hand
Current Account with Banks
- Scheduled Banks
- MNon Scheduled Banks

Deusiche Bank

{maximum balance Rs. 1.33 Millien Previous Year Re. 2, 585.79 Million)
Fixad deposit
- Scheduled Banks
(Pladged with Govt Authorities) Banks-Rs. B.01 Million, Previous Year
Rs=. 7.66 Millan}
- Mon Scheduled Banks

Dawstcha Bank Singapora AG

{maximum balance Rs. §84.41 Million Previous Year Ra. 3 510,80 Million)
Im Margin Account
Remitiances in transit

Total
LOANS AMD ADVANCES

{Unsscured, considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
valua to be recaived - Considered Good
Share application money for Shares in wholly owned Subsidiary Company
Due from Wholly owned Subsidiary Companias

143.55
11.14

{11.14)

- Loans 2,480.51

- Others

Imterast Accrued on Invesiments

Balances with Customs, Port Trust, Central Excise etc.
Advance Income Tax / Fringe Benefit Tax paid / Tax Deducied at
Seurce (nel of provisions)

Fixed Deposits with Sardar Sarover Narmada Nigam Ltd.
{Pladgad with the Govt Autharities)

Total
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242,14

As at
31.03.2007

{(As. In_Million)

1,287.23
409.97
160.35
273.82

2,131.17

143.55
975.20

1,118.75

2.80

146.60

1.3

188.78

2569
100.78

444.00

1,224.52

2,722,685
0.58
331.76

54.23
0.60

4,334.34

2,06
11,04

[11,1'14?

1,772.43

108.74

As at As at As at
31.12.2005 31.03.2007 31122005
{R=. in Million) (Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors for Goods and Expenses 748.13 597.54
Sundry Creditors for Capital Expendilure 588.60 134.40
593.30 Sundry Creditors-Small Scale Industrial Undertakings 3.04 1.60
‘g—g Advances from Customers 24.77 33.97
249,43 Trade Deposits from Dealers 10.88 11.18
—_— * Investor Education & Protection Fund in respact of
- - Unclaimed Dividend 22.42 31.03
- Unclaimed Fixed Deposits 0.68 1.13
- Intergst Accrued on Unclaimed Fixed Deposits 0.16 0.30
Other liabilities 413.37 77e.0a
Interest accrued but not due 1.33 3.86
2.08 Total 1,823.38 1,587.09
77112 — —_—
e ——— PROVISIONS
77318 Wealth Tax 3.26 3.05
Provigion for Incoma Tax (net of Advance Tax) - 69.29
1.02 Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax (net of Advance Tax) . 2.98
Propesed Dividend on Equity Shares 268.89 228.21
65T Tax on Dividend 45.70 32,00
i Total 317.85 335.53
b *  The figure reflacts the position as of 31st March 2007. The actual amount to be transferrad to the Investor Education &
Proleclion Fund in this respect shall be determined on the due date.
684,41
483
—= SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
SCHEDULE 9 : OTHER INCOME
For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
765.50 31.03.2007 (15 Months) 31.12.2005 (9 Months)
253.69 (Re. In Milllen) {As. In Million)
Interest on Investment 0.03 -
——— Dividend Income 0.50 0.10
" osa Interest on Income Tax Refund 0.66 2.28
53.26 Galn on Exchange (nef) 11.72 8.60
: Frofit on sale of Investment (net) 9.80 4.42
0.60 Sundry Credit Balances Written back (net) 25.35 16.14
_— Rent Income 10.13 6.26
2,955.89 (Tax Deductad at Source Hs. 2.25 Million Previous year Rs. 1.20 Million)
Mizcellaneous Income 46.65 11.07
Total — 10484 4087

GHCL LMITED [ @



SCHEDULE 10 : MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

Raw Materals Consumed
Stores and Spares
Repairs and Maintenance

Machinery

Building

Others

Power, Fuel and Water
Other Manufacturing Expenses
Packing Expenses
Operating Expenses for Senvices
Total

96.41
4.82

10.46

For the Period Ended Far the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months) A1.12.2005 (9 Months)
(As. in Million) (Rs. In Millien)
2,789.28 1,327.94

160.37 97.06

53.84

1.76

T07
111.69 63.37
1,100.66 570.35
488.65 208.75
209.16 88.65
23.44 30.73
4,883.25 2,386.85

SCHEDULE 11 : PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Confribution to PF and other funds
Staff Welfare

Total

For the Pericd Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (& Months)

(A=. In Million) (As. in Million)
453.05 210.87
65.48 27.48
44.48 19.51
563.01 257.86

SCHEDULE 12 : ADMINISTRATIVE AND MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES

Travelling & Conveyance

Rent and Lease Rent

Rates and Taxas

Insurance

Commission to Directors

Communication Expenses

Legal & Professional Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

Defarred Revenue Expenditure writtan off

Bad Dabts / Imecoverable amounts written off (net)
Donation

Provision for Doubtful Debts

Investment written off

Deficit on Sale/ Discarding of Fixed Assets (net)

Total

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (9 Months)

(As. in Million) {As. in Million)
95.57 39.04
34.52 21.19
11.69 2.79
60.54 22.90
8§1.00 ar.m
24.44 1328
94.94 42.42
63.86 30.62
19.02 17.83

0.15 229
2.50 2.60
0.10 6.58

& 0.07

1.33 0.37
489.86 239.80

SCHEDULE 13 : SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Cash Discount

Freight and Forwarding
Commission on Sales
Rent on Godowns

Total

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005 {9 Months)

(Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Million)
43.48 26.65
390.64 206.78
262.93 159.28
4.30 1.10
701.35 393.81

SCHEDULE 14 : (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCK

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
51.12.2005 (9 Months)

{As. in Milllon) (Rs. in Million)
Opening stock
Finished Goods 183.79 101.33
Stock in Process 55.00 58.48
{A) 238.79 158.81
Closing stock
Finished Goods 409.97 183.78
Stock in Process 160.35 55.00
(B) 570.32 238.78
{(Increasa) / Decrease in Stock Total (A-B) (331.53) (78.98)
SCHEDULE 15 : FINANCIAL EXPENSES
For the Perlod Ended For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months) 31.12.2005 (9 Months)
{Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
Interest - Fixed Loans 348.71 68.19
- Othars 218.70 37.55
Other Financial Charges 46.72 36.76
614.13 142.50
Less : Interest and Financial charges capitalised 170.37 B.26
Less : Interest from Subsidiary Companies 142.57 4.44
Less : Interest Income Others 113.61 51.80
426.55 64.50
Total 187.58 78.00



SCHEDULE16: NOTES ONACCOUNTS

A.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basls of Preparation of Financlal Statemants

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principtes in India and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Difference between tha actual results and estimatas are recognised in the period in which the results are known/matarialised.

Revenue Recognition

Sales represent value of goods sold and revenue from trade related activities as reduced by quality claims and rebates but includes
ancise duty and sxport banafils under DFRC Schame, Income from services reprasants revanue from IT-Enabled Sarvices renderad
during the period.

Fixed Assets and Depreclation

Fixed Aszets are stated at cost net of Cenvat, VAT and subszidies less depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depraciation is provided
on straight-fine method at the rates and in the manner prescrbed in Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956. Intangible assets are
depraciated on straight line basis over the useful life of the assels nol excaeding len years. Conlinuous process plants as defined thenain
have been taken on technical assessment and depreciation Is provided accordingly. Assets acquired during the year whose cost does
not exceed Rs. 5000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. Depreciation is adjusted in subsequent periods to aliocate the asset's
revised carmying amount after the recognition of an impairment loss, ifany, on systematic basis over its remaining life,

Exchange differances adjusted fo the cost of assels are depreciated equally over the balance useful life of the assets. Asssls of
insignificant value are charged to revenue. Leases relating to land are amortized equally over the perod of lease. Leased mines are
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the mines or lease period, which ever is lower.

Machinery spares which are used only in connection with an item of fixed asssts and whose use is not regular in nature are capitalised
and written off over the estimated useful life of the relevent assets. The written down value of such spares is charged to the Profit and
Loss Account on issue for consumption.

Government Grants
Cash Subsidies relating to specific fixed assals are shown as deduction from tha cost of the assets concemed in arriving at its book valuea.
Impairment of Assets

Impairment loss is provided to the extent the carmying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's net selling price or its value in use. Value In use is the present value of estimated future cash flow expected o arlse
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Met selling price s the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset at an arm's length transaction between knowledgeabie willing parties, less the costs of disposal,

Investments

Investments are classified into curment and long term investments. Cument investments are stated at the lower of cost or fair value. Long
term investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminution is made to recognize a decling, other than temporary, in the value of long
tarm invesimants.

Inventories

Inventories comprizsing Raw Materals and Finishad Goods are slated at cost or nal realizable valua, whichaver is lower. Cost of Raw
Materials is amived at mainly on weighted average basis for every month. The cost of Finished Goods include material cost, cost of
conversion, depreciation & other overheads to the extent applicable and excisa duty,

Stock-in-process is valued at cost determined by taking material cost, labourcharges, and direct expenses.

Stores and Spares are stated at cost less provision, if any, for cbsclescence. The cost of Loose Tools is written off equally over three
yaars.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transaction denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded atthe exchange rate prevailing at the time of the transaction,

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of monetary items which are
cowerad by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rale on the date of contract is recognized as
exchange difference and the pramium pald on forward contracts s recognized over the life of the contracl

Hon-monetary forelgn currency items are carried at cost,

Any income or expense on account of exchange difference elther on setiernant or on translation ks recognized in the Profit and Loss
Account except in cases where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets in which case they are adjusted to the camying cost of such
assets.

Derivative Instruments

Gain or loss in respect of Financial Derivatives are accounted in Profit and Loss Account on the date of settlement. In addition where
there are contracts for tarmination or winding up of financial derivatives, they are also given effect in the Profitand Loss Account.

Retiremant Baneafits

Contribubon payable to recognized Provident Fund and Superannuation Schame which are defined contribution scheme is charged to
Profit and Loss Account. Gratuity and Leave Encashmant which ara defined banafit Schames are accountad for on accrual basls, The
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Company has opted for a Group Gratuity Scheme and the confribution is charged to the Profit and Loss Account each year,
Deferred Revenus Expenditure

In terms of Accounting Standard - 26 Intangible Assets issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the camying amounts of
Deferrad Revenue Expendiiure are amortized! written off over the number of years in which the benefits are expected to accrue to the
Company as par the accounting policy followed by the Company.

However, axpenditure incurred during the year, on such ltems which do not meet the definition of Intangible Assets as per the said
Standard are charged off to the Profit and Loss Account except VRS expenditure which is amortized as per the existing Accounting
Policy.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at costof acquisition less accumulated amortization/ depreciation,

On amalgamation / acquisition the excess of consideration over the value of net assets acquired is treated as goodwill arising on
amalgamation and is written off over a period of five years,

Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs that are attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as  part of cost of

such assats. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are
outstanding during the period. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period inwhich they are Incurred.

Leases

Leaszes entered into before 13t April 2001 are treated as operating leases and lease rental paid are charged to Profit and Loss Account.
Leases entered into on orafter 1stApril, 2001 are accounted in accordance with Accounting Standard - 19 Leases issued by the Insfitute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

Taxation

Income - Tax expenses comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. The deferrad tax assets and liabilities are calculated by
applying tax rates and tax laws that have baan anactad at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets arfsing mainly on account of
brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation (due to amaigamation) under tax laws, are recognized, only i there is virual
cartainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of ofher timing difference are recognized
only to the extent there is a reasonable cerainty of its realization, Al each Balance Sheet date, the carrying amount of deferred tax
assels are reviewed to re-assess realization.

Provislons, Contingont Liabilitles and Contingent Assets

In accordance with Accounting Standard - 29 Provisions, Contingent Liabilites and Contingent Assets, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, provisions are recognised in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations, the amount of
which can be reliably estimated.

Confingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existenca is confirmed by the
oocurfence of non occurmence of one or more uncertaln future evants not wholly within the control of the Company.

NOTES

As at 31.03.2007 Asat31.12.2005
{Rs. In Milllon) {Rs=. In Million)
{a) Estimated value of contracts remaining o be executed
on Capital Account and not provided for 571.63 1.316.73
{b) Contingant Liabilities :
() Guaranteesissued by banks 44.70 3643
(i) Letters of Cradit 488.31 549.08
(iil) Bills discounted with banks (since realized) 249.73 36.98
(iv) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debls
- Income Tax & Wialth Tax 37.58 27 67
-Sales Tax 12.05 12.05
- Excize matters 233 3.55
- Otherclaims 4316 51.10
(v) Corporate guarantee & Standby Letters of Credit to Bank on behalf of
subsidiaries of the Company 4,441.45 107.48
{vi) Premium on redemption of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 1,280.28 -

{The Contingent Liabilities in respect of bank guarantees and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business from which itis
anticipated that no material liabilities will arse)

{c) Export Obligation on duty free imports 4,534.35 1,416.94

Anamount of Rs, 45 Million paid as an advance to DCW Ltd, towards purchase of salt fields at Vedaranyam ( Tamil Nadu ), was secured by
Bank Guarantee for aquivalent amount, had been apportioned to respective assets during the previous years as per the valuation repor
in view of the interim injunctions issued by Hon'ble High Court, Madras, in favour of the Company and amortized | depreciated in the
books of account. Applications for transfer of Iease rights / extension of laase pariod has been filed with the appropriate authorities but the

permission is yet to be granted by the authorities.
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The Company has encashed the Bank Guarantee and the funds received on encashment of Bank Guaranies have besn kept in a
saparate Fixed Deposit account with a bank as mentioned in the exparie order issued by tha sole arbitrator subject to further order on the
application received from DCW Lid. Arbritration proceedings have been concluded and order Iz awaited. On recelpt of arbliration order,
adjustmentif any shall be carmied out in the books.

Provision for taxation includes Ra. 0.50 Million (previous year Rs. 0.30 Million) for Wealth Tax.

The tax year for the Company, being the year ending 31st March, the provision for taxation for the period is the aggregate of the provision
made for the three months ended 315t March 2006 and the provision based on the figures for the remaining twelve months upto 318t
March 2007.

Interast Frea Sales Tax Loan Rs. 1.45 Million (Previous Year Rs.1.45 Million)is due within one year.
Sundry Dablors, Credilors and Loans and Advances are subjactlo confirmation and consegueantial adjustment, if any.

Unquated investmeants include shares in Coliwel & Salmon Communications (India) Limited and Indian Britain BV subsidiary companies,
which are of long term strategic value. In the opinion of the management, the current diminution in the value of these investiments is
temporary in nature considering the inherent value and nature of investee’s business proposal and hence no provision is required.

During the peried, the Company has further subscribed 46,713 fully paid up equity shares of its wholly owned subsidary Indian Eritain BY
for a consideration of Rs, 253.69 Million.

The Company through its overseas subsidiary has acquired the following overseas Companies during the period.

% of Holdings
Indrom Chemicals SA 100%
GHCL intemational Inc, 100%
Dan River Inc. 100%
Can River International Limited 100%
Dan River Factory Stares Inc. 100%
The Bibb Company LLC 100%
GHCL Rosebys Limited {Formely known as Bealaw (Man) 17 Limited) 100%
Rosebys Operations Limited 100%
Rosabys Holdings Limited 100%
Rosebys (2004) Limited 100%
Rosebys Unlimited 100%
Best Textile International Limited 100%
Best Real Properties Inc. 100%
Crowntex Intermational Incorporated B5.33%
Royal Crowntex Intemational Inc. 100%
X-Etra De Mexico SA Maxico 100%
Maysun Land Limited 49%

Pravision for doubful debts includes Rs. 7.6 Million for balance receivable from Product Direct Limited due to an unfaverable decree
issued, The balance shall be written off afler appropriate approval from Reserve Bank of India is obtained.

Exceptional item rapresents gain on restatement of Forelgn Currency Converible Bonds balances and loan to subsidiares resulling
from the FCCB proceeds.

In accordanca with the reqguirements of Accounting Standard - 19 Leases issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, future
obligation/rights as on Balance Sheet Date for lease amangsments amount to ;-

(Rs. in Million)

Receivable Fayable

Cua within one year 4.26 12.59
Due within the following four years il 19.06
Due after five years il il

The value of Finished Goods includes excise duty not paid Rs.1.87 Million (Previous Year Rs.7.92 Million). The value of Lignite at mines
Includes royalty of Ris. 0.41 Million (Previous Year 0.84 Million) on the closing stock. This has however, no impact on the profit for the year.
13 Loans & Advances includes Rs. 638.38 Millicn (Previous Year Rs. 435 Milllon) pald as advance for purchase of materials and
garvices outstanding for more then six months and considerad good and Rs. 0.03 Million advance against accommodation paid to
Diirector and relative of Director (Previous Year - Rs, 0.03 Million). Maximum outstanding balance during the period Rs, 0,03 Million
(Pravious Year - Rs. 0,03 Million) and lease rent includes Rs. (.13 Million paid to the Director (Previous Year - Rs. 0.10 Million) and Rs.
0.7 Million paid to relative of the Director (Previous Year - Rs. 0,09 Million).

The Company has adopted the revised Accounting Standard - 15 Employes Benefits as issued by the Instifute of Chartered Accountants
of India, Pursuant to this, based on actuarial valuation :

(i) the additional opening liability for defined benefit plans towards Gratuity amounting to Rs. 40.55 Million has been adjusted against
balance in General Resarve

(i) Currentyear's additional charge of Rs, 2.08 Milllon for Gratulty s debited to Profitand Loss Account
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The following table set out the status of the Gratuity Plan as required under AS -15 {Rs. in Millicn)
Total Past Service Liability 113.21
Current Fund Skze T2.66
Remalning Past Service Liability 40.55
Actual return on plan assets

Assumptions

Interast Rate 8%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 8%
Estimated futura satary growth T%
Related Party Transactions:

a Subsidiary:

Colwell & Salmon Communications (India) Limited

Colwell & Salmon Communications Inc, USA

Indian Britain B Metherlands

Indian England NV Netherlands

Indian Wales NV {Formely known as Melidor M W Nethadands)
GHCL Ine, USA,

8 C GHCL Upsom SA (Formaly known as 5 C Bega Upsom S A Romania)
Indrom Chemicals SA

GHCL International Inc.

Dian River Inc.

Dan River International Limited

Dan River Factory Staras Inc.

The Bibb Company LLC

GHCL Rossbys Limited (Formely known a5 Bealaw (Man) 17 Limited)
Rosebys Operations Limited

Rosebys Holdings Limited

Rosebys (2004) Limited

Rosabys Unlimited

Bast Textlle Intemational Limited

Best Real Properties Inc.

Crowntex International Incorporated

Royal Crowrntex International Inc.

X-Efra De Mexico 54 Maxico

Maysun Land Limited

b HKey Management Personnel:

P. Sampath, Managing Diractor

R. 5. Jalan, Managing Director

Tej Malhotra, Sr. Executive Director - Operations
¢ Relative of Key Management Personnel:

Vidyavati Malhatra, mio Tej Malhotra

Sashi Maihotra, wio Tej Malhotra

Pushpa Sampath wioc F. Sampath

Dizclosura of transactions batween the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as on 31st March,
2007

(R, in Million)
Key Management Ralativa of Key
Type of Transactions Subsidiary Personnel Management Parsonnel
Purchase or Sale of Goods / others:
-Sale 330.89
-Purchaza 97.73
-Expenses 8,03
Leasing & Hire purchase transactions - 013 0.17
(0.10) (0.09)
Finance:
-Loans & Advances 840.48
(1.812.14)
-Equity 253.69
(947.12)
-Advance for Shares -
(253.68)
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- Income 115.79
(45.58)
- Expenses 29.66
(10.:28)
- Others / Interest Charged 150.71
(2.18)
5  Remuneration T2.75
(35.95)
6  Dividend on Shares
T Balances as on 31stMarch, 2007:
-Investments 1.332.55
(1,078.85)
-Loans & Advances 2.T22.65
(1,882.17)
-Advance for Shares & preferrantlal warrants -
{253 69)
- Advancas for Rental Accommodation 0.02
(0.02)
- Debtors 19.62
(17.76)
Creditors 238
{3.60)
Figures in brackets relate to period ended 315t Decamber 2005
Asal Current Period
17  Defermed Tax 01.01.2006 Charge/{Credit)
a) Dafarmad tax llability on account of:
i} Depreciation 683.13 32368
iy Others
Deferred Revenue Expenditure 113.49 95.55
Total (A) 796,62 419.23
b} Deferred tax assels onaccount of:
] Employes Benefit 263 4.94
i} State & Central Taxes & Cess 649 0.32
i) Provision for Bad Debis - 335
Total (B) 9.12 B.61
Total (A-B) 787.50 410.62

Current period charge / (credit) includes Rs, 2.65 Million on account of prior period adjustment.

18 Caphital work In Progress includes Incidental Expenditure during Project Implementation/Expansion

Forthe Period Ended

31.03.2007

{Rs. In Million)

1 Material for frial run & start up for machinery 25.67
2  Power& Fuel 28.56
3 Salaries, Wages, Gratuity etc. 5.08
4  Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 0.92
5 StaffWelfare -
& Communication Expenses 0.02
7 Travelling & Conveyance 4.29
& Rent&LeaseRent -
8  HRepairand Mzintenance - Others -
10  Insurance 6.81
11 Rates & Taxes 0.12
12 Legal and Professional Expenses 0.63
13 Miscellaneous Expenses 20.48
14 Financial Charges 18.66
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0.01
{0.01)

0.02
(0.02)

(Rs. in Million)
Asal
31.03.2007

1,006.81

208.04
1,215.85

1.57
681
3.35
17.73
1,188.12

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005
(Rs. in Million}

7.63
790
0.74
0.72
0.51
14.70
215
0.12
212

232
2.4
9.53

15 Interest Charges 133.89
Less : Interest Recelved on FDR -

16 Depreciation

Less: Miscellaneous Income -
Less: Stock of fabric for trigl run -

Total Preoperative Expenses
Add : Preoperative expanses incurred up to previous year

Lass : Capitalized during the pericd
Balance

19 Rawmaterial and Power & Fusl cosis include expenditure on caplive production of Sall, Limestone, Brigutte and Lignite as under:

Manufacturing Expenses
Stores and spares consumed
Powerand Fuel

Cess and Royalty
Repairs and Maintenance

Building

Piant and Machinery

Earth Work

Others
Salaries and Wages
Travelling & Conveyance
Lease Rent
Rates and Taxes
Insurance
Interast - Fixed Loan
Misc, Expenses (Including Deferred Revenue & Intangibie Expenses)

Less; Interest on Investments (other than trade) {0.03)
Other Misc. Income (37.29)
Costof Goods Sold -

TOTAL

20 Payment toAuditors

{a) ToStatutoryAuditors : (excluding senvice tax)
Audit fee
Tax Audit Fee
Limited Review Report
Certification
Auditof financial stataments
Taxation matters
Others
Qut of pocket expenses
(Certification includes Ra. 0.07 Million (P. Y. Rs. 0.47 Million)
shown in Preoperative expenses)
{b) ToCostAuditors ; (excluding service tax)
Audit Fee
Outof pocket expenses

7.01
133.89 0.13 6.88
- 0.30
245.13 58,03
0.05
7.63
. 7.68
245.13 50.35
65.36 15.01
310.49 65.36
284.31 -
26.18 65.36
Forthe Period Ended For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. In Million) (Rs. in Million)
160.81 70.56
3.49 2,39
34.01 15.82
37.58 23.64
0.87 0.22
6.79 6.63
9.15 5.86
2.53 1.79
60.64 36,56
1.83 1.71
697 4.56
1.65 0.34
477 241
2345 10.95
30.68 17.46
{0.05)
(14.83)
{1.08)
(ar42y (15.97)
347.80 184.93
Forthe Period Ended For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(R=. InMillion) (R, In Milllon)
1.00 0.80
0.06 0.05
0.50 0.40
0.44 0.49
1.00 .
0.85 027
0.08 -
0.20 0,06
0.08 0.08
0.02 0.00
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Managerial Remuneration

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007

(Rs. in Million)

{a) Wholetime Direclors
Salaries
Contribution to Provident and Superannuation funds
Perquisites
Gratuity
Commission

(b) Other Diractors
Sitting Fees
Commission

2.15
1.73
2.56
0.3
59.00

1.64
22.00

(c) Computation of Net Profit as per Section 349 / 350 of the Companies Act, 1956

Profit for the period (as per Profit & Loss Account)
Add :

Provigion for Taxation

Manageral Remunearation & Sitting fees

Provision for Doubfful Debts

Deferred Hevenue Expenses charged to Profit and Loss Account
Investrment written off

Less :

Profit on Sale of Investment (MNet)

Profit on Sale of Assets

Deferrad Revenue Expenses incurrad during the period

Exchange gain on FCCB and related advances-Exceptional itam

Net Profit w's 349 of the Companies Act, 1958

Commizsion payable fo :-

Managing Directors and Executive Director as decided by the Board
Non-Wholetime Directors as decided by the Board

Expenditure in Foreign Currencies:
Foreign Travel

Commission on Export Sales
Interest and Commitment Charges
Others

Remittances during the perod in foreign currency on account of
Dividends to non-resident shareholders

Dividend for the linancial year ended

Mumbear of Non-resident Shareholders

Mumber of Sharaes

Eamings in foreign exchange

Export of Finished Goods on F.OB basis
Recovery towards Freight etc. on Exports
Export Income from services

Others

Value of imports on CIF Basis:
Raw Materials and Utilities
Components and spare parts
Capital Goods

Trading Geods

@ B cHcL uMmITED

1,482.78

676.95
96.39
010
31.95

-

2,288.17

9.80
4.69
3.84
63.76

2,206.08

58.00
22.00

15.18
20,39
131.96
40.28

.88
Dec. 2005
81
4,119,008

2,137.02
1737

86.72

T24.26

30.86
755.156
260.55

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005
{As. in Million)

475
0.90
1.33
0.16
28.60

0.36
8.

45.21

72131

299.57
45.21
6.58
51.67
0.0v7

1.124.41
442

141.05

876.94

28.80
8.91

15.23
13.30
ar.26
68.61

831
2004-05
Be8
4,153,908

708.83
84.83
8.89
30.57

a7
6.74
498.20

26  Quantitative information in respect of Company's operations:

{a) Capacity (as certified by the Managamant)

{b)

(c)

{d)
(e}

1]

{h)

Soda Ash

Refined Salt

Yam - Spindles

Rolors

Detargent

Wind Turbine Generators
Clath Looms

Cloth Procassing

Opening Stock
Soda Ash

Yam

Cloth

Bed Shest Sets
Others

Production

Soda Ash

Refined Salt

Yam

Cloth - Job work +
COnwn Production
Detergent

Bed Sheet Sels - Job Work
Purchasa of Trading Goods

Purchase
Soda Ash
Yarn
Clath

Consumption for internal usa

Soda Ash *
Yam

Clath

Sales

Soda Ash

Yam

Cloth

Bed Sheet Sets
Others

Closing Stock
Soda Ash

Yarm

Clath

Bed Sheet Sets
Cthers

* Including transit differances,

Unit

MT

MT

Nos.

Nos.

MT

MW Per Hour
Nos.

MTRS. ("000)

UNIT

MT

MTRS. ("000)
No. (000)

MT

MTRS. (*000)
No. {000)

MT

MT

MTRS. (*000)

MT

MTRS. (“000)
No. (000)

MT
MTRS. ("000)
No. (000)

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (Annualised)
Installed Licensed
850,000 N.A.
200,000 N.A.
115,000 N.A.
384 N.A.
24,000 N.A.
8.40 N.A.
96 N.A.
34,000 N.A.
For the Period Ended
31.03.2007

Quantity Rs. in Million

10,899 61.96
32 40.69
an 51.60

21 2013

9.41

1832.79
BE7.487
104,405
9,821
12,601
8,762
690

1,660.05
11,082
15,848
TA72
28,071
2,617
8,609

653,805 T, 143,67

22,869 2,175.82

6,835 B17.77

46T 450.23

g81.41

11,568.90

7,582 57.82

585 Ta.04

4,650 148.26

244 118.58

HA 5.30

409.97

For the Pariod Ended
31.12.2005 (Annualised)
Installed Licensed
§00,000 NA.
200,000 NA.
82,502 NA.
384 NA.
24,000 NA.
8.40 N.A.
- NA,
- NA.

For the Periad Ended

31.12.2005

Quantity  Rs. in Million

2,608 12.10
514 61.61
164 16.05

11.57

101.33
392,302
38,532
4,319
4,207
4,679
102

206.86
1,370
621
13,255
1,035
558

370,847 3,887.68

4,855 649.77

3,949 350.45

81 100.11

217.91

5,205.92

10,890 61.96

312 40.69

321 51.60

21 20.13

MA 9.41

183.79
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(i} Consumption of Raw Materials and Consumables

Salt MT 1,329,223
Lime Stone MT 1.221,684
Coke MT 81,785
Cotton & Staple Fibre MT 13,304
Yarm MT 420
Fabric MTRS. ("000) 2,130
Cthers

The consumption of Lime Stone is nel of undersize reallzation Rz. 17.38 Mil

638.97
249.36
552.43
BB2.48
5212
234.30
179.62
2,789.28

lion (Rs. 8.06 Million).

The raw material consumption is net of insurance claim received during the period.

For the Period Ended

31.03.2007
{y Consumption of Raw Materlals & Stores and Spares
Value of
Consumption % AGE
Raw Matarials:
Imparted 210.05 T.53%
Indigenous 2,5T9.23 92.47%
2,780.28 100.00%
Stores and Spares:
Imparted 10.32 6.44%
Indigenous 150.05 93.56%
160.37 100.00%

27 DETAILS OF INVESTMENTS PURCHASED & SOLD DURING THE Period

Particulars of Investment

BIRLA CASH PLUS - INSTITUTIONAL GROWTH

BIRLA CASH PLUS - INSTITUTIONAL PREM. GROWTH

BIRLA SUNLIFE CASH MANAGER IMSTITUTIOMAL PLAN - GRWOTH
CANLIQUID FUND - INSTITUTIONAL GROWTH

CHOLA LIQUID FUND REGULAR CUMULATIVE

DSPML FLOATING RATE FUND - REGULAR GROWTH

DEPML LIQUADITY FUND REGULAR GROWTH

FIDELITY CASH FUND SUPRE INSTITUTIONAL GROWTH

HOFC CASH MANAGEMENT FUND - CALL PLAN - GROWTH

HOFC CASH MANAGEMENT FUND SAVING PLAN GROWTH

HOFC FLOATING RATE INCOME FUND - SHORT TERM PLAN - GROWTH
ICICI PRUDENTIAL INTITUTIONAL LIGUID PLAN - SUPER INSTITUTIONAL GROWTH

ING WVYSYA LIQUID FUND INSTITUTIOMAL GROWTH

LICMF FLOATING RATE FUND SHORT TERM PLAN - GROWTH
LICMF LIQUID FUND - GROWTH

PRINCIPAL CASH MANAGEMENT FUND - GROWTH

RELIANCE FLOATIONG RATE FUND GROWTH

RELIANCE LIQUID FUND CASH PLAN GROWTH OPTION GROWTH
RELIANCE LIQUIDITY FUND GROWTH

SBI MAGNUM INSTA CASH FUND - CASH OFTIOMN

SEI MAGNUM INSTITUTIONAL INCOME FUNMD 5. GROWTH

TATA FLOATING RATE STP - INSTITUTIONAL GROWTH

TATA LIQUID SUPER HIGH INVESTMENT FUND - APPRECIATION
TATA LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT FUND - GROWTH

UTI LIQUID CASH PLAN INSTITUTIONAL GROWTH

UTI MOMEY MARKET FUND - GROWTH FUND

28 Deferred Revenue Expenditura:

729,091 33233
T3Z2en 142.29
47 428 34013
5,941 341,63
380 &9.24

127 10.80
.52

1,327.94

For the Period Ended

31.12.2005

Value of
Consumption % AGE
56.68 4.2T%
1.271.26 05 73%

1,327.94 100.00%

7.59 T.82%
Ba.47 92.18%
a7.08 100.00%

No. of Units

1511963
4244915
812137
2566586
1560554
6092001
35340922
10834085
581873
G4551826
4011873
4585179
19471708
4675480
2448784
2094269
1774244
012317
81999224
1676365
7236565
16799827
TE4d4
38540
458655
14973165

Deferred Revanue Expanditure comprises of camying amount as per Accounting Standard - 26 on Intangible Assets issued by The

Institute of Chartered Accountanis of India.
a8 Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses

Compensation under the Company’s voluntary retirement scheme pald/provided is being written off aqually over a parod of

thres years,
b  Salt Pans

Expenditure on the development of salt pans is being written off over a period of five years,

¢ Software

Expenditure on purchased software and IT related expenses is belng written off over a period of three years.

@ B cHcL umITED
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d Prepayment Premium

Pramium pald on prapayment of Term Loans / Non - Convertible Debanfure s charged off over the tenura of the loan In proporion to
the principle amaount outstanding.

e FCCBlssus Expanses
Due to the non availability of Securities Premium last year the Company had decided to amortise the FOCEB issue expenses over the
period of the borrowing. However during the current period the balance expenditure of Rs. 130,80 Million has been adjusted againsi
Securities Premium Account in accordance with the provision of Section 78 of the Companies Act. Due to this change the profit for
the pariod is higher by Rs. 32.16 Million being the proportionate amount which would have been written off during the period.

Intangible Assats

Intangible Asset, meating the definition as per the provisions of Accounting Standard - 26 Intangible Assels issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, comprises of :

a SaltPans
Expenditure on the development of Salt Fans is being written off over a period of five years.
b Software

Expanditura on purchased software, ERP System and IT related expensas |s baing written off over a period of threa years.
¢ Goodwill

Goodwill s amortized over a pariod of five years,
Impairment of Asseats

In pursuance of Accounting Standard - 28 Impairment of Assets issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the Company
has reviewed it= carrying cost of assets with value in use (determined based on future eamings) / net selling price (determined bazed on
valuation). Based on such review, management s of the view that in the current financial year impairment of assets is not considerad
NeCcessary,

For the Period Ended For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 {15 Months) 31.12.2005 {2 Months)
Eamings per Share (EPS)
Basic EFS
Eamings per Share has besn computed as undar:
Profit after Taxation (Rs. in Million) 1,482.T8 T21.31
{Less)Add : Prior Period Adjustment {10.00) (8.12)
(A 1,472.78 713.19
Tha weighted average number of
Equity Sharas for Basic EPS B) 95,603,796 95,088,411
Eamings per share (Face value of Rs. 10/- par share) (AW(B) 15.41 7.50
Eamings per share (Face value of Ra, 10/- per share) - Annualized 12.32 10.00
Diluted EPS
Profit after Taxation (Rs. In Million) 1,506.63 T13.19
Mumber of Equity Shares for Baslc EPS 95,603,796 85,088,411
Add : Adjustment for Warrants convertible into Equity Shares 5,567,033 1,734 545
Add : Adjustmeant for FCCB convertible into Equity Shares 7,883,109 -
The weighted average number of Equity Shares for Diluted EFS 109,063,938 095,822,056
Eamings Per Share (Diluted) 13.81 T.ar
Eamings Per Share (Diluted) - Annualized 11.05 9.82

Sundry Creditors includes Rs. 3.04 Million due to Small Scale Industrial Undertakings (Frevious Year Rs. 1.60 Million) to the extent
identified from the records of the Company as outstanding for more than 30 days from the following parties.

Madura Polymers

Texteema Engineers Industries
White Polytex

Packling Indusiries

Suruli Polymers

Ramalinga Packagings

Balaji Ind Packs

Super Paper Cones

Gowtham Paper Products

Shri Raja Paper Cone

Shr Shanmuga Polybags
Anand Paper Products

Richy Package

Aszsociated Autotex Ancillaries {P) Ltd.
Anish Equipments

System Control
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Shree Venakateswara Engineering Warks ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AS REQUIRED UNDER PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956.

Vijay Texs Spares

33  Category-wise quantitative data about derivative instruments that are oulstanding as at 31st March 2007 Balance Sheet Abstract and C:nmpan-,r‘a General Business Profile:

a) (In Milllon) (In Milllon) Il. Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
1 Forward {Dollar Receivables) 4.00 2.00 88,77 i
Public Issus : NIL Right lssus
Coupon Only Swaps Against INR Loans 2.00 46,45 2,020,00 1
3 Forward (Dollar Payables) 2.00 0.53 24.73 Balue ke : M P Faoen
4 Forward (CHF Payables) 1.00 0.86 760 lll. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds {Amount in Rs, Thousands)
b)  The Company entered the derivative instruments i.e. options, forward, swaps, etc, to hedge the foreign curmency risk of Total Liabilities 16,825,536 Total Assels

fluctuation and protect interest rate risk and not for speculation purposes.

¢)  Foreign currency expasures that are not hedged by a dervative instrumeant or otherwise as at 31st March 2007 e fpplication of-Fands
Partlculars Rs. In Million Paid-up Capital 985,884 Met Fixed Assets
Import Payable 473,13 . "
Forelgn Currency Loaris P 171 88 Advance against Preferential Warrants 66,573 Invastments
34 Disclosure as par Clause 32 of the Listing Agresmant. Reserves and Surplus 3,225,798 Met Cument Assets
i} Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans given to Subsidiaries, Associates and Others Securad Loans 7,836,769 Misc. Expanditure
Mame of the Company Relationship  Amount ofs as at Max. Balance  Investment in Shares
31.03.2007 outstading of the Company Unsecured Loans e
{Rs. In Million) (R=. in Milllon) (Rs. in Million) Defarred Tax Liability 1,198,119
Colwell & Salmon Communications {India) Limited Subsidiary 101.62 106.82 - . g
Colwall & Salmon Communications Ine, V... Periormance of PACH ARIOURK I P T eusands)
USA Subsidiary 2475 7175 . Turnover 10,832,704 Total Expenditure
Indian Britain B V' Subsidiary 2.499.77 2.409.77 253,69 Profit / Loss Before Tax 2,150,728 Profit After Tax
Indian Wales N V Subsidiary 48.61 48.61 -
Indian England N V Subsidiary 29 55 22 55 = Earning per Share in Rs. 15.41 Dividend Rate
GHCL Upsom Romania 5 A Subsidiary 28.38 28.38 - Equity Share :
ii)  LoansandAdvancesin the nature of Loans where there is no interast comprise amployes loans of Rs. 8,69 (previous year Rs. 8.65 - Final
Mitlion). .
35 Mo Stock Opfions have been granted to the employees in terms of Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) approved by the V. Generic Names of Three Principal Product / Services of Company (as per manetary terms)
Shareholders. flem Cade No. (ITC Code) . 2836.20
36 The Company has changed its accounting year from December to March. The current penod figures are for fifteen months as compared )
1o nine months of the previous yearand are hence not comparable. Product Description : Disodium Carbonate (Soda Ash)
37 Previous period's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary. ltem Code Mo. (ITC Code) :  5205.11,5205.19,5206.11,5206.12,5509.21,5509.22,5509.50
Signature to Schedules 1to 16 Product Description :  Textiles falling within the above code numbers

As per our report attached For and on behall of the Board
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
Jayantilal Thakkar & Co.  Rahul Gautam Divan & Associates  Sanjay Dalmia F. Sampath
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
(C. W, Thakker) {Rahul Divan) Dr. B.C. Jain A. 5. Jalan
Pariner Partner Director Managing Director
M. Giridhar Bhuwneshwar Mishra
5r. General Manager - Accounts  Company Secratary
Place : New Dalhi Place : Mew Delhi
Date : Juna 16, 2007 Date : June 16, 2007

NIL
45,000

16,825,536

9,590,857
1,338,568
5,887,034

9,077

8,672,376
1,482,776
27%

2%
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The financial statements of the Foreign Subsidianes have been drawn uplo 31.03.2007 and convearted into Indian Rupess at an appropriate exchange Rate.

The Company directiy/indirectly owns 100% in all the subsidiaries other than 5C GHCL Upsom SA, in which company holds 68.50%

1)

2} Mo saparate Books of accounts for the fallowing Dan River Subsidiafes are prepared under US Laws and same are clubed with Dan River Inc.:-

Dan River International Lid,

Dan River Factory Stores Ine.

Tha Bibb Company LLC
3) The above details have been annexed in terms of ketter no. 47/9H2007-CL- |l dated 227372007 issued by Governmeant of India, Ministry of Company affairs under secticn 212 (8) of the

Companies Act .

The company has acquired / formed six subsidiaries in February 2007 and the first financlal statements of these subsidiares shall be drawn upto 318t December 2007 and thersfore

proportionate financial details effective from the date of acquisition to 31st March, 2007 have been accounted for in the consolidated financial stalemants.

4}

AUDITORS'REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To The Board Of Directors
GHCLLIMITED

1.

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of GHCL LIMITED {"the Company™) and its subsidiaries as at 31st March
2007 and the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account annaxed thereto and the Cansaolidated Cash Flow Statement for the period ended on
that date. These financial stataments are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally acceptad auditing standards in India. Those standards require that wea plan and
parform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whethar tha financial statements are preparad, in all material respects, in accordance
with an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material misstatemants. An audit includas, examining on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, a5 well as evaluating the overall financial statements, We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

a) The financial statemants of a subsidiary, whosa financial statements have been audited by one of the joint auditors of the Company,
reflect total assets (net) of Rs, 45,90 million as at 31st March 2007 and total revenues of Rs, 315,08 milion for the period ended on
that date,

b) We did not audit the financial statements of cartain subsidiaries, whose financlal stalements reflect total assets of Rs. 3,661.99
million {niet) as at 31st March 2007 and total revenues of Rs. 10,337.62 million for the period ended on that date. Other auditors,
whosa reports have been fumished to us, and In our oplinion, so far as it relates 1o the amounts included In respect of these
subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors, who have audited these financial statements.

c) The Consolidated Financial Staiements also include the unaudited financial statements of certain subsidiaries which reflect total
assels (nel) of Rs. 11,085 80 million as at 31st March 2007 and total revendse of Rs. 1,154.54 million for the perod ended on that
date as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements have been cerified by management.

d) Inthe case of one subsidiary company, whose financlal statemenis reflect total assets (net) of Rs. 1,795.03 millicn as at 31st March
2007 and total revenue of Rs. 2,169.65 million for the period ended on that date, have been considered in the consolidated financial
statements based on audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2006 and on the reviewed financial
statemanis by the auditors for the pariod from 18t January 2007 to 31st March 2007 .

&) In the case of two subsidiary companies, whosa financial statemants reflact total assels (net) of s, 4,672.76 millions as at 31st
March 2007 and total revenue of Rs. 6,881.36 milllion for the period ended on that date, have been congidered In the consolidated
financial staterments based on audited financial statements for the year ended 315t December 2006 and on the statements cedified
by the management for the period from 1at January 2007 to 315t March 2007.

fi  Wedraw attention to Mote (B} 3) of Scheduls 16, Motes on Consolidated Financial Statements, forwhich the Company has obtained
a cedificate from an independent carfifisd public accountant, relating to the loss incurred on spacific discontinued manufaciuring
activities In one subsidiary. This report has been furnished to us, and in our oplnion, so far as it relates to the amounts included in
respect of these discontinued manufacturing operations, is based solely on the cerificate of the independent cerdified public
accountant.

W report that the consolidated financial statemants have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the requiremeants of
Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the
basis of the separaie audited financial stateaments of the Company and the audited/verified financial statements of iis subsidiaries
included in the consolidated financial statemeants,

Wi report that, on the basis of the information and explanations given to us and read together with note 1(i} regarding change in the Basis

af Consolidation as stated under Consolidation and nota no. 20 (e) relating to FCCB [ssus axpenses In Schedula 18 and on the

consideration of the separate audit'venfication reports on individual financial statements of the Company and its subsidianes, we are of

the apinion that the said consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles ganarally

acceptedin India:

{a) inthe case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31st
March 2007,

(b) incaseof the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the consalidated resulls of operations of the Company and its subsidiarias for
the period ended on that date; and

{c} inthe case Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the consolidated cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries for the period
ended on that date.

Forand on behalfof Forand on behalf of

JAYANTILAL THAKKAR & CO,

RAHUL GAUTAM DIVAN&ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
{C. V. THAKKER) (RAHUL DIVAN )
Partner Parinar

Mambership No.6205 Membership Mo. 100733
Place : Mew Delhi

Date :June 16, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315" MARCH, 2007

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholder’s Funds
Share Capital

Advance against Preferential

Convertible Warrants

Reserves and Surplus

Minority Interest
Loan Funds
Securad Loans
Unsecured Loans

Unsecured - Foreign Currency

Convertible Bonds

Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

Total

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Fixed Assets
Gross Block

Less : Depreciation

MNet Block

Capital Work-in-Progress
Advances against capital expenditure

Investments

Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Inventories
Sundry Debtors

Cash and Bank Balances
Loans and Advances

Less : Current Liabilities and Provisions
Current Liabilities
Provigions

Met Current Assets

Miscellaneous Expenditure

(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Deferred Revenue Expenses

Notes on Accounts

Total

Schedules

-l

16

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet

As at
31.03.2007
{Rs. in Million)

895.88 950.88
66.57 28.30
996.83 1,800.58

2,059.28

195.42
16,248.66 2,949.80
4.61 2.90
3,500.95 3,642.63

19,754.22

__881.66

22,890.58
18,301.81 9,039.30
5.208.01 4,239.05
13,093.80 4,800.25
803.99 1,594.14
429.38 234.89

14,3277

11.04
7.597.87 1,267.84
4,109.19 1.011.21
1,075.08 1,.263.66
21?57,23 2603.17
15,549.37 6,145.88
6,806.65 2,195.26
317.85 334.83
7,124.50 2,530.09

8,424.87

127.50

22,890.58

As at

31.12.2005
(As. in Million)

2,780.76
268.27

6,685.33

785.61
10,428.87

6,629.28
16.71

3,815.79

168.19

10,428.97

Az per our report attached
For and on behalf of

For and on behalf of
Jayantilal Thakkar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

{C. V. Thakker)
Partnar

Place : New Delh
Date : June 16, 2007

@ GHCL LIMITED

Rahul Gautam Divan & Associatoes

Chartered Accountants

(Rahul Divan)
Partnear

For and on behalf of the Board

Sanjay Dalmia

Chairman

Dr. B.C. Jain
Diractor

M. Giridhar

Sr. General Manager - Accounts

Placea : Maw Dealhi
Date : June 16, 2007

F. Sampath

Managing Director

A. 5. Jalan

Managing Director

Bhuwneshwar Mishra

Company Secretary

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FORTHE PERIOD ENDED 315" MARCH, 2007

INCOME

Income from Services
Othar Incoma
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Manufacturing Expensas
Purchase of Trading Goods
Payments to and Provisions for Employees
Administrative and Miscallaneous Expensas
Selling and Distribution Expanses
Excise Duty
{Increase) / Decrease in Stock

Profit Before Financial Expenses and Depreciation
Financial Expenses

Profit Before Depreciation

Depreciation / Amortisation / Impairment

Galn / (Loss) Exceptional Itam (MNet)

Profit Befora Tax from Continued Operations
Provision For Taxes

= Current Tax

= Fringe Benefit Tax

- Deferred Tax (Met)

Profit After Tax from Continued Operations
Minority Interest Profit / (Loss)

Prafit / (Loss) after Minority Interest

Gain / (Losg) from Discontinued Operations (See Mote Mo, 3)

Balance brought forward from previous year

Prior period adjustment

Excess / (Short) proviglon for Tax for earlier years
Excess / (Sh
Debenture Redemption Reserve writtan back
Investment Allowance Reserve written back
Foreign Currency translation Heserve written back
Amount Available For Appropriation

APPROPRIATIONS
Balance of Minority Interest written off
Transfer to General Reserve
Proposad Dividend on Equity Shares
Tax on Dividend
Balance Carried To Balance Sheet

Schedules

10
11
13
14

15

provision for Deferred Tax for earlier years

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

Far the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (9 months)

Eamings per Share {Rupees) from continued operations _ Basic (15/8 Months)
Eamings per Share (Rupees) from continued operations - Diluted (15/9 Months) .01
Eamings per Share (Rupees) from continued operations - Basic (Annualized)

Eamings per Share (Rupees) from continued operations - Diluted (Annualized)

Motes on Accounts

16

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account

{As. in Million) {Rs. in Million)
27,893.46 5,471.53

928.45 26,965.01 £23.99 4,847.54
729.16 405,21
—857.00 55432
28,251.17 5,309.17
6,835.82 2,534.58
10,459.32 207.62
3,660.40 523.06
3,116.03 301.24
1,735.87 397.80
(3.98) 10.95
(213.63) {83.93)
25,558.83 3,881.32
2,652.34 1,427.85
1,735.02 1,339.21
1,057.34 307.87
1,455.62 T 1,031.34
249,28 300.59
15.32 9.10
345.54 (5.05)
845.48 726.70
— 050
958.30 T26.20
(1,561.64) 2
1,148.73 715.53
4.20 (12.01)
(16.80) 1.29
265 2.60
91.67 55.34
108.60 -
— 881 _— =
- 7.83
148.50 72.18
268.89 228.21
45.70 32.00
282.43 1,148.73
8.92 7.55
7.42
7.94 10.07
7.20 9.89

As par our repaort attached
For and on bahalfl of For and on behalf of
Jayantilal Thakkar & Co,

Chartered Accountants Charlered Accountants

1C. V. Thakker)
Partner

{Rahul Divan)
Partner

Place : Mew Dalhi
Date : June 16, 2007

Rahul Gautam Divan & Associales

For and on behalf of the Board

Sanjay Dalmia

Chairman

Dr. B.C. Jain
Director

M. Giridhar

Sr. General Manager - Accounts

Placa : Mew

Delhi

Date : June 16, 2007

P. Sampath
Managing Director

R. & Jalan
Managing Director

Bhuwneshwar Mishra
Company Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2007

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

Far the Period Ended

31.12.2005 (9 months)

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Met Profit before tax and Extraordinary items 1,4656.62 1,0631.34
Adjusiment for :
Depreciation | Amortisation / Impairmeant 1,057.34 307.87
Foreign Exchange Gain (MNet) {181.05) (11.24)
{Gain} / Loss on Exceplional ltem (Net) {303.42) -
Income from Investments 9.01) -
Income from Dividend 0.50) {0.10)
Inwestmant written off (1.73) Q.07
Pricr Period Adjustments 4.20 {12.01)
{Profit) / Loss on Sales / Discarding on Fixed Assets (Net) 10.37 032
Provision for Doubtiul Debls / Advances (MNet) T.07 6.58
Minority Interast 112.82 p
(Profit) / Loss on Sale of Investments (Met) (4.52) {4.42)
Gain / (Loss) from Discontinued Operations (1,561.64) -
Financial Expenses (Net) 47,285 375,71
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 1.502.87 1,407.05
Adjustments for : —— = ——
Trade & other Racelvables (3,214.13) {2,083.69)
Inventories (6,413.31) {324 .24)
Trade payables __4,214.84 (5.412.60) {1,463.97)
Other Adjustments
Deferred Revenue Expenditure {80.20) (77.07)
(o the extent not written off)
Giratuity liability for past year {40.55) -
Cash (Used) / generated from Operations (4,040.48) (133.99)
Diract taxes paid 657.33 212,81
Net cash {used) generated from Operating Activities M EE EE
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets {8,364.23) (3, 108.09)
Subsidies Received 41.66 -
Advance for Capital Expediture (194.49) [260.70)
Sale of Flxed Assets 845.51 344 52
(Purchase) / Sale of Invesiments 11.82 2,72
Interest Recaived 135.90 54.33
Income from Investmeant 9.01 -
Dividand Receivad — 000 — 0140
Met cash used in Investing Activities (7.714.22) (2,877.32)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital including Securities Premium 263.66 -
Proceeds from Securad loans 13,659.14 1,168.83
Advance against Preferential Converible Warrants 66.57 29.30
Repayment of Secured Loans (360.27) (346.48)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Unsecurad Loan 1.71 (7.28)
Proceeds from Foreign Currency Gonvertible Bonds o 3,642.63
Gain on Exchange 342.78 11.24
Interest and Finance Charges Paid (1,481.33) {140.01)
Dividend and tax thereon paid {288.81) (209.56)
Het Cash from Financing Activities 12,223.45 148.87
Met Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) {188.58) 024.55
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of period 1,263.66 330.11
Cash and Cash Equivalents at and of Period 1,075.08 1,263.66
Mote : Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of period 1.075.12 1.243.98
Effect of exchange rate changes Gain / (Loss)} (0.04) 19,68
Cash and Cash Equivalents as restated 1,075.08 1,263.66
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of
Jayantilal Thakkar & Co. Rahul Gautam Divan & Associates Sanjay Dalmia P. Sampath
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman Managing Director
{C. V. Thakker) {Rahul Divan) Dr. B.C. Jain R. §. Jalan
Partner Partmer Director Managing Director
M. Giridhar Bhuwneshwar Mishra
Sr. General Manager - Accounls  Company Secretary
Place : Mew Deihi Place : Mew Delhl

Date : June 16, 2007
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Date : Juna 16, 2007

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SCHEDULE 1 : SHARE CAPITAL

As at Ag at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Million)
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
175,000,000 (PY. 100,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1750.00 1,000.00
Nil {PY.25,000,000) Unclassified Shares of Rs.10/- each — _250.00
1,750.00 1,250.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
09,588,411 (PY. 95,088,411) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
fully paid up 995,88 __ 850.88
995.88 950.88
Notes :
1} a) During the period the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was increased from Rs. 1,250 million to
Rs. 1,750 million,
b) 25,000,000 unclassified Shares of Rs. 10/- each were classified into 25,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/
each.

2) a) 21,250,400 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up were issued to Financial Institution at par on conversion
of loan of Rs. 212.50 Million.
b) 1,838,011 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up were issued pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation
for consideration other than cash.
¢) During the period 4,500,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up were issued to the Promoter
Company at a premium of Rs. 55.10 per share upon exercising the option of conversion of 4,500,000 Preferential
Convertible Warrants into Equity Shares.

SCHEDULE 1A : ADVANCE AGAINST PREFERENTIAL CONVERTIELE WARRANTS

As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. in Million) {Rs, in Million)
4,500,000 Preferential Convertible Warrants of Rs. 65.10 each - 29.30
4,500,000 Preferential Convertible Warrants of Rs. 147.94 each 6657 -
66.57 20.30

During the period :

1) 4,500,000 Preferential Convertible Warrants were converted in tranches of 2,000,000 & 2,500,000 Equity Shares
of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 55.10 per share on 26.12.2006 & 15.03.2007 respectively. Premium received
on conversion amounting to Rs.247.95 million has been transferred to Securities Premium Account.

2) The Company has further alloted 4,500,000 fresh Warrants to a Promoter Company on preferential basis
convertible into Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up, in the ratic of 1:1, on or before 22.04.2008 at
Rs.147.94 per warrant (including premium of Rs. 137.94 per share). Against this the Company has received
Rs. 14.79 per warrant, which will be forfeited if the option of conversion is not exercised before the specified date.

GHCL LIMITED @



SCHEDULE 2 : RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Asg at Ag at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
CAPITAL RESERVE
Cash Subsidy 257 2.57
Surplus on re-issue of forfeited Shares 1.56 1.55
412 412
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 137.50 192.84
Transfer to Profit and Loss Account 91.67 55.34
- 4583 — 137.50
CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 100.00 100.00
INVESTMENT ALLOWANCE RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 108.60 108.60
Transfer to Profit and Loss Account 108.60 -
- 108.60
SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT
Premium Received on Conversion of
Preferential Convertible Warrants 247.95 =
Less : Balance of FCCB Issue Expenses Written off 130.89 -
117.06 -
GENERAL RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 291.82 219.64
Less : Increase in Gratuity liability for past periods 40.55 -
Add: Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 148.50 72.18
399.77 291.82
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSALATION RESERVE
As per last Balance Sheet 9.81
Transfer to Profit and Loss Account 9.81
- 2.8
OTHER RESERVES 47.62 -
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Balance as per account annexed 282.43 1,148.73
Total 996.83 1,800.58
SCHEDULE 3 : SECURED LOANS
As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(As. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
DEBENTURES
10% Mon Convertible Debentures 91.67 183.33
FROM BANKS / FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Working Capital Loans 4171.77 697.72
Fareign Currency Loans 6,819.40 352,91
Rupee Term Loans 5,166.82 1,715.84
Total 16,248.66 2,949.80

@ GHCL LIMITED

Motes:

1) 10% Mon-Convertible Debentures privately placed with Financial Institutions outstanding are to be fully redeemed at par on 6th
Movember 2007 and are secured by registered mortgage in favour of the Trustees on immovable properties of Soda Ash Division
situated at Village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat and hypothecation of specified movable assets of Soda Ash Division.

2) Foreign Currency Loans from Banks/ Institutions have been secured against:-

a)

b)

c)

d)

Loan aggregating to Rs. 35.23 Million has been secured against first charge by way of equitable mortgage on the specified
immovable properties of Soda Ash Division at {1} Village Sutrapada and Kadwar, Varaval in Gujarat (2) Noida in Uttar
Pradesh (3) Ahmedabad properties and hypothecation of spacified movable assets of Soda Ash Division both present and
future.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 8.61 Millilon has been secured by way of exclusive first charge on moveable fixed assets peraining
to the Company's ITES Division both axisting and thereafter acquired .

Loan aggregating to Rs. 103.61 Million has been secured against first charge by way of equitable morigage on the
spacified immovable properties of Soda Ash Division at village Sulrapada, Veraval in Gujarat and hypothecation of
spacified movable assets of Soda Ash Division both prasent and future.

Loans aggregating to Rs. 6,670.95 Million of the foreign subsidiary companies is secured by way of exclusive first charge
by way of hypothacation in favour of Respective Banks over moveable fixed assets, both present and future of the foreign
subsidiary companies and guaranteed by the holding company.

3) Rupee Tarm Loans from Banks / Institutions have baen secured against :-

a)

b)

c)

d)

)
f)
g)
)

4) a)

b)

Loan aggregating to Rs. 702.20 Million is secured by first charge on pari passu basis by way of equitable mortgage on
Factory Land & Building of Textila Division situated at Paravai and Manaparai, Tamil Nadu and hypothecation of specified
movable assets both present and future of the Company's Textile Division. The said loan is availed under Technology
Upgradation Fund Scheme for Taxtila.

Loan aggregating to Rs.1,811.50 Million is secured by first charge on pari passu basis by way of equitable mortgage on fixed
assals of the Textile Division situated at Vapi, Gujarat and hypothecation of movable assets both presant and future of the
Company's Textile Division at Vapi, Gujarat with other term lender of the said project. The said loan is availed under
Technology Upgradation Fund Schemae for Textile,

Loan aggregating o Rs. 107 10 Million s securad by an exclusive first charge by way of equitable morigage on immovable
properties pertaining to Wind Mill Division - | situated at lrukkandural Village, Tirunalvell District In the state of Tamil Madu
and hypothecation of all present and future movable assets of Wind Mill Division - |. The said loan is avalled under
Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme for Teadile.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 149,10 Million is secured by an exclusive first charge on all present and future movable assals of
Wind Mill Divislon - [l situated at Chinnaputhur, near Poolavadi in the state of Tamil Nadu, The said loan |s availed under
Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme for Textila.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 82.50 Million is secured by an exclusive first charge on all present movable assets of Edible Salt
Division situated at Thiruporur and Vedaranyam and Industrial Salt Division.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 250.00 Million is secured by way of Demand Promissory Note and first pari passu charge on
movable fixed assets of Soda Ash Division situated at Village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat.

Loan aggregating to Re. 187.50 Million iz secured by way of first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets of Soda Ash
Division situated at Village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat.

Loan aggregating to Rs. 1,875.92 Million is secured by way of first pari passu charge on movable fixed assets of Soda Ash
Division situated at Village Sutrapada, Veraval in Gujarat.

Working Capital Loans / Bill discounting from Banks / Financial Institutions are secured by way of hypothecation of stock-in-
trade and book debts of Soda Ash / Home Textile Division / Edible Salt/ Textile Divisions and second charge on fixed assels
of Soda Ash Division / Home Texdile Division, both present and future.

Working Capital Loans of the foreign subsidiary companies are secured by way of exclusive first charge of equitable
mortgage on the respactive specified immovable properties, assignment of recaivables on future revenues and inventories.

5) Specified movable assets refarred 1oin the above notes include all movable assets of Soda Ash Division (save and except book
dabts and assets acquired on Hire Purchasa) both present and future but subject to prior charge created and / or that may be
created in favour of Company's Bankers on stock-in-trade for securing borrowing for working capital.

SCHEDULE 4 : UNSECURED LOANS

As at As at
31.03.2007 122005
(Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Million)
Interest free Sales Tax loan 1.45 2.80
Others 3.16 =
Total 4.61 2.80



SCHEDULE 4 A : UNSECURED FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERTIBLE BONDS

SCHEDULE 6 : INVESTMENTS

As at As at
31.03.2007 31.12.2005
(Rs. In Million) (Rs. in Millicn)
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 3,500.95 3,642.83
Total 3,600.95 3,642.63

The Company has issued 1% Foreign Currency Comvertible Bonds (FCCBs) of a face value of US % 10,000 each, agoregating to US
£ BO.50 Million, As per the tarms of the issue, the subscribers have an option to convert bonds inlo  Equity Shares at a price which has
been fixed as of 2151 September 2006 at Rs. 197.271 (US $ 1 = RAs. 456.838) such conversion oplion is exercisable between
2151 Saptember 2006 and 21st March 2011, The FCCB may be redeemed in whole,but not in part,at the option of the Company at any
tima on or after 215t September 2008 and prior to 215t March 2011, at an early redemption amount on predetammined terms. Unless
previously converted, redesmad or cancelled, the FCCBs will be redesmed in US Dofars on 215t March 2011 at 139,426 % of their
principal amount. As on 313t March 2007 none of the FCCBs have been convarted into Equity Shares.

The Company expects that the FCCE Bond holders would opt for the conwversion rather than redemption and in thal case no
premium would be payable and on that basis same has not been provided and is shown as contingent liability. However tha
premium, if pald would be adjusted against the avallable Securities Premium Account / charged to Profit and Loss Account at tha
time of redemption.

SCHEDULE 5 : FIXED ASSETS {Rs. in Million)
FARTICULARS GROSS BLOCK DEFRECIATION [ AMORTISATION / IMPAIRMENT MET BLOCK
During the period During the pariod
As al Assets | Additlons | Additlons Asal As ol |Accumulmted | Additlons | Additions | As at As at As ot
01.01,2006 |of Subsl-| (Deletions) on 31.02.2007] 01012006 | Deprectation | (Deletions) on 31.03.2007] 31.03.2007 | 31.12.2006
diaries Rervaluation of Subsi- Rewaluation
diaries
TANGIBLE ASSETS
Loazohold Land 60,07 . . 6007 776 . 1.04 - a0 51.27 523
Freshold Land 5.7 Ham 2720 502,18 - - - 502,18 35173
(86.45) .
Buildings 104640 | 620007 | 1,150063 1783 | 250882] 27146 3698 81.46 061 37816 | 203577 7494
[326.01) (26.74)
Plant and Machinery 581112 | 13202 5.154.47 12.43 | 11.085.02 | 3,851.78 3514 542,84 598 | 417542 | 6067 | 2,258.36
[14.85) {6430}
Famifure and Fixtures Thdh | 22808 10568 - | rog2ga 3450 1644 156.91 - 275 BAG.54 41.50
[17.78) (5.20}
Oiffice Equipmants 198.37 Ba.21 40.78 oaz 23788 T7.54 . 14.75 . E5.00 164,70 58,83
{5:58) 15311
Vahicles 34.09 026 456 34.70 1333 . am - 15.16 19,54 20.76
(4.81) (2,08
Wind Turbina Generators) 40430 - - - 430 .82 3 2468 - 47 50 36650 8348
Leased Minss 198,19 25184 451,83 1910 . 0.4 . M 30848 178.09
INTANGEBLE ASSETS
oo dwll BIG50 | B5E.31 0.20 1,508.11 7417 - 58.47 130,84 | 1,374.47 56233
Salt Warks
Reservnirs and Pans 173.01 1T858 - 28057 BD.83 . 3045 g 0042 155 112,08
Sofrware 11.12 Bl.56 26.58 1827 758 - 227 - B85 10,42 354
Total 8.039.30 |(3,106.62 688210 .28 | 1830181 | 4,238.05 B7.04 7408 6.59 | 5,208.01 (1308380 | 4800.25
(755.48) [90.63)
Prenfous Yoar TATEI [1,231.36 345,00 9.039.30 | 360691 29.03 30818 423605 | 480025
(2047} (507}

1. Bulldings include a sum of Rs. 9.14 Million (Previous Year Rs. 8.14 Million) being cost of office premises acquired on ownerghip basls,

2. Pending transier of lease righta / extension of lease of salt fislde at Vedaranium (Tamilnadu) the advance of Ra. 45.00 Million paid has been
apportioned 1o various assels as per the valuation report (Ses note 5 of Schedule 18)

3. Leased mines represent expenditure incurred on development of mines,
4. Cash subgidies amounting 1o Rs. 41.66 Million relating to Home Textile Division at Vapl has besn reduced from related fixed assets.

5. Assals and accumulated depreciation of subsidiaries relates to Dan River and Bast Group, USA, Rossbys Group UK, which have become
subsidiaries of the company during the perod,

@ GHCL LIMITED

As at
31.03.2007
{As. In Million}
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (AT COST)
OTHER THAN TRADE
CQuoted
8,300 Equity Shares of HDFC Bank Limited of Rs. 10- each fully pakd up ~ 0.08
68,508 Equity Shares of IDBI Limited of Rs, 10/~ each fully paid up 4.83
2,695 Equity Shares of Dena Bank of As. 10/~ each fully paid up 007
4,500 Equity Shares of Canara Bank of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up 018
5.24
Ungyuoted
Govemment securities - 7 year National Savings Certfificates
{Pledged with Govemnment Authorities) 0.78
CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Shares of Romanian Bank .08
1% Shares of Romextera Bank Tg Mures -
3.987% Shares of Bega Invest SA Timlscara 4.94
5.02
Total 11.04
As at 31.03.2007
Book Market
Vailue Vinhue
Quoted 524 14.21
Oirar 5.80
11.04

Ag at
a1.12.2005
{R=. in Million)
0.08
4.93
0.07
0.18
5.24
0.78
0.08
014
10.47
10,68
16,71
As at 31,12.2005
Book Markat
Value Valug
524 1370
1.47
16,71
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SCHEDULE 7 : CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories (as taken, valued and certified by the Management)
Al cost or net realisable value which ever is lower
Haw materals

Finished goods
Stock in process
Stores and spares

Total

As at

31.03.2007
in Million)

(Rs.

Sundry Debtors (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwisa)

Outstanding over six months
Considered good
Considerad doubtiul
Provislon for Doubtful Debis

Other dabts
Total

Cash & Bank Balances
Cash balance on hand
Current Account with Banks
- Scheduled Banks
- Mon Scheduled Banks
Fixed deposit
- Beheduled Banks
- Mon Scheduled Banks
In Margin Account
Remittances in transit

Total

LOANS AND ADVANCES
{Unsecured, considered good)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for
valua to be received - Considered Good

Interest Accrued on Investments
Balances with Customns, Port Trust, Central Excise etc.

Advance Income Tax / Fringe Benefit Tax paid / Tax Deductad at
Source (net of provisions)

Fixed Deposils with Sardar Sarover Narmada Migam Ltd.
{Pledged with the Gowvt Authorities)

Total

@ GHCL LIMITED

2,172.37
380.64

(380.64)

1,327.88
5,672.24
265.86
331.89

7,587.87

2,172.37
1,936.82

4,109.19

29.93

408.54
123.36

275.79

2.69
234.77

1,075.08

2,324.04
0.58
387.03

54.98
0.60

2,767.23

As at
31.12.2005

{Rs. in Million)

634.02
297.06

56.67
280.10

1,267.84

T.78

7.78
1,003.43

1,011.21

2.08

166.38
238.89

62.95
G84.41
4.83
104.14

1,263.68

2.511.31
0.58
90.68

0.60

2,603.17

SCHEDULE & : CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors for Goods and Expenses
Sundry Creditors for Capital Expenditure
Sundry Creditors-Small Scale Industrial Undertakings
Advances from Customers
Trade Deposits from Dealers
* Investor Education & Protection Fund in respect of
= Unclaimad Dividend
- Unclaimed Fixed Deposits
- Interest Accrued on Unclaimed Fixed Deposils
Other liabilities
Interest accrued but not due
Total

PROVISIONS
Wealth Tax
Provision for Income Tax (net of Advance Tax)
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax (net of Advance Tax)
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares
Tax on Dividend

Total

As at
31.03.2007

{Rs. in Million)

4,086.41
615.35
3.04
34.28
10.88

22.42
0.68
0.16

2,031.99
1.44
6,806.65

3.26

268.89
45.70

317.85

— e,

As at
31.12.2005

(Rs. in Million)

1,118.58
135.14
1.60
39.05
11.18

31.03
1.13
0,30

853.11
4.14
2,195.26

3.05
68.70
287
228.21
32.00

334.83

*The flgure reflects the position as of 315t March 2007, The actual amount to be transfarred to the Investor Education & Protection

Fund in this respect shall be determined on the due date.

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

SCHEDULE 9 : OTHER INCOME

Interest on Investment
Dividend Income
Interest on Income Tax Refund
Gain on Exchange (nat)
Profit on sale of Investment (net)
Claims Received
Sundry Cradit Balances Written back (net)
Fent Income
Miscellaneous Income
Total

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (2 Months)

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)

9.01

0.50 0.10

0.66 2.28

181,05 11.24

4.52 4.42
206.69

34.83 16.42

19.55 6.37

100.19 14.59

__557.00 5542
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SCHEDULE 10 : MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

Raw Matenals Consumed
Stores and Spares
Repairs and Maintenance

Machinery

Building

Others

Power, Fuel and Water
Other Manufacturing Expenses
Packing Expanses
Operating Expenses for Services
Total

For tha Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For tha Period Ended
31.12.2005 (9 Months)

SCHEDULE 13 : SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

(Rs. in Million) {Rs. In Million)

3,282.48 1,360.26

171.53 104.41
110.40 56.81
4.82 1.80
14.11 9.43

129.33 £8.04

2,236.66 631.39

488.65 211.16

253.51 968,65

273.68 60.67

6,835,82 2,534.58

Cash Discount
Freight and Forwarding
Commission on Sales
Rent on Godowns
Total

For the Perlod Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (9 Months)

(Rs. in Million) (Rs. in Million)
88.91 29.93

1,262.95 207.33

262.93 150.44

121.08 110
T1,735.87 397.80

SCHEDULE 14 : (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN STOCK

SCHEDULE 11 : PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to PF and other funds
Staff Welfare
Total

For the Period Endad
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (9 Months)

(Rs. In Million) {Rs. in Million)
3,102.00 438.98
454.99 59.20
112.41 24 88
3,669.40 523.06

Opening stock
Finished Goods
Stock in Process
Stock acquired on acquisition

(A)

Closing stock
Finished Goods
Stock In Process
(B)
(Increase) / Decrease in Stock Total (A-B)

For the Pericd Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (9 Months)

{Rs. in Million) {Hs. in Million)

297.06 101.33

56.67 58.48

5,370.74 99,99

5, 724.47 259.80
5,672.24 297.08

265.86 56.67

5,938.10 353.73
(213.63) (93.93)

SCHEDULE 12 : ADMINISTRATIVE AND MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES

SCHEDULE 15 : FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Travelling & Conveyancs

Fent and Lease Rent

Ratos and Taxes

Insurance

Commission to Directors

Communication Expenses

Legal & Professional Expenses

Miscellaneous Expanses

Deferred Revenue Expanditure written off

Bad Debis / Irrecoverable amounts written off (net)
Donation

Provision for Doubtful Debis

Investment written off

Daficit on Sale / Discarding of Fixed Assets (nef)

Total
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For the Pariod Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

For the Pericd Ended
31.12.2005 (9 Months)

{Rs. In Milllon) (Rs. in Million)
272,45 53.82
1,606.68 3210
467.45 g4
109.37 24.45
86.57 arn
101.60 15.34
27.48 b5.08
116.25 42,55
18.08 17.96
4197 2,65
3.96 229
7.07 6.58
1.73 0.07
1037 0.3z
301.24

3,116.03

Interast - Fixed Loans
- Others
Other Financial Charges

Less : Interest and Financial charges capitalised
Less : Interest Income othars

Total

For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months)

Far the Period Ended
31.12.2005 (9 Months)

(As. in Million) {Rs. in Million)

662.13 74.16

619.93 39.98

196.56 37.09

1,478.62 151.23
425.40 B.26
135.90 54.33

561.30 62.59

T 817.32 8864
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SCHEDULE16: NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

i

CONSOLIDATION

a GHCL Limited together with its subsidiaries (Collectively "The Group”) iz engaged in the buziness of manufacturing and trading of
Inorganic Chemicals, Home Textiles, 1T enabled services and Wind Power Generation.

b The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been combined on a line- by- [ine basis by adding together book valus of
like iterms of assets, liabilities, Income and Expenses in accordance with Accounting Standard {AS-21) on Consolidated Financial
Statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

¢ The listof subsidiary companies which ars includad in the consolidation with tha respective country of iIncorparation and the Group's
hoiding therein are given balow:

% of Holding elther directly or through Subsidiary

NAME OF THE COMPAMNY COUNTRY OF Ason Ason
INCORPORATION 31-403-2007 3M-12-2005

Cohwail & Salmon Communications {India) Limited INDHA 100 100
Cotwall & Salmon Communications Inc, LUSA UsA 100 100
Indian Britain B Matharands Tha Netharlands 100 100
Indian England MV Netherands The Netherands 100 100
GHCL Inc. USA UsA 100 100
SC GHCL Upsom SA(Formery known as S C Bega Upsom S A Romania) Romania 68.5 64.75
Indian Wales NV (Formely known as Melidor NV Metharlands) The Netharands 100 100
Indrom Chemicals SA Romania 100 A
GHCL International Inc. USA 100 A
Dan River Inc. UsA 100 MA
Dan River International Limited USA 100 A
Dan River Factory Stores Inc. UsA 100 A
The Bibb Company LLC USA 100 MNA
GHCL Rosebys Limited (Fommerly known as Bealaw (Man) 17 Limited) LK 100 MA
Raosebys Operations Limited UK 100 NA
Rosebys Holdings Limited LK 100 [T
Rosebys (2004) Limited UK 100 MA
Rosebys Unlimited LK 100 MA
Best Textile International Limited USA 100 A
Best Real Properties Inc. UsA 100 MA
Maysun Land Limited USA 48 A
K-Etra Da Mexico, SA, Maxico TR 100 MA
Crowtex International Incorporated USA 85.33 MNA
Royal Crawntex Intemational Inc. usa 100 A

d In cases where the subsidiaries follow different accounting year, the accounts are prepared upto the reporting date of parent
company to faciitate consolidation.

The nama of such subsidiaries and the accounting year are given below ;

Mama of the Subsidiary Accounting year endad
Indrom Chemicals SA 31.12.2006

GHCL International Inc. 30.12.2006 *

Cran River Inc. 30.12.2006 *

Dan River International Limited 30122008 *

Dan River Factory Stares Inc. 30.12.2006 *

The Bibb Company LLC 30122006 *
GHCL Inc. USA, 30.12.2006 *

SC GHCL Upsom SA{Formery known as S C Bega Upsom S ARomania) 31.12.2006
* A par local laws the financial year of thase companies ends on Saturday closest to Decamber 315t
e  Theaccounts of the following subsidiaries acquired during the period and whose financial year ends after more than slx months from
the reporting date of parent company are drawn on the basis of financlal statement certified by the Managemenit:-
Bast Textila International Limited
Best Real properties Inc.
Maysun Land Limitad
X-Etra De Mexico, 54, Maxico
Crowlex Intermational Incorporated
Royal Crowntex International Inc.
f Al material inter- company balances and transactions are eliminated on consolidation.

g The excess of investments in the subsidiary companies over its share of the equity of the subsidiary companies, at the date on
which the investments in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognised as “goodwil” being an asset in the consolidated
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financial statements. The net asset value, considered for the purpose of goodwill in respect of trenches of investment, is the value as
atthe date of the first investment for acquirng subsidiary company. Goodwill arising out of consolidation is not amortised,

b Minority interast in the net assets of the subsidiary consists of the amount of equity attributable to the minority shareholders at the
date on which investments are made by the Company in the subsidiary companies and further movemeants in their share in the
equity, subsequent to the date of investments attributable to their equity.

i Revenue and expenses are translated info Indian Rupee at average rate for the period of the respective financial year of the
companies . Fixed Assets, Share Capital and Reserves as on date of scquisition of subsidiary companies are translated into Indian
Rupae on the prevalling rate on the same day. All other assets and liabilities are translated into Indian Rupee at the rate of exchange
prevailing as at Balance Sheet Date. Overseas subsidiaries are considered as integral part of the company's business under AS-11
and accordingly the gainfloss on sccount of exchange difference is recognised in consolidated Profit and Loss Account,

In the previous period the operations of subsidiaries were considered as non-integral. The foreign exchange differences arising out
of consalidation were recognized in Foreign Curency Translation Resarve. The impact of this change during the current pariod is
gain of Rs. 235.33 Million recognized in Consolidated Profit & Loss Account. The balance of Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
created during previous period of Rs. 9.81 Million has been written back.

i In the case of subsidiaries incorporated in The Methertands and having their own subsidiaries, the financial statements have been

consolidated on a standalone antity basis, as these companies have not prepared consolidated financial statements, in view of
cariain axemplions from preparation of consolidated financial statements under the prevailing local legislation.

k  Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for all major transactions and other
events in similar circumstances except the policies adopted by the subsidiaries based on local laws which are given below -

The parent and the subsidiaries write off Intangible Assets over different number of years.

Parent and subsidiaries provide depreciation atby different rates on Tangible Assets,

The parent and the subsidiares follow their local guidelines for accounting the leases.

One subsidiary has revalued its Tangible Assets prior to becoming a Group company as per the requirements of its local

lagistation, The corresponding revaluation reserve effect is eliminated on consolidation,

Foreign subsidiary companies recognize tax Rabilities and assets in accordance with the applicable local legislation.

The parent and subsidiaries follow different method of reorganization of Capital Subsidy.

Parent and subsidiary follow different method of valuation of inventory.

Goodwill s not amortised but tested for impairment in respect of Subsidiarias.

it Is not practicable to adopt uniform accounting poticies In respect of the aforesald items. The proportion of these ilems vis-a-vis
resulis/assets of the Group is not significant.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES and notes On Accounts

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statemanis have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1856,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Difference between the actial results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materalised.

Revenue Recognition

Sales represant value of goods sold and revenue from trade related activities as reduced by quality claims and rebates but Includes
axcise duty and export benafits under DFRC Schama. Incomea from sarvices raprasents revenue from [T-Enabled Sarvices renderad
during the period.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of Cenvat, VAT and subsidies less depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Depraciation is provided
on straight-line mathod at the ratas and in the manner prescribad in Scheduls X1V to the Companies Act, 1956, Intangible assats are
depreciated on straight line basis over the usaful life of the assets not exceeding ten years. Continuous process plants as defined therein
have bean laken on technical assessmeant and depreciation is provided accordingly. Assets acquired during the year whose cost does
not exceed Rs. 5000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. Depreciation s adjusted in subsequent perdods to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount after the recognition of an impalrment loss, Ifany, on systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Exchange differences adjusted to the cost of assets are depreciated equally over the balance useful life of the assets. Assels of
insignificant value are charged to revenue, Leases relating to land are amortized equally over the periad of lease. Leased mines are
dapraciated over the estimated useful life of the mine or lease pariod, which aver is lower.

Machinary sparas which ara used only In connection with an item of fixed assats and whose use [& not regular in nature are capltalisad
and written off over the estimated useful life of the relevant assets. The written down value of such spares is charged to the Profit and Loss
Accounton issue for consumption,

Government Grants

Cash Subsidies relating to spacific fixed assats are shown as deduction from the cost of the assats concamed in arriving atits book value.
Impalrment of Assets

Impairment loss is provided to the extant the camying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is tha
higher of an asset’s net selling price or its value in use, Value inuse is the present value of estimated future cash flow expected to arise

from the continuing use of an asset and from s disposal at the end of s useful life. Net selling price is the amaount ablainable from the
&ale of an asset at an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeabie willing parties, Iaﬂsmmnﬂlw.
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Investments
Investmeanls ara cassifisd into current and long term investments. Currend investmanis are stated at the lower of cost or fair value. Lang

term investments are stated at cost. A provision for diminution s made o recognize a decline, other than temporary, in the value of long
term investments.

Inventorias

Inventories comprising Raw Materials and Finished Goods ars stated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost of Raw
Materials is arrived at mainly on weighted averags basis for every month. The cost of Finlshed Goods include material cost, cost of
convarsion, depraciation, other overheads to the extent applicable and Excise Duty.

Stock-in-process is valued at cost determined by taking material cost, labour charges and direct expenses.

Stores and Spares are stated at cost less provision, if any, for obsolescence, The cost of Loosa Tools is written off equally over three
YEArs,

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transaction denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at the tima of the transaction.
Monetary items denominated inforeign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of monetary items which are

covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of contract is recognized as
exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the conlract.

Mon-monetary foreign curency items are carried al cost .

Any income or expanses on account of exchange difference either on settlement or an translation is recognized in the Profit and Loss
Account except in cases where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets in which case they are adjusted to the carrying cost of such
agsets,

Derivative Instruments

Galn or loss In respect of Financial Derivatives are accounted in Profit and Loss Account on the date of satlement. In addition where
there are contracts for termination or winding up of financlal derivatives, they are also given effect in the Profit and Loss Account.

Ratiremant Benefits

Contribution payable to recognized Provident Fund and Superannuation Scheme which are defined contribution scheme is charged to
Profitand Loss Account. Gratuity and Leave Encashment which are defined benefits are accrued based on actuaral valuation as at the
Balance Sheet date. The Company has opted for a Group Gratulty Scheme and the contribution is charged to the Profit and Loss Account
each year.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure

Interms of Accounting Standard 26 - Intangible Assets issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of India , the camying amounts of
Deferrad Ravanus Expanditure ans amortized! written off over tha numbar of years in which the banafits are axpactsd o accrus 1o the
Company as per the accounting policy followed by the Company.

However, expenditure incurred during the year, on such items which do not meet the definifion of Intangible Asssets as  per the said
Slandard are charged off fo the Profil and Loss Account except VRS expenditure which is amorized as per the existing Accounting
Palicy.

Intangible Assats

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization! depreciation.

On amalgamation the excess of consideration over the value of net assets acquired is treated as goodwill arising on amalgamation and
is writlen off over a perod of five years, On acquisition, the excess of consideration over the value of the net assels acquired is trealed as
goodwill arising out of consolidation. Goodwill arizing out of consolidation s not amortised.

Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs that are attributable io the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of cost of
such assets, The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing cost applicable tathe  borrowings of the Company that are
outstanding during the paried. All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expensa in the pariod inwhich they are incurad.

Laases

Leases entered into before 1st April 2001 are treated as operating leases and lease rental paid are charged to Profit and Loss Account.
Leases entered into on or after 1st April, 2001 are accounted in accordance with Accounting Standard-18 Leases issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

Taxation

Income-tax expensas comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or cradit. The defered tax assets and liabilities are calculated by
applying tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted at the Balance Shest date. Deferred tax assets arising mainly on account of
brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation (due o amalgamation) under tax laws, are recognized, only if there is virtual
certainty of its realization, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax assets on account of other timing difference are recognized
only to the extent there is a reasonable certainty of its realization. At each Balance Sheet date, the camying amount of deferred tax assets
are reviewed to re-assess realization.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

In accordance with Accounting Standard - 29 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, issued by the Instilute of
Chartered Accountants of India, Provisions are recognised in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations, the amount of
which can be refiably estimated. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their
existence is confirmed by the occurrence or nan-occurrence of one of more uncertain future everits not wholly within the control of the
Company.
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NOTES

The accounts of certain subsidiaries which are not required to be audited under domestic law or whose audited accounts are not required
to be prepared upto the reporting date of parant company are drawn an the basis of financial statements cedified by the Management.

The list of such subsidiaries are glven balow:-
Indian Britain BV

Indian England NV

Indian Wales NV

Indrom Chemicals SA

GHCL Ino. USA

GHCL International Inc,

Dan River Inc.

Dran River Intemational Limited
Cran River Factony Stores Inc.
The Bixb Company LLC

Best Textile International Lid.
Bast Real Propartias Inc.
Crowntex Intemational Inc.
Royal Crowntex International Inc.
¥-Etra Da Mexico SA

Maysun Land Lid.

During tha parad the Company has acquired ceraln assets and assumed cenain llabilities of H.W. Baker Linan Co. LLC, H.W. Bakar
I3, Inc., and Baker Linen Co. of Canada Ltd (coflectively referred to as Baker) for a Purchase price of USD 4.98 Million (Rs. 216.56
Million) and the Assels of Best Reality of New Jersey LLC and Best Manufacturing Co.LLC (collectively referred to as Best) for a
purchase price of USD 33.9 Million (Rs. 1496.35 Million) through its step down subsidiary Dav River Inc. and Best Texile International
Ltd. respectively. The assets and liabilities so acquired have been merged with the respective assaets and liabilities of the Subsidiary
Company.

Losses from discontinued operations relate to closing of manufacturing facilities by step-down subsidiary Dan River Inc. USA. As a par
of acquisition strategy the company has shifted the business model 1o offshore outsourcing from Asian countries including own Indian
praduction.

Thasa (ossas are of non recurring natura.

The Board of directors have announced a plan to dispose off tha entire manufacturing operation of the above mentioned subsidiary.
Accordingly assets related to such manufacturing operations have been disposed off as al the year end. The company has/is already |
actively seeking a buyer for the remaining manufacturing facilities, As on 31.3.2007 tha camying amount of the assets of the said
manufacturing operations wane Rs, 408.50 Million.

The foliowing statement shows revenue and expenses of continuing and discontinuing operations

(Rs. in Million)

Particulars Continulng Discontinued Total
Operations Operations

Tumover 6.751.24 3,667 40 10,418.64

Oparating Expense 7.321.09 5.003.14 12,324.23

Impairment loss 2417 - 2417

Pra-tax Profit/ (Loss) from operating activities (594.02) (1,336.74) {1,829.78)

Interest Expenses 434,89 22590 GE0.79

Profit/ (Loss) before tax {1,028.91) (1.561.64) {2,500.55)

Income tax Expensss - - -

Profit/ {Loss) from operating activities after tax {1,028.81) (1.561.64) {2,580.55)

As at As at

31.3.2007 31.12.2005

{Rs. in Million) {Rs. in Million)

{a) Estimated value of contracts remaining to be executed

on Capital Account and not provided for T740.98 1,318.85
{b) Contingent Liabilities :
{i} Guarantees issued by banks 44.T0 36.43
() Letters of Credit 634.65 549.08
(i) Bills discounted with banks (since reafized) 249,73 30.08
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis
- Income Tax & Wealth Tax 121.36 27.67
- Sales Tax 12.05 12.05
- Exclise matters 233 355
- Other claims 43118 51.10
(v) Corporate gusrantee & Standby Letters of Credit to Bank on
behalf of subsidiaries of the Company 4,441.45 107.48
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{(vi) Premium on redemption of Forgign Currency Convertible Bonds 1,380.28 -

(The confingent Liabilities in respect of bank guarantees and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is
anticipated that no material Liabities will arise)

(c) ExportObligation on duty fres imports 4,534 .35 1,416.894

Anamount of Rs. 45 Million paid as an advance to DCW Ltd towards purchase of salt fields at Vedaranyam (Tamil Madu), was secured by
Bank Guarantee for equivalent amount, had been apportioned to respective assels during the previous years as per the valuation report
in view of the interim injunctions issued by Hon.ble High Court, Madras, in favour of the Company and amorized / depreciated in the
books of account, Applications for transfer of lease rights { extension of lease period has been filed with the appropriate authorities but
the parmission |5 yet 1o ba granted by the authorities.

The Company has ancashed the Bank Guarantee and the funds received on encashment of Bank Guaraniee have been kept in a
saparate Fixed Deposit account with a bank as mentioned in the exparie order issuad by the sole arbitrator subjact to further order on tha
application received from DCW Lid, Arbitration procaadings have been concluded and order is awaited, On receipt of arbitration order
adjustment, if any shall be camied out in the books.

Provision for taxation includes Rs 0.50 Million (previous year Ris. 0.30 Million) for Wealth Tax,

The tax vear for the Company, baing the year ending 31st March, the provision for taxation for the pericd is the agoregate of the provision
made for the three months ended 31st March 2006 and the provision based on the figures for the remaining twelve months upto 31st
March 2007,

Interest Free Sales Tax Loan Rs. 1.45Million (Previous Year Rs. 1.45 Million) iz due within one year.

Depreciation | Amortisation / Impairment in Profit & Loss Acccount includes Rs. 83.28 Million amortisation of Inventories related to one of
the subsidiary.

Provision for doubtful debts include for Rs. 7.60 Million for balance receivable from Product Direct Limited due to an unfavorable decres
issued, The balance shall be written off after appropriate approval from Resenve Bank of India is obtained,

Exceptional items represents gain on restatement of Foreign Gumency Convertible Bonds balances and loan o subsidiaries resulting
from the FCCB proceeds (Net Gain Rs. 63.76 million) ltalso includes  net of exchange gain on restaterment of foredgn currency monetary
assats impact on translation of foreign currency financial statemants into INR, {Rs. 236.33 Million) gain on acquisition valuation (Rs.
66, 76 Million ) and cost of restructuring operations (Loss Rs. 187,91 Million).

In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard- 19 Leases issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, future
obligation/ rights as on Balance Sheet Date for lease arrangemants amount fo -

(Rs. in Million)

Receivable Pavahle

Due within one year 16.89 266.09
Crue within the following four years 16.60 1,196.55
Crua after five yaars - 1.597.47

The value of Finizhed Goods includes excise duty not paid Rs.1.87 Million (pervious vear Rs. 7.92 Million). The value of Lignite at mines
inciudes rovalty of Rs. 0.41 Million (Previous year 0.84 Million) on the closing stock, This has however, no impact on the profit for the

yaar.

The Company has adopted the revised Accounting Standard - 15 Employee Benafits as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountarts
of India. Pursuant to this, based on actuarial valuation :

(i} the addifional opening liability fordefined benefit plans towards Gratuity amounting to Rs. 40.55 Millions has been adjusted against
balance in General Resarve

(i) Current year's additional charge of Rs. 2.08 Millon for Gratuity is debited to Profit & Loss account

The following table sat out the status of the Gratuity Plan as raquired under AS -15

(Bs. in Million)
Tetal Past Service Liability 113.21
Current Fund Size T2.66
Remaining Past Service Liability 4055
Actual return on plan assets
Assumptions
Interast Rate 8%
Estimated rate of retum on plan assets 8%
Estimated future salary growth T%
Sagment

The Company and its subsidiares are primarily engaged in the business of manufacture of Inorganic Chemicals and Home Texdiles.
Two subsidiaries are engaged In IT Enabled Services which are categorised as *Others”,

Secondary segment reporting is performed on the basks of the geographical location of customers distinguished between India and Rest
of the World.
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BUSINESS SEGMENT

(Rs. in Million)

Inorganic Chemicals
Jan 06-March 07 Aprll 05-Dec 05 Jan O6-March 07 Apel 05-Dec 05 Jan (8-March 07 Aprll 05-Dec 05 Jan 06-March 07 April 05-Dec 05

Home Textiles

Cthers

Total

SEGMENT REVENUE
Exfernal Revenue 9,086.61 3,700.09 17,878.40 1,147 46 728.16 406.20 2789417 5,253.78
Less : Inter Segment Revenua -
Tatal Revenus 9,086.61 3,700.09 17,878.40 1,147.46 729.18 406.20 2769417 525375
SEGMENT RESULT 1,781.72 991.95 (693.07) 142.88 75.86 412 1,144.51 1,138.95
Unallocated Comporate Expenses. 106.51 T4.38
Ciperating Profit 1,761.72 991.96 (693.07) 142.68 75.86 412 1,038.00 1,064,586
Inferest Expanses 917.32 B8.64
Imtgresi Income -
Cther Income 19060 39.00 .00 1337 0.56 {2.05) 538.25 E0.32
Unallocated Comorate Cther Income 18,75 5.10
Total Other Income 190.60 39.00 347.09 1397 0.56 {2.05) 667.00 5542
Profit from Ordinary Activities 1.952.32 1,030,895 (345.98) 156.25 7642 207 677.68  1,031.34
Exceptional Hams Tr7.04
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAXES 1,962.32 1,030.96 (345.98) 156.26 76.42 207 145662  1,031.34
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assels 14,996, 12 6,131.98 14,665.08 3,303.93 91.23 856.50 29,752.38  10,091.41
Unallocated Corporate Assats 135.20  2,700.45
Total Assels 14,996.12 6,131.98 14,6685.03 3,303.93 91.23 655.50 29.887.58 12,791.86
Segment Liabilites 7.218.21 244575 15,693.43 3277 147.28 122.58 23,059.92  2,893.50
Unaflocated Comporate Liabilities 489587  7.285.81
Total Liabilitles 7,219.21 2,445.75 15,693.43 327147 147.29 122.58 27,955,880 10,1795
Capital Expenditure 4 436,60 BIE.03 4 B66.62 173.06 1377 186 911693 1,076,895
Unallocated Capital Expendlbune B70.73 503.41
Total Capital Expanditure 4,436.60 B96.03 4 666,62 173.08 13797 7.86 8,987.72  1,580.36
Dagreciation 476.94 237 .44 462.34 50.30 2788 16.11 967.16 303.85
Unallocated Depraciation 5.90 4.02
Total Depreclation 476.94 237.44 462.34 50.30 27.88 16.11 474.06 307.87
Non-Cash Expensas othar than
Dapreciation 3.05 2.56 6.7T6 778 764 542 17.45 15,76
Unallocated Mon Cash Expenses ofher than
Degraciation 1.63 2.20
Total Non Cash Expenses other than
Depreciation 308 2.56 6.76 .7 T.654 5.42 19.08 17.968
GEOQOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT
Farticulars India Rest of The World Totai

Jan 06-March 07  April05-Dec 05 Jan 06-March 07 Apri05-Dec05  JanO8-March07 April 05-Dec 05
Segment Revanue BA417.67 aran 18,276.50 1.540.54 2768417 §,2563.75
Carrying Costs of Sagment Assets 15,047.30 4,937 .40 14,840,268 1,891.88 28,847 .58 §,620.28
Agditions to Flxed Assets and |ntangible Assats 5,631.32 342.48 4,356.40 1,237, B8 8,987.72 1,580,356
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15 Related Party Transactions:

a

Aelated Party
Having Significant influence

SCGN Romgaz SA - holding more than 30% in one of the subsidiany

Key Management Personnel:

P Sampath, Managing Director - Parent Company

R. 5. Jalan, Managing Director - Parent Company

Ta| Malhatra, Sr. Executive Dirsctor - (Operations) - Parent Company
lon Bogdan - Whole time Director - Subsidiary Company
Sanjay Purohit - Whole time Director - Subsidiary Company
Mark Dyscn - Whole time Director - Subsidlary Company
Sue Tennant - Whole time Director - Subsidiary Company
Relative of Key Management Personnel:

Vidyavati Malhotra, mfo Tej Malhotra

Sashi Malhotra,wfo Tej Malhotra

Puzhpa Sampath w/o P. Sampath

16 Disclosure of transactions beiween the Company and related parties and the status of outstanding balances as
on 31st March, 2007

8l
Mo

Type of Transactions Having Significant
Influence

Remunaration
Leasing and hire purchass transaction

Purchase 1,223.30
{756.32)
Dividand on Shares

Balances as on 31st March, 2007:
- Advances lor renlal accommadation

- Bundry Creditors 2686.14
(402.63)

Figures in brackets relate to period ended 31st December 2005.

17 Deferred Tax

a)

b)

Az al
01.01.2006
Delemed tax liability on account of: —_—
i) Depreciation 683.13
i} Others

Deferred Revanue Expenditure 113.49
TOTAL (A) 796.62

Defarrad tax assets on account of:
i Employes Benefit 2.63
i) State & Central Taxes & Cess 6.49
iy Provision for Bad Debts .
iv) Overseas subsidiaries 1.89
TOTAL (B) 11.01
TOTAL (A-B) 785.61

Key Management
Parsonnel

125.93
(34.84)
0.13
(0.10)

0.02
(0.02)

Currant Parod
Charge/(Cradit)

323.68

95.55
419.23

4.94
0.32
3.35
314.57

323.18
86.05

{Rs. in Million)
Relative of Key
Management Personnel

0.17
(0.09)

0.01
{0.01)

0.02
(0.02)

(Rs. In Millign}
Az at
31.03.2007

1,006.81

Currant pariod charge / {credil) includes Rs. 249.48 Million on account of prior perod adjustment including that of

subsidiaries,

18 Category-wise guantitative data about dervalive instruments that are outstanding as on 31st March 2007:

aj)

b

Mao. of Contracts

Forward {Dollar Receivables) 4.00
Coupon Only Swaps Against INR Loans 2.00
Forward (Dollar Payabies) 2.00
Forward (GHF Payables) .00

USD Equivalent
{In Millien)

2.00
46.45
0.53
0.86

INR Equivalent
{In Millian)

B9.77
2,020.00
24.73
a7.80

The Company antersd the derivative instruments i.e. oplions, forward, swaps, ete. to hadge the loreign currency risk of

fluetuation and protact interest rate risk and not for speculation purposes.
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c)

19

20

2

22

Foreign curmency exposures that are not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise as on 31st March 2007

Particulars Rs. in Milllon
Import Payable 473.13
Fareign Currency Loans & Interest thereon 171.88
Manageral Remuneration (Parent Company) Rs. in Million Rs, in Million
{a) Whole time Directors
Salaries 9.15 4.75
Contribution to Provident and Superannuation funds 1.73 0.90
Perquisites 2.56 1.33
Gratuity 0.31 0,16
Commission 59.00 28.80
{b) Other Directors
Sitting Fees 1.64 0.36
Commission 22.00 8.9
96.39 45.21

Deferred Revenue Expenditure:
Deferred Revenue Expenditure comprises of carrying amount as per Accounting Standard - 26 on Intangible Assets issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
a8 Voluntary Retirement Scheme Expenses
Compensation under the Company's voluntary retirement schama paid/provided is being written off agually over a parniod of
three years
b SaltPans
Expenditure on the development of salt pans is being written off over a peried of five years.
¢ Software
Expenditure on purchased software and IT related expenses is baing written off over a panod of three years.
d Prepayment Premium
Premium paid on prepayment of Term Loans / Mon -convartible Debenture is charged off over the tenure of the loan in
proportion to the principle amount outstanding.
e¢ FCCBlssue Expenses
Due to the non availability of Securities Premium last year the Company had decided to amortise the FCCB issue expenses
avier the period of the borrowing. However during the current perod the balance expenditure of Rs. 130,89 Milllen has been
adjusted against Securities Premium Account in accordance with the provision of Section 78 of the Companies Act. Due to
this change the profit for the perod is higher by Rs. 32.16 Million being the proportionate amount which would have been
written off during the period.
Intangible Assats
Intangible Asset, meeting the definition as per the provisions of Accounting Standard - 26 Intangible Assets issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, comprises of :
a SaltPans
Expanditure on the development of salt pans is baing written off over a pariod of five years.
b Software
Expeanditura on purchased software, ERP System and | T relaled expensas is baing written off over a period of thres years.
¢ Goodwill
Goodwill is amortized over a period of five years except goodwill arising out of consolidation.
d Impairment of Assets

In pursuance of Accounting Standard - 28 Impairment of Assets issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the
Company has reviewed its camying costof assats with value in use (determined based on future earnings)/ net salling price
(determined based on valuation), Based on such review, management Is of the view that in the current financial year
impairmant of assats is not considared nacassary except in case of one subsidiary whare goodwill amounting to Rs. 24.17
Million was tested for impaiment and written off.

Earmnings per Share (EPS)

For the Priod Ended For the Pariod Ended
31.03.2007 {15 Manths) 31.12,2005 (9 Months)
Basic EPS

Eamings per Share has been computed as under:
Profit after tax and Minarity interest from Continued operations (Rs. in Millian) 858.30 726.20
{Less)Add : Prior Period Adjustments {8.95) {B.12)
A 948.35 71608
The weighted average number of Equity Shares for BasicEPS B 85,603,796 95,088,411
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For tha Priod Endad For the Period Ended
31.03.2007 (15 Months) 31.12.2005 (9 Manths)

k|

ot

Eamings per share (Face value of Rs, 10/~ per share) (A)/ (B) 9.92 7.55
Eamings per share (Face value of Rs. 10/- per share) - Annualized 7.94 10,07
Diluted EPS
Profit after tax and Minority interest from Continued oparations (Rs. in Million) A 88220 718.08
Mumber of Equity Shares for Basic EPS 85,603,796 95,088,411 1
Add : Adjustment for Wamants convertible into Equity Shares 5,567,033 1,734 545 e
Add : Adjustment for FCCB convertible into Equity Shares 7,893,109 -
The waightad average number of Equity Shares for Diluted EPS B 109,063,938 95,822,956 =g
Earnings Per Share (Diluted) (4) / (B) 9.0 7.42 ’_i;- -
Eamings Per Share (Diluted) (Annualized) T7.20 9.89 :
23 Mo stock options have been granted to the employees in terms of Employeas Stock Option Schema (ESOF) approved by "'J"
the shareholders. .""i" -
24 Figures pertaining to the Subsidiaries Companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them in line with the :
parent company's Financial Statements, = M
25 Previous period's figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary. f
Signature to Schedules 1 to 16 ]
As per our report attached For and on behalf of the Board
For and on behalf of For and on behalf of =
Jayantilal Thakkar & Co. Rahul Gautam Divan & Associates Sanjay Dalmia P. Sampath
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chalrman Managing Director
(C. V. Thakker) {Rahul Divan) Dr. B.C. Jain R. 5, Jalan
Fartnar FPartner Director Managing Director
M. Giridhar Bhuwneshwar Mishra -
Sr. General Manager - Accounts  Company Secretary
Place : Mew Dslhi Place : New Delhi
Date : June 16, 2007 Date : June 16, 2007
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